생명샘 (living Stream)

Korean and English



Book 13 (2008)

White Young Jeon

Cambodia Reformed Faith Institutes

머릿말

목차

1.

천상의 새 노래 (계14:1-5) 2008. 3. 9.

666짐승의 수에 맞서 인 맞은 자의 수. 14만 4천인을 가리켜 ... 땅에서 구속함을 받은 14만 4천인 밖에는 능히 이 노래를 배울 자가 없더라(3)" 고 했습니다. 이 숫자는 택한 자의 수라고 이 미 7장에서 말씀드린바 있습니다. 본문에는 더 구체적으로 그들 이마에 어린양의 이름과 아버지의 이름이 새겨졌다고 말합니다. (1). 어린양과 아버지의 소유의 택한 자란 것입니다. 엡 1:13절에는 성령의 인침으로 구워시킨다고 확증하고 있습니다. 완벽한 구원입 니다. 예정. 선택. 소명. 칭의. 양자됨. 기업이 됨. 성화. 영화된다고 합니다. 그러면서 바울은 부름의 소망. 기업의 풍성한, 부활의 강력을 이미 주셨기에 하나님을 앎으로 그것들을 알게 해 달라는 기도를 드렸습니다. 그러므로 교회란 제도. 건물이 아니라 바로 사 람이란 것을 우리는 깊이 자각해야합니다. 교회란 택한 사람들이 모임입니다. 마6:18-19절에 음부의 권세가 이길 수 없고 천국열 쇠를 가진 자들이며 새 노래를 부를 수 있는 자들입니다. 첫째, 새 노래란 무엇을 가리킵니까? 2-3절에 하늘에서 나는 소 리가 많은 물소리와 뇌성 같고 거문고 타는 소리 같은 새 노래라 고 말합니다. 그 노래가 어떤 내용인가를 말하지 않지만 우리는 종전에 이미 새 노래를 부르는 4생물과 24장로와 천사들의 합창 에서 확실히 알 수 있습니다. 계시록 4:10 5:9, 5:12, 7:10, 12절, 5곳에 나오는 새 노래의 내용은 모두 죄에서 자기 백성을 구원하 심에 대한 감격에서 부르는 내용입니다. 구원의 방법은 어린양의 피. 구원의 결과는 죄사함. 영생. 왕 노릇함. 연합이라고 말합니 다. 우리는 새 노래를 부를 수 있는 자격자가 되 것을 감사해야합 니다. 둘째. 새 노래가 계속해서 나오기 위해 무엇을

힘써야합니까? 선택받은 자라고 말하면 되지, 또 다시 말하는 것은 새노래가 이 땅에서도 잘 부를 수 있는 자격조항을 보이는 것입니다. 어떤 것 입니까? 정절이 있어야 합니다. 진실을 말해야 합니다. 순종의 마음이 회복되어야합니다. 심각하고 긴장이 있는 종말시대에 새노 래를 불러야합니다. 새노래를 잘 부르기 위해 이 세가지 문제가 해결되어야합니다. 정절 없는 자, 진실이 없는 자, 순종이 없는 자는 호산나를 결코 부를 수 없습니다. 자기를 부인하고(옷을 벗어 야한다) 겸손한 마음을 가지고 주님을 위해 손해를 볼 때 인자 위 에 오르락 내리락 함으로 더 나은 세계를 체험하게 될 것입니다. 죽음의 노래로 가득 찬 세상에 우리는 생명의 노래를 불러 산 소망을 주어야합니다.

New Song in Heaven (Revelation 14:1-5) 2008. 3. 9.

666 refers to the number of those who were sealed against the number of the beast, 144,000... No one could learn this song except the 144,000 who were redeemed from the earth (3). This number was chosen. We have already mentioned in chapter 7 that the name of the Lamb and the name of the Father are engraved on their foreheads (1). In verse 1:13, it is confirmed that salvation is achieved through the sealing of the Holy Spirit. It is predestination, election, justification, adoption, inheritance, sanctification, and glorification. Since God has already given us the power of resurrection, we prayed that we may know them through our knowledge of God. Therefore, we must deeply realize that the church is not an institution or a building, but people. In Matthew 6:18-19, they are those whom the gates of Hades cannot overcome, who have the keys to the kingdom of heaven, and who can sing a new song. First, what does the new song refer to in verses 2-3? It is said that it

is a new song like the sound of many waters, thundering, and the sound of a harp, but we can clearly know from the book of Revelation that the four living creatures, the 24 elders, and the angels sing the new song. 4:10 The content of the new song in five places, 5:9, 5:12, 7:10, and 12, is all sung in the excitement of saving his people from sin by saying that the method of salvation is the Lamb. It is said that the result of blood and salvation is forgiveness of sins, eternal life, reign as king, and unity. Second, we must be thankful that we are qualified to sing new songs. It is okay to say that you are the chosen one, but again, what qualifications must you have to sing the new song well? You must have a heart of obedience. . In these serious and tense end times, we must sing a new song. To sing a new song well, these three problems must be solved. Those without chastity, those without truth, and those without obedience can never sing Hosanna. When you deny yourself (take off your clothes), have a humble heart, and suffer losses for the Lord, you will experience a better world by ascending and descending on the Son of Man. In a world filled with songs of death, we must sing songs of life and give living hope.

푸른 나무를 꺾으신 이유 (눅23:26-31) 2008. 3. 16.

성경에는 예수님을 가리켜 "복, 별, 사자, 놋뱀, 등불, 성전, 목자 등, 으로 비유했는데 본문은 푸른 나무로 비유했습니다. 푸른나무 를 주님이라면 마른 나무는 불신자(눅23:31) 곧 나를 가리킨다고 말할 수 있습니다. 푸른나무가 꺾이신 이유 곧 십자가를 지시고 죽 으신 이유가 무엇인가요? 그 대답을 아는 것이 모든 지식의 최급 선무입니다. 이것을 알지 못하면서 행복, 생명, 평화, 사망, 건강, 지 혜를 논할 수 없는 이유는 주님의 죽음이 모든 지식과 지혜의 근본 이기 때문입니다. 여러분은 이것을 아십니까? 그 나무는 왜 꺾이셨 나요? 첫째, 자기 백성의 죄를 위해 꺾이셨습니다. 죄는 심각한 문제입 니다. 그렇게 복된 자리에 죄가 들어옴으로 교제가 잃어지고 분별 력을 상실하고 자기중심적 지식으로 가정과 생업과 생육번성의 사 명이 최악으로 오염되어 버렸습니다. 모든 것의 부조화현상이 일어 난 것입니다. 죄를 해결하기 위해 선행과 종교를 만드나 해결할 길 이 그 어디에도 없고 현재도 없고 앞으로도 없을 것입니다. 하나님 이 마련해 주신 유일한 길은 의인 한 사람이 대신 죽음으로만 가능 하게 된 것입니다. 나의 죄 문제 해결을 위해 푸른 나무가 반드시 꺾어져야만 했기에 "인자는 들려야만하리라(요3:16)" 고 말씀하 신 것입니다. 둘째. 창조의 권위를 회복시키시기 위해 꺾어지셨습니다. 성부는 내어주셨고 성자는 능동적으로 선택하셨고 성령은 완전한 능력으로 그 일을 완성하셨습니다. 완전한 치료는 사람에게 없고 성령의 역 사로만 가능한 것입니다. 창세기2:27-28에 생육, 번성, 다스림의 사명이 회복되어 십자가의 죽음을 아는 자는 세속 문화의 종에서 벗어나게 된 것입니다. 그 분의 고난, 수모, 체형, 죽음

그리고 무덤 은 죄가 얼마나 나쁜가를 보여주는데 이것이 그가 꺾이심으로 살아 난 것입니다. 하나는 우편 강도의 돌발적 변화로 구원받는 일과 수 천년 지켜온 성소 휘장이 위로부터 아래로 찢어져 하나님 앞에 나갈 수 있는 길이 열린 것입니다.(히10:20) 바디메오처럼 누구든지 단순히 나가기만 하면 모든 문제가 극적으로 치료되는 것을 보입니 다. 나다나엘에게 약속하신 것, "인자 위에 오르락 내리락(요 1:59)" 하면서 하늘 은혜를 내 것으로 사용할 수 있게 된 것입니 다. 푸른 나무가 꺾이는 사건은 모든 권세를 성부께 드리는 일입니 다.(단7:13-14) 왕권의 회복은 우리로 땅에서 왕 노릇하게 하심입니 다. 그런데 사람이 왕 노릇하지 못하는 이유는 이 십자가를 믿지 않기 때문입니다. 셋째. 하나님 나라의 능력으로 살게 하기 위해서 꺾이셨습니다. 그의 꺾이심은 우리 지위를 끌어올려 그 능력으로 살게 하려는데 있습니 다. 다시 말하면 우리가 이 땅에서 왕 노릇하게 하심입니다. 일가족을 죽이 는 끔찍한 일은 공허의 문제입니다. 이 공백을 누가 무엇으로 메꾸나요? 명예, 권력, 건강, 재물로는 부족합니다. 오직 십자가 죽음으로만이 해결되 기에 자아 부인과 십자가 지라고 명하신 것입니다. 푸른 나무를 꺽으신 이 유를 깨달은 우리는 마른자리에서 다시 소망을 가질 수 있게 되었습니다. 고난에 동참함으로 심자가 능력을 체험하시기를 축위합니다.

The reason why the green tree was cut down (Luke 23:26-31) March 16, 2008. In the Bible, Jesus is compared to "a blessing, a star, a lion, a bronze serpent, a lamp, a temple, a shepherd, etc.," but the text compares him to a green tree.

If the green tree is the Lord, the dry tree refers to the non-believer (Luke 23:31), that is, me. You can say that knowing the answer to why the green tree was broken, why he died on the cross, is the greatest duty of all knowledge. Do you know this because the Lord's death is the foundation of all knowledge and wisdom? First, sin was broken for the sins of His people. As sin entered this blessed place, fellowship was lost, discernment was lost, and the family, livelihood, and prosperous mission were severely contaminated with selfcentered knowledge. Although we create good deeds and religion, there is no way to solve it, and there is no way to solve it, and the only way that God has provided is through the death of a righteous person. Because it had to be broken, God said, "The Son of Man must be lifted up (John 3:16)." Second, the Father was broken in order to restore the authority of creation, the Son actively chose, and the Holy Spirit was perfected. He completed the work with His power, and it is possible only through the work of the Holy Spirit. In Genesis 2:27-28, those who know the death of the cross and the restoration of the mission of growth and governance are slaves of secular culture. His suffering, humiliation, physical condition, death, and grave show how bad sin is, and this is because he was saved through a sudden change in the right side of the thief and the sanctuary that he had maintained for thousands of years. The veil is torn from top to bottom, opening the way to come before God. (Hebrews 10:20) Just like Bartimaeus, all problems are dramatically cured if anyone simply goes out. What was promised to Nathanael was that I was able to use the grace of heaven as my own by "going up and down on the Son of Man" (John 1:59). The breaking of a green tree is an act of giving all authority to the Father. (Dan. 7:13-14) The restoration of royal authority allows us to reign as kings on earth. However, the reason people cannot reign is because

they do not believe in this cross. Third, He was broken so that we could live by the power of the kingdom of God. His breaking is to raise our status so that we can live by his power. In other words, He allows us to reign as kings on this earth. The horrific act of killing a family is a matter of emptiness. Who and what will fill this gap? Fame, power, health, and wealth are not enough. Since the only solution is through death on the cross, God commanded us to deny ourselves and take up our cross. After realizing the reason why the green tree was broken down, we were able to have hope again in the dry place. I pray that you will experience the power of your heart by participating in the suffering.

영원한 복음 (계14:6-11)2008. 3. 23.

2000년 전 이스라엘에 일어난 그리스도 부활 사건 위에 서 있는 기독교 는 하나의 종교가 아니라 인류가 마땅히 가야할 유일한 길입니다. 우리가 사는 이 시대는 마른나무에게 내릴 위험을 알리는 에언대로 지구의 온난화로 빚 어지는 천재지변과 사람들의 도덕이 땅에 떨어져 온갖 끔찍한 일들이 저질 러지며 고칠 수 없는 질병들이 여기저기서 보고되어 큰 염려를 안겨주는 현실입니다. 이 문제를 어떻게 해결하나요? 영원한 복음밖에 없습니다. 부 화을 기원한 녹음이실 에떤 것 만요. 강하게 불드시기를 바랍니다. 전사가 첫째. 그것은 구원의 복음이었습니다. 구원을 얻는 것은 이 소리를 듣는 길 뿐입니다. 우리 한국이나 중국이나 인도의 긴 역사 속에서도 이 복음이 가려있다가. 하나님의 은혜로 증거된 사실은 정말 복 중 복입니다. 바울이 다메섹에서 부름받을 때 다른 이들은 빛을 보았으나 음성을 듣지 못했습니 다. 그. 음성을 들은 바이 강력한 힘으로 구원을 받습니다. 불가항력적인 은혜입니다. 죄에 빠져 영혼이 죽은 자를 살릴 수 있는 처방은 이 세상에는 없습니다. 죄에서 구원받는 길은 성경의 복음을 듣고 응답해야만 합니다. 이 복음이란 예수님이 나를 위해 성경대로 죽으시고 상경대로 살아나셨기 에 그를 내 구주로 믿는 것입니다. 둘째. 동시에 이 복음은 심판의 복음입니다. 셋째 천사가 심판을 선포 합니다. 인 맞지 않은 자는 쉼을 얻지 못합니다. 이것이 최초로 나타난 것 이 십자가 사건이었습니다. 아들의 죽으심에 하나님은 철저히 의를 따지셨 습니다. 그냥 넘어가는 것이 없으셨습니다. 공회 앞에서의 무죄임이 밝혀졌 음에도 불구하고 주닝의 억울한 죽음은 떨 깎는 자 앞의 양같이

다 뒤집어 쓰셨습니다. 이것은 의를 드러내시는 하나님의 얼굴을 보게 합니다. 죄를 철저히 따지시고 심판하신다는 것입니다. 죄란 무엇인가요? 불순종 불신앙 입니다. 그 삯은 사망이며 지옥 심판입니다. 이것이 하나님의 공의입니다. 그래서 누구든지 그 공로를 내 것으로 받아들이기만 하면 여기서 살아납니 다. 그런데 다 해놓은 것 올리기도 어렵습니다. 38년 된 병자가 자기를 물 에 넣어줄 사람이 없어 구원이 불가능한 것처럼 인간에게는 전혀 힘이 없 습니다. 셋째. 그것은 부활의 복음입니다. 바벨론의 멸망을 선포했습니다. 구원과 심판이 갈라지는 현장이 이 세상입니다. 여기서는 바벨론이라 했습니다. 이 세상은 언제나 하나님의 뜻을 대적합니다. 그 결과는 멸망입니다. 음행의 진노를 마시게 하는 역할을 합니다. 여기서 능력을 나타내는 것은 부활의 복음뿐입니다. 주님의 부활이 이 세상에서 어떻게 나타나지나요? 바울의 경 험에 의하면 날마다 주를 위해 죽을 때 능력이 나타난다고 했습니다. 그래서 그의 능력의 삶의 비결은 세 가지를 아는 일이었습니다. 1) 그리스도를 알려는 것이고 2) 그의 부활을 알려는 것이고 3) 그의 죽음을 짊어지는 것을 아는데 있었습니다. 바울은 이 능력이 그리스도의 죽음에 참여할 때 생활에 나타나는 길을 알았습니다. 그리스도의 남은 고난을 자기가 지는 의 지적인 노력이 있었던 것입니다. 구레네 시온은 억지로 십자가를 졌고 우편 강도도 주님 편에 섰고 아리마대 요셉과 니고데모도 십자가의 수치를 담당 함으로 섬겼습니다. 마리아들도 끝까지 십자가 지는 일에 동참했습니다. 그 들은 정말 부활의 능력을 체험했습니다. 주를 위해 죽고 자 할 때 삽니다. 이 복된 자리에 모두 나가시기를 축원

합니다.

Everlasting Gospel (Revelation 14:6-11) 2008. 3. 23.

Christianity, which stands on the resurrection of Christ that occurred in Israel 2,000 years ago, is not a religion but the only path that humanity should follow. In this era we live in, as the prophecy warns of the danger that falls on dry trees, natural disasters caused by global warming, people's morals have fallen to the ground, all kinds of terrible things are being committed, and incurable diseases are being reported here and there, causing great concern. It's reality. How do I fix this? There is only the eternal gospel. I hope that whatever you wish for the fire to bloom will burn strong. Warrior comes first. It was the gospel of salvation. The only way to obtain salvation is to hear this voice. The fact that this gospel was hidden throughout the long history of Korea, China, and India, but was revealed by the grace of God, is truly a blessing in disguise. When Paul was called from Damascus, others saw the light but did not hear the voice. When you hear that voice, you are saved by powerful power. It is an irresistible grace. There is no remedy in this world that can revive those whose souls have died in sin. The way to be saved from sin is to hear and respond to the gospel of the Bible. This gospel means that I believe in Jesus as my Savior because He died for me according to the Bible and rose again according to the Bible. second. At the same time, this gospel is the gospel of judgment. The third angel announces judgment. Those who are not sealed cannot find rest. The first time this appeared was at the cross. God thoroughly considered righteousness in the death of his son. He didn't pass up anything. Even though he was found innocent before the public council, Juning's unjust death was condemned like a sheep before a shearer. This

allows us to see the face of God who reveals righteousness. He thoroughly examines sin and judges it. What is sin? It is disobedience and disbelief. The wages are death and judgment in hell. This is God's justice. So, anyone who accepts the merit as their own will survive here. However, it is difficult to upload everything that has been done. Just as a 38-year-old sick man cannot be saved because there is no one to put him in the water, humans have no power at all. third. It is the gospel of resurrection. The destruction of Babylon was declared. This world is the place where salvation and judgment are divided. Here it is called Babylon. This world always opposes the will of God. The result is destruction. It serves to make people drink the wrath of fornication. It is only the gospel of resurrection that shows power here. How does the Lord's resurrection appear in this world? According to Paul's experience, power is revealed when you die for the Lord every day. So the secret to his powerful life was to know three things. 1) To know Christ, 2) To know His resurrection, and 3) To know to bear His death. Paul knew how this power would be revealed in our lives as we participate in the death of Christ. There was an intelligent effort to take on the remainder of Christ's suffering. Zion of Cyrene was forced to bear the cross, the thief on the right side stood on the Lord's side, and Joseph of Arimathea and Nicodemus also served by bearing the shame of the cross. Mary also participated in carrying the cross until the end. They truly experienced the power of resurrection. I live when I am willing to die for the Lord. I hope everyone goes to this blessed place.

do.

부활 생명의 능력 (계 14:12-20) 2008. 3. 30.

성도는 심판받을 줄을 알고 두려움으로 살아가야 하는 것입니다. 해도 구원받으나 부끄러운 가운데서 건 받는 자가 될 것입니다. 하는 일이었습니다. 여러분 속에 부활 생명이 약동하는 체험을 하 시기 바랍니다. 본문에는 두 종류의 생명. 자연생명과 부활생명의 결과가 어떠한 가와 부활 생명을 가진 자가 어떻게 살아야 할 것을 보여줍니다. 첫째. 자연생명은 멸망으로 마칩니다. 17-20절에 포도나무가 잘 익었는데 천사가 날 센 낫으로 거두어서 진노의 포도주 틀에 던진 단자. 옛 노다 열에시호부가 살절 맛이 하여고 피 달라회 1600 스다디온(형벌의 영원성과 세계성을 뜻함)에 퍼졌다고 말합 니다. 불신자에 대한 심각한 심판을 보인 것입니다. 이곳에 들어갈 사람이 누구인가요? 짐승과 우상에게 경배하고 666표를 받은 사람 이라고 했습니다.(9-11) 한마디로 성령이 없는 사람 곧 자연생명으 로 사는 사람입니다. 우리는 자연생명을 귀하게 여기지만 그 생명 에 모든 것을 걸고 살지 않습니다. 더 나은 생명을 받았기 때문입 니다. 자연인에 대해 죄와 허물로 죽은 사람 (엡2:1-3)이라 말하며 공중의 권세 잡은 마귀를 따르는 자이며 육체의 욕심으로 사는 사 람으로 하나님의 진노를 받을 사람이라고 말했습니다. 일시적으로 성령의 일반은총의 도움으로 사는 사람입니다. 그 특징은 불순종이 며 교만입니다. 하나님을 아는 것을 대적하여 높아져 하나님과의 교제가 단절된 사람으로 사는 사람입니다. 그래서 어떤 죄는 이 땅 에서도 심판을 받으며 어떤 죄는 심판의 손이 그 뒤를 추적한다고 했습니다. 우리는 전도자의 말대로 내 모든 행한 일을 창조자 앞에 둘째, 부활 생명은 완전한 구원으로 마칩니다. 본문에

자연생명 외에 영생으로 사는 사람들이 나옵니다. 16절에 인자가 알곡을 모 으는 장면이 나옵니다. 인자란 그리스도를 상징한 것입니다. 부활하 신 심판주가 구원을 완성시키는 것입니다. 구원할 자란 다 익은 알 곡, 택한 자를 가리킵니다. 14-16절에 면류관 쓴 천사가 알곡을 거 둡니다. 바로 그 알곡이 부활생명을 받은 사람입니다. 두 가지가 약 속되었습니다. 주 안에서 쉬는 안식과 행한 일이 따르는 상급입니다. 그런데 제일 큰 우리의 관심은 영생을 가졌지만 육체의 소욕으로 사는 육적 그리스도인의 결과에 있습니다. 어떻게 됩니까? 부족 셋째, 그러면 어떻게 부활능력으로 살아갈까요? 간단합니다. 주 안에 거하면 됩니다.(요15:5) 이 말은 믿음으로 인내로 사는 것을 가리킵니다. 부활 생명으로 사는 것은 말씀을 깨닫는 것입니다. 주 님이 엠마오 제자들에게, 또 사도들에게 하신 일은 말씀을 깨닫게 깨닫는 것입니다. 주님이 엠마오, 제자들에게, 또 사도들에게 하신 일을 말씀을 깨닫게 하는 있이었습니다.여러분 속에 부활 생명이 양동하는 치험을 하시기 바랍니다.

The power of resurrection life (Revelation 14:12-20) March 30, 2008.

Saints know that they will be judged and must live in fear. If you do this, you will be saved, but you will be saved in shame. It was something to do. I hope you experience the resurrection life stirring within you. The text shows the results of the two types of life, natural life and resurrection life, and how those who have resurrection life should live. First, natural life ends in destruction. In verses 17-20, the vine was ripe, and the angel took it with a sharp sickle

and threw it into the winepress of wrath. It is said that it has spread to . This shows severe judgment on non-believers. Who will fit here? He is said to be a person who worships beasts and idols and has received the 666 mark (9-11). In other words, he is a person without the Holy Spirit, that is, a person who lives by natural life. We value natural life, but we do not risk everything on that life. Because I was given a better life. The natural man is said to be a man who is dead in sins and trespasses (Ephesians 2:1-3), a follower of the devil, the ruler of the power of the air, a man who lives according to the desires of the flesh, and a man who will receive the wrath of God. A person who temporarily lives with the help of the common grace of the Holy Spirit. Its characteristics are disobedience and pride. This is a person who rises up against the knowledge of God and lives as a person who is cut off from fellowship with God. So, it is said that some sins are judged on this earth, and that the hand of judgment pursues some sins. As the evangelist said, we end everything we have done before the Creator, and the resurrection life is complete salvation. In the text, there are people who live eternal life in addition to natural life. Verse 16 shows the Son of Man gathering grain. The Son of Man symbolizes Christ. The resurrected Judge completes salvation. Those who are to be saved refer to the ripe grain, the chosen ones. In verses 14-16, the crowned angel reaps the grain. That grain is the person who received resurrection life. Two things were promised. It is the reward of rest in the Lord and the work done. However, our greatest interest lies in the results of carnal Christians who have eternal life but live according to the desires of the flesh. What happens? Lack Third, then how do we live with the resurrection ability? It's simple. All you have to do is abide in the Lord. (John 15:5) This refers to living with faith and patience. Living with resurrection

life means understanding the Word. What the Lord did for the Emmaus disciples and apostles was to help them understand and understand the Word. The Lord is Emmaus. It was a way to help the disciples and apostles understand the words of God. I hope you experience the resurrection life flowing within you.

모세의 노래 (계 15:1-8) 2008. 4. 6.

본문의 한편에는 구원받은 자가 모세의 노래를 부르며 다른 편 으론 정죄 받은 자가 일곱 대접 재앙을 받는 장면이 나옵니다. 우 리의 관심은 구원받은 자가 부르는 노래 곧 모세의 노래, 어린양의 노래에 있습니다. 어린양의 노래란 그리스도가 구원의 중심이기 때문 이라고 할수 있는데 왜 모세의 노래입니까? 본래 이것은 이스 라엘이 출 애굽(15장)할 때 이스라엘이 노래한 것인데 여기에 왜 그 노래가 나왔습니까? 구약이 그리스도를 중심한 기록이란 사실을 증거하는 것입니다. 밧모섬에서 요한이 받은 계시는 구약이 그리스 도 안에 어떻게 완성이 되었는가를 보인 것입니다. 첫째, 모세 노래에서 어린양의 구워이 어떻게 완성되는지요? 심 판이 완료되면서 완성되었습니다. 7-8 절에 하늘 성소에서 심판으 천사가 나오고 그 심판이 마치기까지 성전에 들어갈 자가 없다고 했습니다. 심판 완료는 구원의 마지막 순서입니다. 이 둘은 동시에 일어납니다. 애굽 군병이 물에 빠져 죽을 때 이스라엘은 구워을 받는 것과 같습니다. 신자들은 나사로처럼 불신자의 심판을 목격하나 서로 왕래할 수 없는 세계에 들어갈 것입니다.(눅24:44) 이 땅에 살며 억울한 일 당한 것이 그 때 다 들어납니다. 주님은 그 때에 모든 것을 다 드러내실 것입니다. 은밀한 기도, 은밀한 말, 은밀한 선행, 은밀한 죄가 하나 숨김없이 드러나서 판단을 받게 될 것입 니다. 완전한 심판 사실 앞에 두려워하며 살아가는 성도가 되시기 바랍니다. 둘째, 구워의 어떤 점을 찬양했습니까? 1) 하나님이 친히 이루 신 사실을 찬양했습니다. 3절에 나옵니다. 창세기 3:15절의 원시복 음에 보인대로 하나님이 친히 그 구원을 이루시는 것입니다. 엘샤 다이(전능하신) 하나님이 친히

하셨습니다.(창17:1) 모세 사역에도 계속 사람은 할 수 없다는 한계성을 보여주셨습니다. 우리의 구워 도 하나님이 시작하시고 하나님이 친히 이루십니다.(빌1:7.롬8:29) 2) 그리스도만이 거룩과 의라는 사실을 찬양했습니다. 4절에 보면 구원은 반드시 거룩과 의를 만족시켜야 한다고 말합니다. 사람은 두리 뭉실하지만 하나님은 반드시 그 요구에 만족하셔야만 하십니 다. 마귀의 참소를 막고 자기 백성을 완벽하게 구원하는 길이기 때 문입니다. 그래서 그리스도는 완전한 죽음과 부활로 이 거룩과 의 를 이루셨습니다. 그래서 그 만이 중보자 대속자가 되실 수 있으십 니다. 모세의 의와 거룩은 언제나 불완전했지만 그리스도의 의는 모두가 완전하십니다. 3) 열방 중 구워이란 사실을 찬양했습니다. 이스라엘의 민족주의적 타락은 그리스도의 뜻이 아니고 하나님의 뜻이 아니었습니다. 선민의식은 그들을 저주로 떨어뜨리는 독이었 습니다. 교만하게 되고 하나님의 의보다 자기 의를 세우려는 에덴 동산의 죄를 반복하며 극도로 치닻게 하는 결과를 낳았습니다. 주 님의 부활은 우리에게 이런 놀라운 질서를 만들었습니다. 마지막 모세이신 그리스도의 노래로 충만하시기를 축원합니다.

Song of Moses (Revelation 15:1-8) 2008. 4. 6.

On one side of the text, a saved person sings the song of Moses, and on the other side, a condemned person receives the seven bowl plagues. Our interest is in the songs sung by the saved, the song of Moses and the song of the Lamb. The song of the Lamb can be said to be because Christ is the center of salvation, but why is it the song of Moses? Originally, this was the song Israel sang when they left Egypt (Chapter 15), so why did that song appear here? This proves the fact that the Old Testament is a record centered on Christ. The revelation John received on the island of Patmos showed how the Old Testament was completed in Christ. First, how is the salvation of the Lamb completed in the song of Moses? It was completed when the judgment was completed. Verses 7-8 say that the judgment angel comes out of the heavenly sanctuary and no one enters the temple until the judgment is completed. Completion of judgment is the final order of salvation. These two happen simultaneously. It is like Israel being saved when an Egyptian soldier drowns. Like Lazarus, believers will witness the judgment of unbelievers, but they will enter a world where they cannot interact with each other (Luke 24:44). At that time, all the injustices suffered while living on this earth will be revealed. The Lord will reveal everything at that time. Secret prayers, secret words, secret good deeds, and secret sins will all be revealed and judged. I hope you become believers who live in fear before the fact of complete judgment. Second, what did you praise about salvation? 1) We praised the fact that God Himself had accomplished this. It appears in verse 3. As shown in the original gospel in Genesis 3:15, God Himself accomplishes that salvation. El Shadai (Almighty) God Himself did it (Genesis 17:1). Even in the ministry of Moses, He continued to show the limitations of what man could not do. Our salvation

also begins with God and is accomplished by God Himself. (Philippians 1:7, Romans 8:29) 2) He praised the fact that only Christ is holy and righteous. Verse 4 says that salvation must satisfy holiness and righteousness. People may be stubborn, but God must satisfy their demands. This is because it is the way to block the devil's accusations and completely save his people. So Christ achieved this holiness and righteousness through perfect death and resurrection. So only He can be the mediator and redeemer. Moses' righteousness and holiness were always imperfect, but Christ's righteousness is perfect. 3) He praised the fact that it is salvation among the nations. Israel's nationalistic corruption was not the will of Christ or the will of God. The consciousness of the chosen people was a poison that brought them down to a curse. We became arrogant and repeated the sin of the Garden of Eden of trying to establish our own righteousness rather than God's righteousness, which resulted in extreme harm. The Lord's resurrection created this amazing order for us. I pray that you will be filled with the song of Christ, the last Moses.

아마겟돈 전쟁 (계16:1-16) 2008. 4. 13.

16:16절에 여섯째 재앙에서 아마겟돈 전쟁이 준비되는 장면이 나옵니다. 이 전쟁 속에 살아가는 우리 성도들은 어떤 삶을 살아야 하는가요? 첫째. 먼저 아마겟돈 전쟁이란 무엇인지를 생각해 봅시다. 본문 에 보인 대접재앙이 어떻게 진행되었습니까? 독한 헌데 짐승표를 받은 자에게 독종이 생기고(1-16) 바다생물이 죽으며(3) 물이 피로 변하며(4-7) 해에 재앙이 쏟아져 만물이 태워지며(4-7) 강물이 말 라 아마겟돈 전쟁이 예비된다(8-9)고 했습니다. 세계대전 이상 가는 치열한 전쟁이며 핵전쟁보다 더 치명적 영적전쟁이 될 것을 암 시하고 있습니다. 핵 전쟁은 사람의 육체에 피해를 주지만 이 전쟁 은 영혼의 구원을 결정하기 때문입니다. 이 전쟁은 언제 일어나는 가요? 본문에 의하며 주님 재림 직전에 그리스도를 대적하는 정권 이 세력을 이루어 최후의 싸움이 일어날 것을 보여줍니다. 어떤 이 가 말하는 중동전이나 이라크 전쟁과 같은 것으로 지칭한다고 꼬집 어 말할 수 없지만 분명히 종교성을 띈 복음을 대적하는 적그리스 도와의 싸움이 일어날 것으로 볼 수 있습니다. 그러나 우리는 이미 이 전쟁이 일어났다고 볼 수 있습니다. 아마겟돈 전쟁이 시작된 증 거가 있기 때문입니다. 그 전쟁을 만드는 자는 용과 마귀와 거짓선 자의 입에서 나온 더러운 영의 역사로 시작되어 육체와 영의 싸움. 참 교훈과 거짓 교훈과의 싸움이 치열하게 일어났기 때문입니다. 구체적으로 그 싸움은 그리스도의 오심으로 이미 시작되었습니다. 하나님나라가 이미 시작된 것처럼 그 싸움은 이미 세상에 시작되어 완성된 그 나라의 승리를 향해 나가고 있습니다. 아마겟돈 전쟁의 승리를 인식하고 늘 근신하여야합니다. 둘째. 그러면

이 전장에 들어선 성도는 어떤 자세를 가져야합니까? (1) 회개에 힘써야합니다.(9) 그 날은 회개하지 못하며 회개치 않는 특징이 있습니다. 생명은 참 회개를 통해 일어나는데 회개하지 못하는 자리에 떨어지게 된다는 것입니다. 그래서 참회개의 다른 면인 믿음을 살펴야 합니다. 영광을 주께 돌리는 믿음의 삶을 굳게 지키며 살아야한다는 말입니다. 구원의 확신이 분명해야합니 다.(요일5:11-12) 둘째. 깨어있어야 합니다.(3) 도적같이 강하시 는 주님의 재림을 앞에 둔 교회는 항상 깨어있기 위해 기도하며 말 씀묵상에 힘써야 합니다. 그러므로 기도응답의 확신이 충만해야합 니다.(요16:21) 셋째. 자기 옷을 지켜야 합니다.(3) 이 말은 자기를 지켜라는 말입니다. 신자의 영적승리의 관건은 업적이나 사역보다 그 자신이 세속에 물들지 않도록 자기를 지키는데 있습니다. 승리 의 확신으로 충만해야 한다는 말입니다.(고전 10:13) 출9:26절에 보면 우박 재앙이 내릴 때 고센 땅은 철저한 보호를 받았으나 완벽 한 보호는 오직 그리스도 안에서만 절대 보호를 받기에 우리는 이 난관 속에서도 믿음을 지킬 수 있습니다. 치열한 아마겟돈 전쟁이 일어난 이 시대에 우리는 복음화의 사명을 위해 하나님의 전신갑 주, 곧 구원. 의, 진리. 믿음, 말씀, 기도, 복음의 평안을 입고 확신 을 가진 전쟁의 승리자로 살아야 할 것입니다.

Armageddon War (Revelation 16:1-16) April 13, 2008.

In verse 16:16, there is a scene showing preparations for the battle of Armageddon in the sixth plague. What kind of life should our believers living in this war live? first. First, let us consider what the war of Armageddon is.

How did the Great Disaster shown in the text progress? Those who received the mark of the beast develop poisonous sores (1-16), sea creatures die (3), water turns into blood (4-7), disaster pours down on the sun, burns all things (4-7), and rivers dry up. It is said that the war of Armageddon is prepared (8-9). It is implied that it will be a war as fierce as a world war and a spiritual war more lethal than a nuclear war. Nuclear war damages the human body, but this war determines the salvation of the soul. When does this war happen? According to the text, it shows that just before the Lord's second coming, the government that opposes Christ will form a force and the final battle will take place. It cannot be said that this is the same thing as the Middle East war or the Iraq war, as some say, but it can clearly be seen that there will be a fight with Antichrist, who opposes the religious gospel. But we can see that this war has already occurred. This is because there is evidence that the war of Armageddon has begun. The one who created the war began with the work of the unclean spirit that came out of the mouths of the dragon, the devil, and the false, and a fierce battle broke out between the flesh and the spirit, and between true doctrine and false doctrine. Specifically, that fight has already begun with the coming of Christ. Just as the kingdom of God has already begun, the fight has already begun in the world and is moving toward the victory of the completed kingdom. We must recognize the victory in the war of Armageddon and remain vigilant at all times. second. So what attitude should the saints have when entering this battlefield? (1) We must strive to repent. (9) That day has the characteristic of not being able to repent and not repenting. Life arises through true repentance, but we fall into a position where we cannot repent. So, we need to look at the other side of repentance: faith. This means that we must firmly live a life of faith that gives glory to the

Lord. The assurance of salvation must be clear. (1 John 5:11-12) Second. We must stay awake. (3) The church, which faces the second coming of the Lord, who is as strong as a thief, must always pray and strive to meditate on the Word to stay awake. Therefore, you must be full of confidence that your prayers will be answered. (John 16:21) Third. You must protect your clothes. (3) This means to protect yourself. The key to a believer's spiritual victory lies not in his accomplishments or ministry, but in protecting himself from being tainted by the world. This means that we must be filled with the assurance of victory. (1 Corinthians 10:13) In Exodus 9:26, when the hail plague fell, the land of Goshen was thoroughly protected, but we can receive absolute protection only in Christ. You can keep your faith even in difficult times. In this era of fierce Armageddon war, we must wear the full armor of God, that is, salvation, for the mission of evangelization. Righteousness, truth. We must live as victors in the war with confidence, clothed in the peace of faith, the Word, prayer, and the Gospel.

본문의 일곱째 천사의 대접 재앙을 붓는 장면은 17-19장의 아 마겟돈 전쟁으로 세상이 받는 심판의 서론에 해당합니다. 땅의 체 질이 불에 풀어지는 때 (벧후3:10) 하나님의 백성은 장망성(사 19:18)을 벗어나 구원의 자리로 나가게 됩니다. 첫째, 누가 심판하십니까? 17절에 보면 공기에 재앙을 쏟으니 성전의 보좌에서 "되었다"(It is done)라는 음성이 나왔습니다. 그러면서 번개. 뇌성. 우뢰 소리가 들리며 지진으로 성이 세갈래로 갈라지고 100근 되는 우박이 사람들에게 떨어져 망하는 것이 보였 습니다. 이것이 장성의 최후의 모습입니다. 마귀의 활동무대인 이 세상 공간을 모두 부수는 분은 누구입니까? 삼위일체 하나님이십니 다. 창조 하시고 구워하신 그 하나님이 또한 심판하실 것입니다. 성 부 성자 성령이 친히 이 일을 시행하신다는 것입니다. 십자가에 죽 으실 때 온 세상이 어두워지고 지진이 나고 무덤이 갈라지듯이 그 리스도의 다 이루었다는 선포로 이 세상은 불바다가 되어버릴 것입 니다. 하나님의 심판을 누가 막을 수 있습니까? 성경의 하나님만을 믿어야합니다. 그가 심판주이심을 믿습니다. 그의 말씀을 믿어야합 니다. 다 이루셨음을 믿고 온 우리는 되었다는 그 말씀도 반드시 이루어지게 됨을 믿어야합니다. 둘째. 무엇을 심판하시나요? 세상과 세상에 속한 모든 것을 심판 하십니다. 이것은 세상 문화를 가리킵니다. 문화는 자연에 인간 기술이 가미된 것입니다. 음악, 건축, 그림, 과학 역시 우리에게 허락 한 분야이기에 과학 행위를 무시하지 않지만 세상에 속한 고로 거 기에 우리의 모든 것을 걸지 않습니다. 그래서 이것을 사랑치 말라 고 하셨습니다. 더 큰 심판 대상은 사람입니다. 성도 무너지지만 사 람을

심판하십니다. 사람들 위에 우박이 떨어지니까 얼마나 심각합 니까? 우리는 세상과 세상에 속한 모든 것에 애착을 두지 말아야합 니다. 전도서 말대로 앞의 일을 헤아리지 못하게 하셨기에 그 날 그 날을 성실하게 사는 것이 최선의 방법입니다. 이 세상을 본받지 말아야합니다.(롬12:3) 이것이 하나님의 뜻입니다. 셋째. 어떻게 장망성을 벗어날 수 있나요? 우리는 3가지 사실을 배워야합니다. 1) 우리가 살아있는 동안의 세상이 하나님 나라를 세우는 현장임을 믿어야합니다. 신자는 현실도피주의자가 아닙니다. 이 세상에 있을 때 세상의 빛과 소금이 되어 세상을 변회시키는 사 람이 되어야합니다. 2) 감사의 삶을 살아야합니다. 현재의 상황 속 에서 감사거리를 찾아보십시오. 거기서 감사를 시작합시다. 이것이 믿음입니다. 합력해서 선을 이루시는 하나님을 믿기 때문입니다. 3) 그 날을 기다리는 신부로서 단장하고 기름을 늘 준비해야합니다. 감당할 시험만 주시는 주님을 믿고 기도하고 부르짖고 인내하며 현 실에 성실하게 삽시다. 거기서 샘이 터질 것입니다. 세상 멸망의 전 주곡이 여기 저기 들려올 때마다 말씀의 피난처에 숨읍시다.

Escape from the City of Destruction (Revelation 16:17-21) April 20, 2008

The scene of the seventh angel pouring out plagues from the bowl in the main text corresponds to the introduction to the judgment the world receives due to the Battle of Armageddon in chapters 17-19. When the elements of the earth are dissolved by fire (2 Peter 3:10), God's people will escape the barrier (Isaiah 19:18) and go to the place of salvation. first. Who judges? In verse 17, after the plague was poured into the air, a voice came from the throne of the

temple saying, "It is done." Then, I heard lightning, thunder, and thunder, and saw the city split into three parts by an earthquake and hailstones weighing 100 pounds falling on the people and destroying them. This is the final appearance of the general. Who is the one who destroys the space of this world, the stage of the devil's activities? The Trinity is God. The God who created and saved will also judge. The Father, the Son, and the Holy Spirit themselves carry out this work. Just as the whole world darkens, earthquakes occur, and tombs split open when He dies on the cross, this world will become a sea of fire with Christ's declaration that it is finished. Who can stop God's judgment? We must believe only in the God of the Bible. I believe that he is the judge. You must believe his words. We who have come to believe that everything has been accomplished must believe that the words that have been said will come true. Second, what are you judging? He judges the world and everything in it. This refers to worldly culture. Culture is nature mixed with human technology. Music, architecture, painting, and science are also fields we are allowed to practice, so we do not ignore scientific activities, but since they belong to the world, we do not risk our all on them. So he said, do not love this. The greater object of judgment is people. Even though the city falls, God judges people. How serious is it when hail falls on people? We should not be attached to the world and everything that belongs to it. As the Book of Ecclesiastes says, the best way is to live each day faithfully because God does not allow us to consider what lies ahead. We must not imitate this world. (Romans 12:3) This is God's will. Third, how can we escape the illusion? We need to learn three things: 1) We must believe that the world we live in is the site of establishing the kingdom of God. Believers are not escapists. When you are in this world, you must become the light and salt of the world and

become a person who changes the world. 2) We must live a life of gratitude. Find something to be thankful for in your current situation. Let's start our appreciation there. This is faith. This is because I believe in God who works all things together for good. 3) As a bride waiting for that day, she must be dressed up and always prepare oil. Let us believe in the Lord who only gives us tests we can bear, pray, cry out, be patient, and live faithfully in reality. A spring will burst from there. Whenever we hear the prelude to the destruction of the world here and there, let us hide in the refuge of the Word.

신령한 용사들이 되려면 (계17:1-18) 2008. 4. 27.

16장에서 일곱째 대접재앙으로 세상이 망하는 것을 본 우리들은 17장에서 그 망하는 과정을 바라봅니다. 음녀로 비유된 세상이 적 그리스도에 의해 망하는 일이 일어납니다.(16) 이 전쟁에서 주님 교회는 어떻게 살아가야할까요? 신령한 용사로 부름 받은 우리는 어떻게 신령한 싸움에 승리할 수 있나요? 14절에 세 가지로 대답 합니다. 첫째, 부르심을 굳게 해야 합니다. 영적전쟁에 참여한 교회는 하 나님의 부르싞을 굳게 함으로 이길 수 있습니다. 하나님의 계획이 실제로 드러나는 것은 순간의 부르심입니다. 사무엘과 사울을 부르 신 것처럼 개별적인 부르심으로 구원의 일이 시작되게 하셨습니다. 그래서 베드로는 창세 전에 선택하심으로 지금 부르셨음을 굳게 할 때 원시안적신앙을 갖는다고 말합니다. 베드로가 깨달은 것은 바로 이 부르심의 진리였습니다. 부르심을 굳게 하라는 말은 무슨 뜻입 니까? 부름 받을 자격 없는 자가 하나님 부르신 사랑의 감격 속에 살아가라는 말입니다. 하나님의 부르심에는 후회가 없으며 자원하 여 응답하게 하시며 사명을 포함시키십니다. 다메섹에서 부름받은 사울은 두 가지를 분명히 했습니다. 하나는 예수를 아는 것이며 다른 하나는 자기의 사명을 아는 일이었습니다. 신령한 싸움에 갈등 과 실망이 일어날 때마다 신령한 용사로서의 부르심을 기억하고 부 르짖으시기 바랍니다. 둘째, 구원받은 자임을 주장해야합니다. "빼 내심을 받은 자" 란 선택받은 자란 뜻인데 후자는 전자를 나타내기 위한 전제입니다. 택하셨기에 부르심이 효력 있는 것입니다. 예정 예지 작정되었기에 구원받는 것입니다. 그런데 이 구원은 더 풍성 한 의미를 갖습니다.

구출은 시작일 뿐입니다. 주님이 우리를 건지 셨고 건지시고 건지실 것입니다. 구원이란 그와 같이 되는 것입니다. 하나님의 제사장. 거룩한 나라가 되는 것입니다. 세상 있는 동 안 그리스도는 무수한 싸움의 대답이시고 충족이십니다. 만나의 기 적을 보면 부족함이 없었습니다. 그리스도는 모든 것의 형통이십니다. 셋째. 진실한 자로 살아야합니다. 신령한 싸움은 기본적인 것을 잘하면 됩니다. 부르심과 택하심을 굳게 할 뿐 아니라 주를 신실하게 따라가면 됩니다. 자기부인 자기 십자가를 지고 주를 따라가야 합니다. 주님을 따른 자 곧 순종자가 승리자가 될 수 있습니다. 신 실하게 따라가는 자란 다른 말로 제자로 살아가는 것입니다.(마 4:19) 제자는 두 가지 일에 익숙한 사람입니다. 자기 관리와 제자 삼는 사명에 열을 올려야합니다. 한마디로 주님 명령에 진실되어 순종할 때 승리할 수 있습니다. 신령한 전쟁의 용사는 오직 주님이 십니다. 우리도 그 안에서 신령한 용사로 부름 받았습니다. 신령한 양식인 말씀을 먹고 신령한 음료인 기도의 응답으로 오는 은혜를 힘입을 때 현재 주어진 나의 신령한 싸움에 반드시 이길 수 있습니다.

To become spiritual warriors (Revelation 17:1-18) April 27, 2008.

We, who saw the world being destroyed by the seventh great disaster in Chapter 16, look at the process of destruction in Chapter 17. The world, likened to a prostitute, is being destroyed by the Antichrist. (16) How should the Lord's church live in this war? How can we who are called to be spiritual warriors win the spiritual battle? There are three answers to verse 14. First, we must make our calling firm. The church that participates in the spiritual war can win by confirming God's calling. It is in the call of the moment that God's

plan is truly revealed. Just as he called Samuel and Saul, the work of salvation began with an individual calling. So Peter says that when he confirms the present calling by election before the foundation of the world, he has a primitive faith. What Peter realized was the truth of this calling. What does it mean to make your calling sure? This means that those who do not deserve to be called should live in the emotion of love that God has called them to. God's call has no regrets, allows us to respond voluntarily, and includes a mission. Saul, who was called from Damascus, made two things clear. One was to know Jesus and the other was to know one's mission. Whenever conflict or disappointment arises in your spiritual battle, please remember your calling as a spiritual warrior and cry out. Second, you must claim that you are saved. "One who has been chosen" means one who has been chosen, and the latter is a prerequisite for expressing the former. The calling is effective because one has been chosen. One is saved because one has been predestined and foreordained. However, this salvation has a richer meaning. Salvation is only the beginning. The Lord has rescued us and will deliver us. Salvation means becoming a priest of God and a holy nation. Christ is the answer and sufficiency. If you look at the miracle of manna, you must live as a truthful person, as well as solidify your calling and election. All you have to do is follow faithfully, take up your cross, and follow the Lord. Those who follow the Lord faithfully can live as disciples. (Matthew 4:19)) A disciple is a person who is accustomed to two things. He must focus on self-management and the mission of making disciples. In short, the only warrior in the spiritual war can win when he faithfully obeys the Lord's commands. In it, you are called to become a spiritual warrior. When you eat the word, which is spiritual food, and receive the grace that comes as an answer to prayer, which is spiritual drink, you can definitely win the spiritual battle given to you.

말세의 자녀교육 (계18:1-24) 2008. 5. 4.

바벨론 멸망 장면을 상세히 잘 보여주는 본문에서 직장, 가정, 사회, 개인의 장래에 관한 삶의 방법과 지혜를 배웁니다. 특히 자녀교 육이란 말이 한마디 없지만 우리 자녀들의 장래 발판이 이 세상의 종말시대이기 때문입니다. 베드로 서신에서 말하는 두 종류의 말세 즉 초림으로 시작되는 말세(벧전1:5)와 재림 직전의 말세입니다.(벧전3:12) 어린이주일을 맞이하여 "너희와 너희 자녀를 위해 울라 (눅23:28)" 하신 권고대로 우리는 어떻게 자녀를 교육해야합니까? 첫째. 죄를 두려워하는 자녀로 가르쳐야합니다. 21-24 절에 보면 맷돌을 바다에 던지는 것처럼 바벨론이 망한다고 했습니다. 그 멸망은 절대적이라서 결코 하지 않게 되리라"는 말이 5번이나 나옵니다. 결코 보이지 않고. 풍류 소리가 들리지 않고, 세공업자들 도 보이지 않고, 메돌 소리도 들리지 않고. 등불 빛도 보이지 않고. 신랑신부 성이 들리지 않는다는 것입니다. 전무후무한 심판입니 다. 마치 심장이 스톱하여 평행선을 그리듯이 복구가 전혀 불가능 하게되리라는 것입니다. 왜 이렇게 되었습니까? 한마디로 죄 때문 입니다. 그 죄란 어떤 것입니까? 하나님께 영광을 돌릴 무대를 커 신의 처소로 만든 죄이며, 더러운 영이 모이는 곳이 되었기 때문이 며. 가증한 새 곧 다른 나라와의 관계에서 우상장사를 하는 곳으로 만든 죄 때문입니다.(11-13) 그리고 음행의 죄 때문입니다. 이 죄 는 오늘날 얼마나 팽배한가요? 아니 우리의 삶이 그렇게 되어있지 나 않습니까?. 이 죄를 이길 수 있는 방법은 거룩을 추구는 길 뿐 입니다. 둘째. 환난 날에 주의 제단의 제물이 되게 해야합니다. 세 상은 사망 애통 흉년 불에 살라지는 환난의 연속일

것입니다. 천 재지변으로도 일어나지만 사람관계에도 일어납니다. 약육강식, 사회 제도, 교육 제도 등의 혼란에 파묻힌 우리는 주님을 바라보아야합 니다. 교회에 분명히 소속되어야합니다. 주님에게 바친 제물이 될 때 보장을 받습니다. 자녀교육의 가장 중요한 비결은 성경을 가르 치는 것입니다. 성경이 그를 사로잡게 해야 합니다. 그런 자리로 이 끌려면 많은 본들이 필요합니다. 제자의 본, 순종의 본이 있어야 함 니다. 도엑의 간사한 말을 듣고 깊은 고민에 빠진 다윗은 하나님 집의 푸른 강나무같이 하나님의 인자를 의지하였습니다.(시52:8) 환난당할 때 기도로 하나님을 의지하는 자녀가 복됩니다. 셋째, 종 말 재앙을 받지 않게 해야합니다. 종말 재앙을 받아 일순간에 망하지 않게 해야 합니다. 그러자면 우리는 하나님 제일주의로 살아가 야합니다. 고난을 친구 삼는 것을 가르쳐야합니다. 고난 속에서 견 디는 것을 배워야합니다. 시편 73편 신자는 악인의 번성과 득세함 을 보고 큰 고통 속에 있을 때 성소에 들어간 후, 결국을 알고 하 나님만을 더욱 더 신뢰했습니다. 그래서 우리는 당하는 고난 통해 연단을 잘 받는 길을 선택합니다. 고난을 모르는 사람은 뚜렷한 주 관을 갖기가 어렵습니다. 광풍에 휘날리는 유치기 신앙이기 때문입 니다. 남이 하니까 나도 하는 갈대처럼 약한 사람이 되는 것입니다. 무수한 재앙을 받지 않도록 고난 속에서 연단 받을 사람으로 가르 쳐 종말의 흐름 속에서 승리자로 키우시기를 바랍니다.

Education of children in the last days (Revelation 18:1-24) May 4, 2008.

From the text that shows the scene of Babylon's destruction in great detail, we learn life methods and wisdom regarding work, family, society, and the

individual's future. In particular, there is no word about children's education, but this is because the future foundation of our children is the end of the world. There are two types of end times mentioned in the Epistle of Peter: the end times that begin with the First Coming (1 Peter 1:5) and the last days just before the Second Coming (1 Peter 3:12). On Children's Sunday, "Weep for yourselves and for your children (Luke 23). :28)" How should we educate our children as you advise? First, we must teach our children to fear sin. In verses 21-24, it says that Babylon will fall like a millstone being thrown into the sea. The phrase "that destruction is absolute and will never happen" appears five times. It is never seen, the sound of wind and wind is not heard, the craftsmen are not seen, the sound of the stone is not heard, the light of the lamp is not seen, and the bride and groom are not seen. It is an unprecedented judgment. It is as if the heart has stopped and there is no way to restore it. In other words, what is the reason for giving glory to God? It is the sin of turning the stage into a place for God, it is because it has become a gathering place for unclean spirits, and it is the sin of making it an abominable bird, a place where idols are traded in relationships with other nations. (11-13) And the sin of fornication. Because how prevalent is this sin? Isn't that how our lives are? Second, the only way to overcome this sin is to become a sacrifice on the Lord's altar in the day of trouble. The world will be a series of tribulations, including death, mourning, famine, and burning, but it will also happen in human relationships as well. We must look to the Lord. You must clearly belong to the church. The most important secret in educating your child is to lead him to that position. We need examples. We must have examples of disciples and obedience. David, who was deeply distressed after hearing Doeg's treacherous words, relied on God's kindness like a green river tree in

God's house. (Psalm 52:8) Children who rely on God through prayer will be blessed. Third, we must avoid suffering at the end and be destroyed in an instant. We must learn to make friends. Psalm 73 After seeing the prosperity and prosperity of the wicked and entering the sanctuary, the believer trusted God more and more after knowing the end. So we choose the path of being well-refined through hardships. It is difficult for a person who does not know suffering to have a clear opinion. This is because it is a childish faith that is blowing in the wind. Because others do it, I become a weak person like a reed. I hope that you will teach them to be people who will be refined in hardships so that they will not suffer countless disasters, and raise them to become winners in the flow of the end times.

천국 가정의 실상 (계 19:1-8)2008. 5. 11.

바벨론 멸망은 하나님이 준비한 천국 가정을 이루는 수순입니다. 아마겟돈 전쟁과 함께 세상 멸망으로 완성될 본문은 하늘 음성 이 들리면서 찬양과 경배가 일어나고 어린양의 신부인 교회가 아름 답게 준비하는 혼인 모습으로 나타나기 때문입니다.(8) 첫째, 가정은 어떻게 시작되었습니까? 에덴에서 하나님 형상대 로 지음 받은 남자와 여자의 연합으로 가정이 시작되었습니다. 아 담을 잠들게 하여 그의 갈비대로 여자를 만들어 둘이 한 몸이 되게 하셨습니다. 동식물의 쌍을 만드신 이유는 번성을 위한 결합으로 허락하셨으나 사랑의 가정만큼은 둘이 한 몸을 이루게 하셔서 삼위 의 일치된 연합을 온 땅에 보이려는 하나님의 의도가 있었던 것처 럼 보입니다.(요17:11) 죄가 들어와 제일 먼저 무너진 것이 가정 연합이었습니다. 아담과 하와에게 수치심이 찾아 왔습니다. 그리고 형이 동생을 죽이고 라멕이 여러 아내를 두고. 함이 아버지의 수치 를 드러냄으로 저주받은 가정 파괴의 일들이 계속 일어났습니다. 그래서 누가복음 19:6에서 주님은 가정을 파괴하는 자들에게 창조 질서를 언급하시면서 하나님이 짝지어 주신 것을 사람이 나누지 못 한다고 응수하신 것을 보면 결혼은 단지 독처나 생육 수단 이상의 의미를 갖습니다. 가정은 장차 나타날 처국의 그림자이기 때문입니 다. 본문에 천국 가정의 실상이 어떻게 나타났습니까? 아버지께 영 광이 돌아가고, 만물이 아버지 말씀에 순종하고 경배하며, 혼인 연 합의 즐거움이 충만한 것을 보였습니다. 이것이 천국 가정의 실상 인 것입니다. 한 아버지를 모시고 그를 기쁘시게 하고 그를 영원히 즐기는 자리가 천국 가정이란 것입니다. 그래서 불완전하지만 지상 가정은 다른

기관보다 더 귀하게 여겨야 하는 것입니다. 둘째, 천국가정을 이루기위해 어디에 초점을 맞추어야합니까? 성도는 세마포로 단장하는 일에힘써야 합니다. 희고 깨끗한 세 마포란 성도의 옳은 행실이라고했습니다.(8)이것은 모든 교회가 항상 힘쓸 일입니다. 순종하는 마음과사랑의 마음과 섬김의 마음 을 항상 보존하라는 것입니다. 종말 시대에베드로는 십자가 지는 것을 갑옷으로 삼으라고 가르칩니다. 섬김의마음을 가리킵니다. 경손의마음을 가리킵니다. 여전히마음(영)의문제입니다. 종말에도 우리가 섬김의마음이 될 때 천국가정의 맛을누리게 된다는 것입니다. 다가오는 천국 가정을 바라보고 최선을 다해마음으로부터 공경, 순종, 섬김을 가져 큰 은혜를 받아 천국 가정의실상을 가정에 성취하는 자리로 나가시기를 축원합니다.

The reality of heavenly families (Revelation 19:1-8) 2008. 5. 11.

The destruction of Babylon is a step toward establishing the heavenly family prepared by God. This is because the text, which will be completed with the destruction of the world along with the Battle of Armageddon, is accompanied by praise and worship as the voice of heaven is heard, and the Church, the bride of the Lamb, appears as a beautifully prepared wedding.(8) First, how did the family begin? The family began in Eden with the union of a man and a woman created in the image of God. He put Adam to sleep and made a woman from his rib, so that the two became one flesh. The reason for creating pairs of plants and animals was to allow them to combine for prosperity, but it seems that God's intention was to show the whole earth the unity of the Trinity by making the two become one body in a loving family (John 17:11). When sin came in, the first thing that collapsed was the family unity. Shame

came to Adam and Eve. And as his older brother killed his younger brother, Lamech had multiple wives, and Ham exposed his father's shame, the cursed events of family destruction continued to occur. So, in Luke 19:6, when we see that the Lord responded to those who destroy families by mentioning the order of creation and saying that humans cannot separate what God has joined, marriage has a meaning beyond just being a single wife or a means of raising children. This is because the family is the shadow of the heaven that will appear in the future. How is the reality of the heavenly family revealed in the text? Glory was given to the Father, all things obeyed and worshiped the Father's words, and the joy of marital union was filled. This is the reality of heavenly families. A heavenly family is a place where one can serve one father, make him happy, and enjoy him forever. That is why, although imperfect, the earthly family must be valued more than other institutions. Second, where should we focus to create a heavenly family? Saints must strive to adorn themselves with fine linen. It is said that white and clean linen is the righteous conduct of the saints. (8) This is something that all churches should always strive for. It means to always preserve a heart of obedience, a heart of love, and a heart of service. In the end times, Peter teaches us to use cross-bearing as our armor. It refers to the heart of service. It refers to Kyeong-sun's heart. It is still a matter of the heart (spirit). Even in the end, when we have a heart of service, we will enjoy the taste of heavenly family. I pray that you will look forward to the coming heavenly family and do your best to receive great grace through reverence, obedience, and service from your heart and go on to achieve the reality of the heavenly family in your family.

충신과 진실 (계 19:9-13) 2008. 5. 18.

마지막 나타난 교회 장면은 백마 탄 주님의 모습입니다. 그의 머리에 면류관을 쓰고 불꽃같은 눈을 가지신 주님의 이름을 하나 님의 말씀이라. 했고 충신과 진실이라고 했습니다. 여기 나온 충신 과 진실은 'Faithful and True'라고 했는데 변함없는 성실성과 참 의 원천이란 말입니다. 하나님을 찬양한 시인의 말대로 "그의 인 자하심이 크고 진실하심이 영원함이로다(시117:2)"는 말이 예수님 에게 그대로 적중된 것입니다. 미얀마의 사이클론 피해에 이어 중국에 최대 강진으로 어떤 마 을은 80%가 죽고 실종된 무서운 재난이 일어난 지구촌 한 모퉁이 에 사는 우리는 더욱 더 충신과 진실이신 주님을 의지하며 이비 상한 종말시대를 승리로 나아가려 합니다. 먼저 우리는 어떻게 주 님이 많은 면류관을 얻은 승리를 할 수 있었는지를 잘 알아야 할 줄 믿습니다. 한마디로 하나님의 뜻에 충성했기 때문입니다. 그는 무엇에 충성하셨나요? 첫째. 자기 백성의 죄 사함에 충실하셨습니다. 8절에 피뿌림 의 옷을 입은 자로 보인 것이 바로 그 뜻입니다. 성도가 희고 깨 끗한 세마포 옷을 입게 된 것이 그리스도가 피 뿌림의 옷(홍포)을 입으셨기 때문입니다. 과거의 모든 죄, 현재의 모든 죄, 장래의 못 든 죄를 단번에 처리하셨기 때문에 우리는 희고 깨끗한 옷을 입을 수 있게 된 것입니다. 멜기세댁의 반차를 따라 된 그의 제사 직분 으로 우리는 영원한 치료를 받게 된 것입니다. 죄 사함 문제는 다 른 어떤 것보다도 성실하게 이루셨기에 어떤 절망 속에서도 우리 는 반드시 승리할 수 있습니다. 그의 죽음이 영 단번에 효력을 가 져온다는 사실을 믿으시기 바랍니다. (요일1:9) 둘째, 만물의 심판에 성실하셨습니다. 불꽃같은 눈을 가진 자 앞에서 불신자는 지옥

심판이고 신자에게는 구원과 상급이 주어집 니다. 그는 만물을 심판하심에 성실하십니다. 고통 속에 있는 사람 들의 원통한 문제를 낱낱이 공의로 판단하신다는 것입니다. 그는 의의 왕이시기 때문입니다. 이스라엘에 무수한 기회가 주어졌어도 믿지 못할 때 버림받았으나 백부장의 유감없는 믿음은 놀라운 결 과를 가져왔습니다. 아브라함과 함께하는 자리에 나갈 수 있게 된 것입니다. 이것은 모두 다 주님의 성실한 심판 때문입니다. 셋째, 말씀사역에 성실하셨고 하실 것입니다. 13절에 하나님 말씀이라 칭하더라고 했습니다. 죄 사함과 함께 모든 문제를 친히 해결하신 일을 하셨습니다. 이 모든 일을 지금도 말씀으로 하십니 다. 엘리시대의 어두움은 말씀을 받는 밭의 문제였습니다. 법궤만 가지고 가면 다 되는 줄 믿었지만 말씀에서부터 마음이 멀어진 외 식된 마음에는 하나님의 영광이 떠날 수밖에 없었습니다. 그러나 우리는 주님의 성실한 말씀 사역으로 구원을 받았습니다. 그를 믿 기만하면 그의 은혜가 내 것이 됩니다. 그의 충성된 사역은 이미 성취되었고 그 효력도 성실하게 이루어져 기어코 하나님께 영광을 돌리게 될 것입니다. 충신과 진실한 그의 사역을 찬양하며 내 것 으로 받아들이시기를 축원합니다.

Loyalty and Truth (Revelation 19:9-13) May 18, 2008.

The last church scene appears is the Lord on a white horse. The name of the Lord, who wears a crown on his head and has eyes like a flame of fire, is called the Word of God and is called Faithfulness and Truth. Loyalty and truth mentioned here are called 'Faithful and True', meaning they are the source of unchanging sincerity and truth. As the poet who praised God said, "His

lovingkindness is great and His faithfulness endures forever" (Psalm 117:2), these words were applied to Jesus. We, who live in a corner of the world where a terrible disaster occurred, following the cyclone damage in Myanmar and the strongest earthquake in China, with 80% of some villages dying and disappearing, are relying more and more on the Lord who is loyal and true, and will overcome this end times with victory. I'm trying to cover it. First, I believe we must understand well how the Lord was able to win the victory that earned him so many crowns. In short, it was because he was faithful to God's will. What was he loyal to? First, he was faithful in forgiving the sins of his people. That is what it means in verse 8 to be seen as a person clothed in blood sprinkling. The reason saints wear white and clean linen is because Christ wore a robe sprinkled with blood. Because He has dealt with all our past sins, all our present sins, and our future sins once and for all, we are now able to wear white and clean clothes. Through his priestly ministry following the order of Melchizedek, we receive eternal healing. Since God has accomplished the forgiveness of sins more faithfully than anything else, we can definitely win even in any despair. Please believe that his death will take effect once and for all. (1 John 1:9) Second, He was faithful in judging all things. In front of those with eyes like flames, non-believers are condemned to hell, while believers are given salvation and rewards. He is faithful in judging all things. It means that God judges the grievances of people in pain with justice. For he is the King of righteousness. Although Israel was given countless opportunities and was abandoned when they failed to believe, the centurion's unwavering faith brought about surprising results. He was able to go to the place where he was with Abraham. This is all because of the Lord's faithful judgment. Third, he has been and will be faithful in his ministry of the Word. Verse 13 says it is called the word of God. He did the work of personally solving all problems with the forgiveness of sins. He still does all of this through the Word. The darkness of Eli's time was a problem in the field where the Word was received. I believed that if I just took the Ark of the Covenant, everything would be done, but the glory of God had no choice but to leave my hypocritical heart, which had become distant from the Word. However, we were saved through the faithful ministry of the Lord's word. If I just believe in Him, His grace becomes mine. His faithful work has already been accomplished and its effectiveness will be fulfilled faithfully, bringing glory to God. I praise his faithfulness and sincere ministry and hope that you will accept him as mine.

천년왕국 (계19:17-20:3) 2008. 5. 25.

본문에 나오는 천년왕국에 관한 진리는 오늘을 사는 우리에게 큰 위로와 소망을 주어 우왕좌왕하지 않도록 합니다. 천년왕국을 빌미로 많은 이단들이 약한 신자들을 유혹하여 곤경 속에 빠트립니 다. 계시록의 주제가 교회 승리로 환난 많은 세상에서 교회를 괴롭 힌 붉은 용. 적그리스도인 짐승.. 그리고 거짓 선지자들이 사로잡혀 무저갱 유황불에 던지워지는 모습을 우리는 보면서 성경은 이 세상 이 그리스도 재림으로 즉시 백보좌 심판으로 나가 영생과 영벌로 마치지 않고 재림과 백보좌 심판 사이에 천년왕국 시대가 있음을 의도적으로 말하고 있습니다. 근 시기가. 꼭 1000년이라고 문자적 해석을 할 순 없어도 일정한 기간을 분명히 말하기 때문에 이것을 둘러싼 여러 해석이 따릅니다. 그 때 모든 성도는 다시 살아나 천 년동안 마귀 미혹이 전혀 없이 만물을 다스리는 천년통치시대가 일 어난다고 말합니다. 첫째. 천년왕국에 관한 세 가지 해석 - 후천년기설은 주로 퓨리 탄 신자들의 주장입니다. 고난의 때에 저 언덕에 하나님 나라를 세 우는 소망은 재림 직전에 큰 부흥의 때가 온다는 것입니다. 반드시 천년은 아니지만 그 때가 있다는 것이지요. 유명한 죠나단 에드워 드의 확신이 그렇습니다. 다음으로 무천년기설은 개혁주의자들이 따르는 견해로 신약 전체를 천년왕국시대로 보고 있습니다. 그 왕 이신 그리스도가 오심으로 이미 임한 하나님 나라를 강조하셨기 때 문입니다. 재림 전에 일어날 천년 통치로 보는 것을 후 천년기설, 이후의 통치로 보는 것을 전천년기설이라고 하는데 전 천년기설은 주로 세대주의자들의 주장으로 3절에 "살아서"를 첫째부활로 해석 하기 때문입니다. 그래서 문자적으로 반드시

1000년이라고 주장하 기도 합니다. 세대주의자들은 시대를 6000년으로 보고 실제로 1000 년 기간을 통치하는 천년왕국시대가 도래한다고 주장하며 시대마다 구원받는 방법이 다르다고 하며 심지어 선교 프로젝트를 2000년까 지만 세웠다가 변경했다고 전합니다. 이것을 세대주의적 전천년기 설이라 부르는데 비성경적인 증거를 갖습니다. 그런데 역사적전천 년기설(전천년설+무천년설)이 있습니다. 문자적, 천년이 아니지만 이 땅에서 일정한 기간 왕 노릇한다는 것입니다. 유명한 칼빈주의 신학자인 바빙이나 한국의 정암의 견해인데 저도 이것 따르기 좋아 합니다. 다시 정리하면 우리가 이 땅에서 이미 그 왕국을 맛보며 살다 재림과 아울러 어느 일정기간 만물을 통치하는 기회를 가진 후 영생 영벌로 나가게 되는 것으로 믿는 견해입니다. • 둘째, 천년왕국에 참여할 자세-세대주의 전천년설을 제외한 세 견해 중, 우리는 성경적 신앙을 따라 자유롭게 선택할 수 있습 니다. 더 중요한 것은 재림을 어떤 자세로 맞는가에 있습니다. 성경 에는 크게 두 자세를 요구합니다. 첫째, 경건을 힘쓰라고 가르칩니 다. 열 처녀 비유가 보이듯 깨어 사모하며 교훈의 정조를 지키라는 것입니다. 둘째. 충성을 힘써야합니다. 달란트 비유에, 보인대로, 현실에 충실한 삶을 사는 것입니다. 작은 일에 충성하라는 것입니다. 이 복된 명령에 모두 순종하기를 • 축원합니다.

Millennial Kingdom (Revelation 19:17-20:3) May 25, 2008.

The truth about the millennium found in the text gives us great comfort and hope as we live today, preventing us from feeling confused. Under the pretext of the millennium, many heretics tempt weak believers and lead them into trouble. The theme of the Book of Revelation is the victory of the church, and

as we see the red dragon, the anti-Christian beast, and false prophets who tormented the church in a world full of tribulations being captured and thrown into the abyss and fire and brimstone, the Bible tells us that this world will immediately return to the Great White Throne with the second coming of Christ. Rather than proceeding to judgment and ending with eternal life and eternal punishment, we are intentionally saying that there will be a millennium between the Second Coming and the White Throne Judgment. Although the recent period cannot be interpreted literally as 1,000 years, it clearly refers to a certain period of time, so there are many interpretations surrounding this. It is said that at that time, all the saints will be resurrected and the era of the thousand-year reign will take place where all things will be ruled without the devil's deception for a thousand years. First,_Three interpretations of the millennium - Postmillennialism is mainly the claim of Puritan believers. The hope of establishing God's kingdom on that hill in times of suffering is that a time of great revival will come just before the Second Coming. It may not necessarily be a thousand years, but there will be a time. Such is the famous conviction of Jonathan Edwards. Next, amillennialism is the view followed by reformists and views the entire New Testament as the millennium era. This is because it emphasized the kingdom of God that has already come with the coming of Christ, the King. This is called postmillennialism, which sees it as a thousand-year reign that will occur before the Second Coming, and premillennialism, which sees it as the reign afterward. This is because premillennialism is mainly the argument of dispensationalists and interprets "living" in verse 3 as the first resurrection. So, some argue that it is literally 1,000 years. Dispensationalists see the era as 6,000 years and claim that the millennium will actually reign for 1,000 years.

They say that the method of salvation is different for each era, and even say that missionary projects were set up until 2000 and then changed. This is called the dispensational premillennial theory, and it has unbiblical evidence. However, there is a historical premillennial theory (premillennialism + amillennialism). Although it is not literally a thousand years, it means that he will reign on this earth for a certain period of time. This is the view of famous Calvinist theologians Babing and Korea's Jeongam, and I like to follow this. To summarize, it is a view that we believe that we have already tasted the kingdom on this earth, and at the Second Coming, we have the opportunity to rule over all things for a certain period of time and then go on to eternal life and eternal punishment. • Second, the attitude to participate in the millennium - dispensationalism_ Among the three views excluding premillennialism, we can freely choose according to biblical faith. What is more important is the attitude with which we welcome the Second Coming. The Bible largely requires two attitudes. First, it teaches us to strive for godliness. As the parable of the ten virgins shows, we must be alert, long for them, and keep the chastity of the teachings. Second, we must strive for loyalty. As shown in the parable of the talents, it is to live a life faithful to reality. It means being faithful in small things. I pray that everyone will obey • this blessed command. 두 종류의 부활 (계20:4-15) 2008. 6. 1.

우리는 지금 인류의 역사가 그리스도를 중심하여 움직이는 구속 사임을 믿는 사람들입니다. 다시 말하면 성경에 수많은 사건과 수 많은 인물이 오로지 그리스도와 직접 간접으로 관련을 가짐을 알며 현재의 모든 세상의 일들이 그리스도와 깊은 관련을 가지고 있음을 믿습니다. 참새 한 마리가 땅에 떨어지는 것도 하나님 허락이 있어 야 하고 그리스도의 다스리는 손길 속에 포함된 것을 우리는 믿습 니다. 이 시간, 우리는 인류 역사의. 마지막 중 마지막. 사건을 바라봅니다. 그리스도 재림을 전후하여 이루어질 두 큰 사건이 나옵니다. 두 부 활 사건과 그 후에 백 보좌 앞에서 온 인류가 심판받는 사건입니 다. 현재 우리가 어떤 자리에 있든지 이 보좌 앞에서 최종 심판을 받게 될 것입니다. 그리스도 중심하지 아니한 모든 죄악이 다 드러 나 하나 하나 심판을 받게 되는 반면. 그리스도 중심한 모든 선행 이 다 드러나게 될 것입니다. 더 놀라운 것은 우리 모두가 첫째 부 활에 참여하여 왕 같은 제사장으로서 천년왕국의 통치에 참여하다 가 곧이어 영생의 나라로 들어가게 된다는 사실입니다. 여러분들은 이 부활에 참여할 자로서 어떤 증거를 가졌습니까? 여러분 속에 영생이 있어야합니다. 영생이 있다는 말은 그리스도가 중심에 계셔야한다는 말입니다.(요일5:11-12.갈2:20). 이 영생을 가 진 자는 아무리 절망에서라도 소망 가운데 평안이 있습니다. 이 시 간, 우리는 두 부활을 비교함으로 목자의 달에, 목자이신 주의 음성 을 듣고 따라감으로 그 영광스러운 자리에 나가기를 축원합니다. 첫째. 첫째 부활. 5절에 "첫째 부활"이 나옵니다. 읽어 보세요. 그리스도와 1000년 왕 노릇하기 위해 살아나는 부활입니다. 요한의 말대로 그들은

복있는 구워받은 자로 둘째 사망이 다스리지 못하며 거공한잡이고 운이 익을 받지 않을 수회자들입니다 전예소 휴걸 에게 표를 받지 않은 자로서 주님과 함께 심판하는 권세를 가진 자 라고 했습니다.(요1:12) 그들은 백부장에게 약속하신 내용대로 열방 을 심판하며 그리스도와 더불어 왕 노릇하게 될 것입니다. 레위 제 사장 직이 그리스도 제사장으로 완성이 되어 그 안에서 우리는 만 인 제사장의 복된 자리에 들어가는 넉넉한 구원을 받은 사람들입니 다. 두 가지를 확인하기 바랍니다. 둘째, 둘째 사망. 14절에 또 다른 부활이 나옵니다. 1000년이 지 난 후 죽은 자들이 살아나 자기 행위대로 심판을 받는 장면입니다. 은밀한 죄도 다 드러납니다. 무저갱에서 잠깐 놓인 마귀가 공격할 때 하늘에서 불이 내려와 모두 제하고 불택자들은 백보좌 심판대에 서 선악 간 심판을 받습니다. 심판기준은 믿음이고 심판대상은 모든 도덕적 대상인 인류이며 불신자는 형벌의 등급이 매겨지고 신자 는 상급의 심판이 주어질 것입니다. 심판 기준으로 3가지 책인 성 경, 생명책, 기념책(행위책)이 펼쳐지게 될 것입니다. 가장 상급을 많이 받는 품목이 영혼구워입니다. 그리스도 중심한, 일일수록 가치 가 있으므로 이 땅에 있는 동안 지옥에 들어갈 심령들을 구원하시 기 바랍니다.(행1:8)

Two types of resurrection (Revelation 20:4-15) 2008. 6. 1.

We are people who believe in the redemptive resignation in which human history now centers on Christ. In other words, I know that countless events and characters in the Bible are directly and indirectly related to Christ, and I believe that all current world events have a deep connection to Christ. We believe that even a sparrow falling to the ground requires God's permission

and is included in Christ's ruling hand. At this time, we are looking at the last of the last events in human history. There are two major events that will occur before and after the second coming of Christ. These are the events of the two resurrections and the subsequent judgment of all mankind in front of the White Throne. No matter where we are now, we will receive the final judgment before this throne. While all sins that are not Christ-centered will be revealed and judged one by one, all Christ-centered good deeds will be revealed. What is even more surprising is that we all participate in the first resurrection, participate in the reign of the millennium as royal priests, and then enter the kingdom of eternal life. What evidence do you have as participants in this resurrection? You must have eternal life within you. Eternal life means that Christ must be at the center (1 John 5:11-12, Gal 2:20). Those who have this eternal life have peace in hope no matter how despairing they are. At this time, we compare the two resurrections and hope that we can go to that glorious place in the month of the shepherd by hearing and following the voice of the Lord, our shepherd. First, the first resurrection. "First resurrection" appears in verse 5. try reading this please. It is the resurrection that comes back to life to reign with Christ for 1,000 years. As John said, they are those who have been blessed and saved, over whom the second death does not rule, and they are just a bunch of magnanimous believers who will not benefit from fortune. They are those who have not received the mark from Jeon Yeso Hugeol and have the authority to judge with the Lord. (John 1:12) They will judge the nations and reign with Christ as promised to the centurion. The Levitical priesthood has been completed with the priesthood of Christ, and in it we are people who have received sufficient salvation to enter the blessed position of priests of all people. Please check two things. Second, second death. Another resurrection appears in verse 14. This is a scene where, 1,000 years later, the dead come back to life and are judged according to their actions. Even secret sins are revealed. When the devil, who was temporarily released from the bottomless pit, attacks, fire comes down from heaven and destroys them all, and the non-elect are judged between good and evil at the White Throne Judgment Seat. The standard of judgment is faith, and the object of judgment is all moral subjects, humanity. Nonbelievers will be graded in punishment, and believers will be given a higher judgment. Based on the judgment, three books will be opened: the Bible, the Book of Life, and the Book of Remembrance (Book of Works). The item that receives the most rewards is soul salvation. The more Christcentered work is, the more valuable it is, so please save the souls who will be sent to hell while they are on this earth (Acts 1:8).

신천신지(계21:1-18) 2008. 6. 8.

오늘 생각하는 신천신지 곧 새 하늘과 새 땅은 모든 역사가 마쳐 진 후. 우리가 사는 이 땅이 사라지고 새로운 하늘과 땅이 펼쳐질 것입니다. 사도요한은 바로 이 장면을 보았습니다. (1) 우리는 모두 이 세계에 들어갈 자들인데 이것으로 감사하며 그 날을 사모하며 기다려야할 줄 믿습니다. 바울은 그 나라에 들어가려면 많은 환난 을 거쳐야한다고 말했습니다. 그 세계에 들어가려면 회개하고 믿는 것이 기본입니다. 본문을 통해 우리는 그 새로운 세계에 적응하기 위하여 어떻게 하라고 말씀하십니까? 첫째, 새사람으로의 변화를 받아야합니다. 새 하늘과 새 땅이라고 하니까 현재와 다른 세계가 이루어진다는 것입니다. 마치 우주에 올라가려면 그 세계에 적응하는 훈련이 필요한 것처럼 새 사람으로 의 변화된 사람만이 들어갈 수 있습니다. 물고기를 보기 위해 잠수 복을 입어야 하듯이 새 질서에 적응하려면 하늘 성품으로 변화되어 야하다는 것입니다. 여기 "새로운"이란 말은 헬라어 카이논이란 말 인데 그 뜻은 종별상, 품질상 새 것이란 뜻입니다. 신령한 성품, 신 령한 사람으로의 변화가 일어나야하는 것입니다. 어떤 이는 세상에 있는 것이 아닌 전혀 다른 것으로 변화되어야 한다고 말하나 성경 은 옛 것이 있어도 새 것으로 변화된 세계를 이루는 것으로 볼 수 있습니다. 에스겔 생수가 사해를 생명 바다로 만든 것처럼 죽을 몸 과 죽은 성품을 성령으로 완전히 새롭게 하실 것입니다. 베드로가 벧후 3:10-12에서 체질이 뜨거운 불에 풀어지리라고 한 말은 아주 딴 종류의 것으로의 변화라고 말할 수 있습니다. 그 세계는 동물도 살 것입니다.(사11:6-9 롬8:19-22) 그리고 새 예루살렘이 내려옵니 다. 이것은 완전한 승리의

교회 모습입니다. 신부가 신랑을 위해 단 정한 새로운 모습으로 나타날 것입니다. 우리가 여기에 소속된 것을 믿는다면 우리는 새로운 성품으로 변화를 받아야하는 것이 당연 한 것입니다. 그러면 새모습이란 어떤 것일까요? 하나님을 닮은 형상일 것입니다. 그것은 완전한 진실, 완전한 거룩, 완전한 의의 성품으로 가득 차게 될 것입니다. 둘째, 순종의 사람이 되어야합니다. 하나님과 교회와의 관계를 군신관계표현했는데 이것이 언약의 골자입니다. 아브라함과 다윗 의 언약에도이것이 언급되었지만 새 언약에는 이 관계가 더 깊이 연합된 것을 이미 말씀했습니다. 군신관계란 순종의 백성이 되게 하신다는 것입니다. 하나님과 그의 뜻을 반역하던 모든 성품을 제 하시고 그대로 순종하여준비된 "생명수 샘물을 값없이 받게 되리 라는 것입니다 셋째, 사랑의 사람만이 적응할 수 있습니다. 군신관 계보다 더 농도 짙은 부자 사랑 관계가 지배하는 곳입니다. 이것은 생명을 나누는 관계이기 때문입니다. 나는 저의 하나님이 되고 그는 내 아들이 되리라는 것입니다.

New heaven and new earth (Revelation 21:1-18) 2008. 6. 8.

The new heaven and new earth that we are thinking about today will be when, after all history is completed, this earth we live on will disappear and a new heaven and earth will unfold. Apostle John saw this very scene. (1) We are all those who will enter this world, and I believe that we should be thankful for this and long for that day as we wait. Paul said that he must go through many tribulations to enter the kingdom. He said that in order to enter that world, repentance and faith are fundamental. What does the text tell us to do to adapt to that new world? First, you must be transformed into a new person. The new

heaven and new earth mean that a world different from the present will be created. Just as going up to space requires training to adapt to that world, only people who have changed into new people can enter. Just as one must wear a diving suit to see fish, one must change into a heavenly nature to adapt to the new order. The word "new" here is the Greek word kainon, which means new in type and quality. A change into a spiritual character and a spiritual person must occur. Some say that it must be changed into something completely different from what is in the world, but the Bible can be seen as forming a world where the old has been transformed into the new. Just as Ezekiel's living water turned the Dead Sea into a sea of life, your mortal body and dead nature will be completely renewed by the Holy Spirit. When Peter said in 2 Peter 3:10-12 that the elements would be melted with fervent heat, it could be said to be a change of a very different kind. Animals will also live in that world. (Isaiah 11:6-9 Romans 8:19-22) And New Jerusalem will come down. This is the church in complete triumph. The bride will appear in a dapper new look for her groom. If we believe that we belong here, it is natural that we must be transformed into a new nature. So what does the new look look like? It will be an image that resembles God. It will be filled with a character of perfect truth, perfect holiness, and perfect righteousness. Second, you must become a person of obedience. The relationship between God and the church was expressed as a military-divine relationship, and this is the gist of the covenant. Although this was mentioned in the covenant between Abraham and David, we have already mentioned that this relationship is more deeply united in the new covenant. The military-subject relationship means that we become obedient people. You will get rid of all the dispositions that were rebelling against God and His will, and obey Him and receive the prepared "water of

life" freely. Third, only people who love can adapt. The love relationship between father and son, which is more intense than the military-lord relationship, dominates. Because this is a life-sharing relationship, I will be my God and he will be my son.

기록된 말씀 (계22:18-21) 2008. 7. 6.

1517년 마틴 루터로 시작된 종교개혁은 "성경은 하나님의 말씀 이다"는 확신에서 시작되었습니다. 이 워리는 칼빈에게 와서 더 확실한 워리로 굳혀지다가 영국 퓨리탄에 와서 "걸어 다니는 성 경", "성경 위에 세운 가정과 사회"를 이루는 소원으로 나타났다 습니다. 이 원리는 성경의 3가지 특성, 권위성, 명백성, 그리고 충 족성 (종결성)이란 말로 요약됩니다. 우리가 생각하는 성경 마지막 책, 마지막 부분에 도장을 치듯이 증거한 것은 처지를 말씀으로 창조하시고 다스리시고 기록된 말씀 으로 구원하시는 성경 역사가 그 마지막을 말씀 자체가 말씀의 보 증이 되는 것은 무슨 뜻입니까? 기록된 말씀인 성경으로 돌이키려 는 성령의 뜻이 보여집니다. 여기서 보인 성령의 계시는 어떤 것입 니까? 첫째, 성경만이 하나님의 말씀이란 것입니다. 18.19절에 이 책 의 예언은 먼저 요한 계시록을 말하지만 이것은 다른 성경과 연결 되어있기 때문에 성경 66권을 모두 말하는 것입니다. 어떤 이는 66권 다른 것을 더하기를 좋아하지만 사도성을 무시한 내용이 많다는 사실에 주의해야합니다. 우리는 성경 66권이 하나님 말씀이 라는 사도의 주장을 그대로 믿습니다. 성경은 1500년 40여명의 저자의 기록이지만 하나의 계시입니다. 동식물이나 인체처럼 구약과 신약이 긴밀한 유기적 관계로 이루어 졌음을 이해해야 합니다. 예를 들면 바벨탑사건. 구약의 아브라함. 다윗의 승리 등은 신약의 복음인 그리스도 중심한 해석을 해야만 풀립니다. 그러므로 우리에게 성경을 하나님의 살아있는 말씀으로 대하는 긴장감이 늘 같이해야합니다. 둘째, 성경의 구원계시는 요한계시록으로 끝났다고 선포합니다. 특별계시는 계시록 22장으로

마치는 보증을 두 가지로 언급합니다. 하나는 이 예언에 더하면 재앙을 더한다고 했고 빼면 생명나무와 거룩한 성 참여하는데서 제하신다 하셨습니다. 성경 자체가 성경의 종결성을 주장하는 셈입니다. 성경의 계시는 성경자체가 보증하는 것을 믿고 대해야합니다. 이 말은 성경을 바로 대할 때 성경의 생 명성에 사로잡힌다는 말도 됩니다. 세상의 모든 기준이 점점 흐릿 해지는 때 우리는 의와 가치관의 기준을 성경으로 삼고 성경으로 돌아가야 합니다. 그리하여 성경의 생명성에 접할 때 길이 열리고 새 세계가 열리며 저 세계의 소리를 듣고 확신하여 소망에 넘치게 됩니다. 이것이 개혁자들이 믿고 따르고 경험한 성경의 생명입니다. 고린도 교회의 실패는 어디 있었나요? 성경의 보증을 무시했기 때문입니다. 기록된 예언의 생명에 접하는 삶을 살아가시기를 축위 합니다.

Written Word (Revelation 22:18-21) 2008. 7. 6.

The Reformation, which began with Martin Luther in 1517, began with the conviction that "the Bible is the word of God." This principle was solidified into a clearer principle with Calvin, and then with the British Puritans, it emerged as a wish to achieve a "walking Bible" and "a family and society built on the Bible." This principle is summarized in the three characteristics of the Bible: authority, clarity, and sufficiency (conclusion). What does it mean that the word itself is the guarantee of the end of the Bible's history of creating heaven and earth with words, governing it, and saving people with the written word? ? The Holy Spirit's intention to turn to the written Word, the Bible, is seen. What is the revelation of the Holy Spirit shown here? First, the Bible is the only word of God. In verses 18 and 19, the prophecy in this book first

refers to the Book of Revelation, but since it is connected to other Bibles, it refers to all 66 books of the Bible. Some people like to add other things to Book 66, but we must be careful that there is a lot of content that ignores the apostolicity. We believe the Apostle's claim that the 66 books of the Bible are the Word of God. Although the Bible is written by over 40 authors over 1500 years, it is a revelation. We must understand that the Old Testament and the New Testament have a close organic relationship, just like animals, plants, and the human body. For example, the Tower of Babel incident, Abraham in the Old Testament, David's victory, etc. can only be solved through a Christcentered interpretation of the New Testament gospel. Therefore, we must always feel the tension of treating the Bible as the living word of God. Second, we declare that the salvation revelation of the Bible ended with the Book of Revelation. Special Revelation ends with Revelation chapter 22 and mentions two assurances. One is that if you add to this prophecy, you will add disaster, and if you subtract from it, you will be excluded from participating in the tree of life and the holy city. The Bible itself claims the finality of the Bible. The revelation of the Bible must be treated with faith in what the Bible itself guarantees. This means that when you approach the Bible rightly, you are captivated by its life. When all standards in the world are becoming increasingly blurred, we must return to the Bible, making it the standard for righteousness and values. Thus, when we come into contact with the life of the Bible, a path opens up, a new world opens up, we hear the voice of the other world, become confident, and become overflowing with hope. This is the life of the Bible that the reformers believed, followed, and experienced. Where was the failure of the Corinthian church? This is because they ignored

the guarantees of the Bible. I pray that you will live a life that is in contact with the life of the recorded prophecy.

신령한 위로를 누려라 (고후1:1-6) 2008. 7. 13.

바울은 서신을 시작하면서 인사와 함께 하늘 위로로 인한 찬양 과 고난 속에 있는 교회에 위로의 메시지를 전합니다. 어떻게 하 늘 위로를 받아 누린다고 말합니까? 첫째. 위로의 하나님과 교제함으로 누립니다.(1-3) 인사에서 바울은 자신의 사도됨을 주장하면서 하나님과 예수 그리스도에서 나 온 은혜와 평강을 기원하고 있습니다. 그 인사 자체가 위로입니다. 위로가 어디 있느냐 사도의 인사가 액면 그대로만 될 수 있다면 이 것이 진정한 위로입니다. 이 위로는 반드시 성부와의 바른 관계에 서 나옵니다. 그는 모든 위로의 아버지이십니다. 그리고 성자와의 관계에서 나옵니다. 예수 그리스도 안에 거하는 생활이 성실하게 이루어질 때만 그 위로가 우리의 것이 됩니다. 성령과의 불통하면 위로를 누리지 못하기 때문에 성령의 인도를 환영해야합니다. 성령 의 이끄심에 예민하려면 말씀에 집중해야합니다. 둘째, 위해 주는 사람이 됨으로서 누립니다.(4) 성삼위 위로는 우리가 누리는 것만을 목적하지 않았습니다. 자기 위로만 추구하던 우리는 우리 주변에 위로가 없어 절망하는 사람들을 위로하는데 눈 이 뜨여져야합니다. 이것이 우리를 부르신 하나님의 목적임을 잊지 말아야합니다. 그래서 바울은 6절에 하나님의 궁극적 목적은 우리 로 위로의 사람 즉 위로를 받는 것만이 아니고 다른 사람을 위로하는 도구가 되게 하려는데 있습니다. 복의 근원이 되게 하신 것은 온 천하 모든 사람에게 이 복을 나누어 주려는 것입니다. (창12:3) 부활한 주님이 사도들에게 나타나 아버지가 나를 보낸 것처럼 나도 너희를 세상에 보내노라고 명하신 것은 교회에게 주신 지상명령입 니다. (요20:19-23) 신자는 위로의 도구가 되지 않으면

실업자 같이 권태와 게으름 에 빠져 받은 것마저도 잃은 사람처럼 살아갈 수 있습니다. 모슬렘 의 급속한 확산으로 경종을 울리는 때, 우리는 진정한 위로이신 예수를 온 세상에 전할 목표를 가지고 살아가야합니다. 셋째, 자기 고난에 입 맞출 때 위로를 누립니다.(4-6) 위로와 고 난은 서로 다른 것처럼 보여도 깊은 관계가 있습니다. 고난이 위로 의 통로임은 경험해 본 사람들의 고백입니다. 일부러 고생하는 금욕은 성경에서 가르치는 것이 아닙니다. 자아숭배이기 때문입니다. 어떻게 고난을 사랑할 수 있는가요? 하나님의 섭리의 손을 볼 수 있어야하고 합력하여 선을 이루는 하나님의 결론을 내 것으로 인 정하며(롬8:28) 현재가 내게 허락된 최선임을 받아들여야합니다. 그 래서 바울은 하늘 위로를 체험했으며 위로의 사람으로 변했으며 위 로하는 법을 터득한 것입니다. 신령한 하늘 위로로 충만한 삶을 살아 이 세상에 불평을 공급하지 아니하고 위로로 가득 채우시기를 축원합니다.

Enjoy spiritual comfort (2 Corinthians 1:1-6) July 13, 2008.

As Paul begins his letter, he delivers a greeting and a message of praise for heavenly consolation and consolation to the church in suffering. How can you say that you receive and enjoy heavenly comfort? first. We enjoy fellowship with the God of comfort. (1-3) In his greeting, Paul claims to be an apostle and prays for grace and peace that come from God and Jesus Christ. That greeting itself is comforting. Where is the consolation? If the apostle's greeting can only be taken at face value, this is true consolation. This comfort must come from a right relationship with the Father. He is the Father of all comfort. And he comes from his relationship with the saint. That comfort becomes ours only when we live faithfully in Jesus Christ. We must welcome

the guidance of the Holy Spirit because we cannot enjoy comfort if we do not communicate with the Holy Spirit. To be sensitive to the guidance of the Holy Spirit, you must focus on the Word. Second, we enjoy it by becoming a giver. (4) The purpose of the comfort of the Holy Trinity was not only for us to enjoy. We who only seek comfort for ourselves must open our eyes to comfort those who are despairing because there is no comfort around us. We must not forget that this is God's purpose in calling us. So, Paul says in verse 6, God's ultimate purpose is to make us people of comfort, that is, not just those who receive comfort, but also tools to comfort others. God made us the source of blessings so that we could share these blessings with everyone in the world. (Genesis 12:3) The resurrected Lord appeared to the apostles and commanded them to send you into the world, just as his Father has sent me. This is the Great Commission to the Church. (John 20:19-23) If a believer does not become a tool of comfort, he or she may live like an unemployed person, lost in boredom and laziness and even losing what he or she has received. At a time when we are alarmed by the rapid spread of Islam, we must live with the goal of spreading Jesus, who is true comfort, to the whole world. Third, we enjoy comfort when we kiss our own suffering (4-6) Even though comfort and suffering seem different, they are deeply related. It is the confession of those who have experienced it that suffering is a path to comfort. Deliberately suffering abstinence is not taught in the Bible. Because it is self-worship. How can you love suffering? We must be able to see the hand of God's providence, acknowledge God's conclusion of working together for good as ours (Romans 8:28), and accept that the present is the best available to us. So Paul experienced heavenly comfort, turned into a person of comfort, and learned

how to comfort. He prays that he will live a life filled with spiritual heavenly comfort and not bring complaints to this world, but fill it with comfort.

기도로 얻은 은사 (고후 1:7-11) 2008. 7. 20.

은사와 은혜를 구분해서 이해할 때 성경을 깨닫는데 도움을 받을 수 있습니다. 은혜란 죄 사항 곧 신자라면 누구나 공동으로 받을 수 있는 선물이라면 (엡2:8-9) 은사란 사역을 감당하게 하려고 주시는 선물을 가리킵니다 므나 비유는 전자에 해당되고 달란 트 비유는 후자에 해당됩니다. 사도 바울은 인사와 더불어 고난과 시험 속에 있는 고린도 교회에 하나님의 위로가 함께하기를 기도 한 후, 곧 이어 그 위로가 임하는 루트인 기도를 요청하면서 이 어두운 때를 잘 지나도록 기도의 선물을 받으라고 합니다. 어떤 점에서 기도로 얻은 은사가 필요합니까? 첫째, 모든 고난에서 구워받기 위해 필요합니다. 우리의 구워이 예수 그리스도를 믿음으로 시작되는 것은 변함없는 절대 진리입니다. 구체적인 구워이 성립되는 정보를 아는 것과 사랑하는 느낌이 필요하지만 무엇보다 의지적 교통이 필요합니다. 이 교통이 기도 입니다. 내 마음의 의사를 주께 아뢰는 것이 기도입니다. 그래서 우리는 기도함으로 구원을 받습니다. 바울은 이 구원 범위를 과거 현재, 미래에서의 구워 세 가지로 말합니다. 화난의 소용돌이 속에 서 어떻게 이길까요? 기도하라는 것입니다. 불황에서 건짐 받기를 구하시기 바랍니다. 반드시 주님은 우리 믿음의 기도를 응답하실 것입니다. 둘째. 하나님만을 신뢰하는 정점에 이르기 위해 필요합 니다. 바울은 사형선고를 받은 상황에서 기도로 얻은 은사로 살아 났음을 간증하고 있습니다. 살 소망까지 끊어진 지경이에서 거기 서 기도할 때 하나님이 구해주셨다고 바울은 고백합니다. 어떤 자 리에 나갔습니까? 오직 하나님만을 신뢰하는 정점에 도달한 것입 니다. 예수님이 탄 배에도

광풍이 올려왔을 때.제자들에게 기도의 정점에 나가라고 가르쳤습니다. 그것은 바로 예수님이 누구인가를 알고 그 분에게 모든 것을 매어다는 것입니다. 오직 하나님만 신 뢰하는 마음을 갖는 것이 하나님의 목표이며 성령의 목표이며 주 님이 소원하는 목표임을 잊지 말고 기도의 정점에 나가시기 바랍 니다. 셋째. 풍성한 열매를 맺기 위해 필요합니다. 마지막으로 바울이 관찰한 기도 은사의 영향은 3가지가 있습니다. 1) 소망이 견고해 파요합니다. 졌습니다. 문제가 여러 차례 일어났어도 그들 속의 소망은 더해 간 것입니다. 기도하는 자에게는 항상 소망이 일어나도록 되어있 습니다. 이것이 기도로 얻은 은사입니다. 2) 견디게 했습니다. 모든 환난을 잘 견디게 했다는 말입니다. 기도하는 사람이 고난을 이깁니다. 견디는 것이 그냥 나오는 것이 아닙니다. "사랑은 오래 참고 모든 것을 견디며..." 기도 속에서 이것을 배우는 것입니다. 3) 덕을 세웁니다.(감사) - 덕은 윤리와 도덕문제입니다. 그러나 인간에게서 나온 덕 속에는 독이 들어있습니다. 기독교의 덕은 기 도에서 나오는 것이어야 합니다. 기도의 수고로 얻은 선물을 깊이 체험하여 바울처럼 풍성한 은혜를 누리는 사람. 가장 아름다움 사 람으로 살 수 있기 바랍니다

Gifts obtained through prayer (2 Corinthians 1:7-11) July 20, 2008.

Understanding the difference between gifts and grace can help you understand the Bible. While grace refers to sins, a gift that all believers can receive in common (Ephesians 2:8-9), a gift refers to a gift given to enable one to carry out a ministry. The parable of the minas corresponds to the former, and the parable of the talents corresponds to the latter. It's possible. Apostle Paul gave

greetings and prayed that God's comfort would be with the Corinthian church in suffering and testing. He then asked for prayer, the route through which that comfort comes, and received the gift of prayer to help them get through this dark time. It is said. In what ways do you need gifts obtained through prayer? first. It is necessary to be saved from all suffering. It is an unchanging, absolute truth that our salvation begins with faith in Jesus Christ. It requires knowing the information that constitutes specific salvation and the feeling of love, but above all, it requires volitional communication. This communication is prayer. Prayer is expressing the intentions of my heart to the Lord. So we are saved by praying. Paul talks about the scope of this salvation in three areas: past, present, and future. How do we win in the whirlpool of tribulation? It means praying. Please pray for deliverance from the recession. The Lord will surely answer our prayers of faith. second. It is necessary to reach the peak of trusting only in God. Paul testifies that he survived through the gift he received through prayer when he was sentenced to death. Paul confesses that God saved him when he was standing there praying, having lost all hope of living. What kind of place did you go to? We have reached the peak of trusting only in God. When a storm hit the boat Jesus was in, he taught his disciples to go out to pray. It means knowing who Jesus is and binding everything to Him. Please do not forget that having a heart that trusts only in God is God's goal, the goal of the Holy Spirit, and the goal desired by the Lord, and go to the peak of prayer, third. It is needed to bear abundant fruit. Lastly, there are three effects of the gift of prayer that Paul observed. 1) My hope is solid and I pray for it. I lost. Even though problems arose several times, the hope within them only increased. Hope will always come to those who pray. This is a gift obtained through prayer. 2) It made me endure. It

means that it has helped me endure all tribulations well. People who pray overcome hardships. Enduring doesn't just happen. "Love is patient and endures all things..." We learn this in prayer. 3) Build virtue (gratitude) - Virtue is a matter of ethics and morals. However, the virtue that comes from humans contains poison. Christian virtue must come from prayer. I hope that you can deeply experience the gifts you have received through your efforts in prayer and live like Paul, a person who enjoys abundant grace and the most beautiful person.

기름부음을 따르라 (고후 1:12-24) 2008. 7. 27.

오늘 성례주일로 지키면서 우리 안에 일하시는 성령 하나님에 관해 생각하려합니다. 바울은 고린도 교회에 대해 육체대로 행하지 않고 성령으로 행한다는 사실을 강조하기를 육체로 행치 않고 양심을 따라 하나님의 은혜로 행한다(12)고 말합니다. 그래서 자기가 고린도 교회에 가지 않고 실라와 디모데를 보넨 것도 그 속에 일하 는 성령의 역사를 믿었기 때문입니다. 신자는 성령에 관해 깊은 이 하시며 그의 은혜를 받은 상태는 무엇이며. 그 분과 어떤 관계를 가져야하는가를 잘 알아야합니다. 첫째, 교회 안에 일하시는 성령님은 누구인가요? 성령은 인격을 가지신 제 3위 하나님이십니다. 우리는 그의 인도로 좁은 길을 걷 습니다. 우리의 깊은 곳을 통찰하시고. 우리의 그릇된 행동에 탄식 하고 근심하시며 신자의 방향을 그 분이 뜻대로 정하십니다. 기름 부으심을 주신 이가 하나님이시고 보증이 되신다고 했습니 다.(21-22) 성령의 중생 (성령세례) (고전 12:13) 곧 한 성령으로 세례를 받고 한 성령을 마시게 하시는 일과 불 일듯하기 위하여 성 령의 능력의 세례를 부으십니다.(벧전1:8) 여러분들은 지금도 일하 시는 성령의 능력을 아십니까? 너무나 섬세하고 자상하게 일하시는 성령의 역사를 믿어야합니다. 에스겔 화상 골짜기에 생기가 불 때 마른 해골이 살아나 큰 군대가 된 것처럼 성령의 생기가 우리 교회 우리 가정. 우리 마음에 일하시기 때문에 일곱 번 넘어져도 여덟 번째 일어날 수 있습니다. 뼈와 힘줄과 살이 붙고. 가죽이 덮이라고 말할 뿐 세밀하게 말하지 않았어도 성령은 무수한 일을 하신 것입 니다. 정말 놀랍게도 배후 수많은 일들을 성령이 하시는 것입니다. 그래서 성령은 우리의 다른 보혜사이십니다.

둘째, 성령의 기름은 어디에 부어집니까? 아멘의 그릇 위에 부 어집니다. 바울은 사도권을 주장하기를 자기가 한 말이 하나님의 말씀이라고 합니다. 아멘해야만 하는 말씀이란 것입니다. 마치 예수 그리스도가 아버지께 아메한 것같이 우리도 그의 약속을 아메으로 받아야합니다. 이 아멘의 그릇, 순종의 그릇 위에 성령의 기름이 불 어집니다. 성령의 기름은 흘러가야 합니다. 그 통로가 아메의 마음 입니다. 성전 등불의 기름 관에 찌꺼기가 없도록 제사장이 항상 간 검한 것처럼 잘못하거나 타협하는 일을 성령은 심판하십니다. 아나 니아와 삽비라의 경우나 성찬을 남용한 고린도교회에 병든 자, 약 한 자, 죽은 자가 생긴 것이 알것 때문입니다. 셋째, 성령은 언제까지 이끄십니까? 우리를 그리스도 안에 견고 케 하기까지 일하십니다. 21절에 stand firm in Christ 라고 한 말은 자립신앙을 갖게 합니다. 믿음의 주관은 사람이 아닌 예수만이 하 여야합니다.(23-24) 그리스도를 주로 모시고 살도록 성령이 부단히 일하시기 때문입니다. 성령이 견고한 신앙을 이루심을 믿고 겸손히 그 분의 뜻을 받아들이시기 바랍니다. 선한 소원을 두고 행하시는 그분을 따라가시기 바랍니다. 장성한 믿음의 사람은 앉고 일어나며 걸어가는 신자입니다. 사랑하는 여러분이여 성령의 인도를 따라 여 기까지 오셨는데 인격이신 성령의 인도에 아메으로 따라감으로 견 고한 신앙의 사람이 되십시다.

Follow the anointing (2 Corinthians 1:12-24) July 27, 2008.

As we observe Sacrament Sunday today, I would like to think about God the Holy Spirit working within us. Paul emphasizes the fact that the Corinthian church does not walk according to the flesh but by the Spirit, saying that they

do not walk according to the flesh but according to their conscience and by the grace of God (12). So, the reason he did not go to the church in Corinth but sent Silas and Timothy was because he believed in the work of the Holy Spirit working within them. The believer must know deeply about the Holy Spirit, what is his state of receiving grace, and what kind of relationship he should have with Him. First, who is the Holy Spirit working in the church? The Holy Spirit is the third person of God who has a personality. We walk the narrow path under his guidance. He penetrates deep within us, laments and is troubled by our wrong actions, and determines the direction of the believer according to His will. It is said that the one who gave the anointing is God and He is the guarantee. (21-22) Regeneration by the Holy Spirit (Baptism with the Holy Spirit) (1 Corinthians 12:13) That is, to be baptized with the one Holy Spirit, to drink the one Holy Spirit, and to be kindled by the fire. He pours out the baptism of the power of the Holy Spirit. (1 Peter 1:8) Do you know the power of the Holy Spirit that is still at work today? We must believe in the work of the Holy Spirit, who works so delicately and lovingly. Just as the dry skeletons came to life and became a great army when the breath of life blew in the valley of Ezekiel's vision, the breath of the Holy Spirit works in our church, our homes, and our hearts, so even if we fall seven times, we can get up the eighth time. Even if he did not go into detail except to say that the bones, tendons, flesh, and skin were covered, the Holy Spirit did countless things. It's truly amazing that the Holy Spirit does a lot of things behind the scenes. So the Holy Spirit is our other Comforter. Second, where is the oil of the Holy Spirit poured out? It is poured over the bowl of Amen. Paul claims the right to be an apostle and says that what he says is the word of God. He is saying that Amen must be said. Just as Jesus Christ said Amen to his Father,

we too must receive Amen to his promise. The oil of the Holy Spirit is blown on this vessel of Amen and obedience. The oil of the Holy Spirit must flow. That passage is the heart of Amen. Just as the priest always inspected the oil pipes of the temple lamps to ensure there was no dregs, the Holy Spirit judges mistakes or compromises. This is because we know that in the case of Ananias and Sapphira and in the Corinthian church that abused the Holy Communion, there were sick, weak, and dead people. Third, how long does the Holy Spirit lead? He works to establish us in Christ. The phrase "stand firm in Christ" in verse 21 gives us self-reliant faith. Only Jesus, not man, should be in charge of faith. (23-24) This is because the Holy Spirit constantly works to help us live with Christ as Lord. Please believe that the Holy Spirit creates a solid faith and humbly accept His will. Please follow Him who acts with good wishes. A mature person of faith is a believer who sits down, stands up, and walks. Dear friends, you have come this far following the guidance of the Holy Spirit. Let us become people of solid faith by saying Amen to the guidance of the Holy Spirit, who is a person.

눈물이 넘치는 교회 (고후2:1-10) 2008. 8. 3.

심적 스트레스를 받으면 감정이 움직여 눈물이 나온다고 합니다. 눈물 배후에는 무수한 원인이 있지만 본문에 나오는 사도의 눈물은 주의 뜻에 미치지 못하는 고린도 교인의 타락을 바라보고 안타까워 흘리는 눈물입니다.(4) 교회가 눈물 위에 세워져야 한다는 것은 진리 위에 세워지는 것 을 뜻합니다. 교회가 이 눈물을 잃어버리면 심각한 타락으로 떨어 고 근심이나 눈물이 없다면 부모의 성격을 잃어버린 것처럼 신자는 주님의 뜻을 떠남으로 타락하 교회의 연약을 바라보고 눈물을 흘릴 줄 알아야합니다. 이것이 사는 길이고 복을 누리는 길입니다. 그러 면 우리는 어떻게 이 눈물을 회복할 수 있을까요? 첫째. 죽음의 신앙을 따라야 합니다. 십자가 신앙의 길을 걷지 않는다면 이 거룩한 눈물을 흘리지 못합니다. 예수님의 눈물은 자 김 배설이 어리스 위 동그 칼의 눈이었습니다고 이하다 (행20:19) 고린도 교회의 문제는 바로 이 눈물을 잃어버린 것인데 그 원인은 죽음의 신앙을 따르지 않았기 때문입니다. 사람을 자랑 하고 외형을 자랑하는 그 교회는 십자가를 따를 수가 없었습니다. 십자기를 팽개치는 모든 이론과 교혼과 관습을 대적하고 겸손히 책 임지는 자의 눈물이 넘쳐나는 성도가 되어야합니다. 둘째, 부활의 신앙을 따를 때 생깁니다. 그리스도의 십자가는 부 활과 연결되어있습니다. 십자가 지는 것은 부활을 알기 때문입니다. 그래서 신자는 감격에서 오는 눈물을 갖습니다. 죽은 자가 살아나 는 그리스도의 부활 신앙을 가질 때 진실한 눈물을 흘릴 수 있는 것입니다. 고린도 교회 문제의 실상은 신앙의 기반인 그리스도의 죽음과 부활을 믿지 않는데 있었습니다. 이단적 교훈을 따른 것입 니다. 그러니

현재를 아무렇게나 사는 것은 당연한 것입니다. 날마 다 죽는 것을 자랑하는 바울 신앙(고전 15:31)과는 달리 먹고 마시 자 하는 것입니다. 바울이 말하는 부활신앙이란 성경을 진실로 믿 신은 가리린 니다 이 리스도이 유제 분해 사정에 건이 통 실 것입니다. 생명을 주는 도구로서 날마다 죽을 때 부활의 역사가 나 타나는 것일 그리스도와의 연합으로 이루어집니다. 국의 죽을 신자의 구원은 과 부활 그리고 그의 승천과 연합됨으로 나타납니다. 이것은 그리 스도의 모든 활동과 사건 그리고 그의 눈물과도 연합된 것입니다. 부활의 신앙이 눈물로 나타나는 것입니다. 셋째, 사랑의 길을 따를 때 생깁니다. 4절에 바울의 눈물은 넘 치는 사랑 때문입니다. 나사로의 누이동생 마리아는 주님을 사랑했 기에 옥합을 깨뜨려 눈물로 발을 적시며 자기 머리털로 닦고 그 위 에 순전한 나드를 부음 수 있었습니다. 죄가 용서된 감격에서 흘린 눈물입니다. 교회는 죄 사항 받은 사실 하나로 감격하며 희생하는 헌신으로 가득 채워져야 합니다. 각박한 세상에 예례미야 처럼 인 위적 눈물이 아닌 성령의 탄식을 따른 눈물이 넘치기를 축원합니다.

A church overflowing with tears (2 Corinthians 2:1-10) August 3, 2008.

It is said that when you are emotionally stressed, your emotions move and tears come out. There are countless causes behind tears, but the apostle's tears in the text are tears of regret as he sees the corruption of the Corinthian believers who fall short of the Lord's will. (4) The fact that the church must be built on tears means that it is built on the truth. . If the church loses these tears, it will fall into serious corruption, and if it does not have worries or tears, it will lose its parental character. Just as believers must be able to shed tears when they look at the weakness of the church that has become corrupted by leaving the will of the Lord. This is the way to live and enjoy blessings. So how can we recover these tears? first. We must follow the faith of death. If you do not walk the path of faith on the cross, you will not be able to shed these holy tears. Jesus' tears are said to have been the eyes of a round sword on a tree (Acts 20:19). The problem of the Corinthian church was that they had lost these tears, and the reason was that they did not follow the faith of death. The church that boasted about its people and appearance could not follow the cross. We must stand against all theories, teachings, and customs that throw away the cross and become believers overflowing with tears who humbly take responsibility. Second, it occurs when you follow the faith of resurrection. The cross of Christ is connected to the resurrection. Bearing the cross is because we know the resurrection. That is why believers shed tears of joy. When we have faith in the resurrection of Christ, the resurrection of the dead, we can shed true tears. The reality of the problem with the Corinthian church was that they did not believe in the death and resurrection of Christ, which is the foundation of faith. It follows heretical teachings. So, it is natural to live carelessly in the present. Unlike the Pauline faith that boasts of dying

every day (1 Corinthians 15:31), it is about eating and drinking. The resurrection faith that Paul talks about is a true belief in the Bible and God is not. This will be useful in the case of disassembly of Christ. As a life-giving tool, the work of resurrection is revealed when we die every day, and it is achieved through union with Christ. The believer's salvation from death is revealed through union with his death, resurrection, and ascension. This is associated with all the activities and events of Christ and with his tears. Faith in resurrection is revealed through tears. Third, it arises when you follow the path of love. In verse 4, Paul's tears are due to his overflowing love. Mary, the sister of Lazarus, loved her Lord so much that she broke her alabaster jar and wet his feet with her tears, wiped them with her hair, and poured pure nard on them. These are tears shed from the joy of having one's sins forgiven. The church must be filled with devotion and sacrifice, thrilled by the fact that they have been convicted of sin. I pray that in this harsh world, like Yeremiya, tears will overflow with the lamentation of the Holy Spirit, not artificial tears.

문을 여시는 하나님 (고후 2:12-17) 208. 8. 17.

치료법 중에 자극성 있는 향기를 코로 흡입 홀몬을 조절하여 정 신을 안정시킴으로 치료하는 향기요법이 있습니다. 바울 당시 사람 들이 사용하는 식물에서 나는 향기의 영향력 처럼 신자의 삶도 생 명과 사망의 냄새를 풍기는 삶이라고 말합니다. 14절에 "우리로 말미암아 각처에서 그리스도를 아는 냄새를 나타내시는 하나님께 감사하노라"고 했습니다. 다시 말하면 신자는 누구에게든지 그리 스도의 향기라는 것입니다. (15) 이 중대한 임무를 신자에게 주신 것은 신자를 통해 구원의 문을 여시기 때문입니다. 여시는 분은 하 나님이시나 신자의 삶을 통해 여신다는 것입니다. 12절에 바울은 드로아에 머물거나 마게도니아로 가는 것도 하나님이 문을 열어주 셨기 때문이라고 말합니다. 문을 닫으면 향기를 접할 수 없지만 열 으면 향기가 전달되듯이 준비된 복음의 능력은 주님이 문을 여시는 여부에 따라 좌우되었습니다. 우리가 주님의 일을 할 때 문이 그냥 열리는 것이 아니라 하나 님이 친히 문을 열어주심으로 일하는 것을 경험합니다. 우리의 노 력이 아닌 주님이 열어주실 때 마음이 열리고 복음이 들어갑니다. 닫으면 열 자가 없고 열면 닫을 자가 없습니다. 마게도냐 사람의 부름을 듣고 달려갔던 바울이 복음을 전할 때 루디아의 마음 문을 여신 분이 하나님이셨습니다. 그래서 구라파 복음이 증거된 것입니 다. 고넬료의 마음문, 루디아의 마음 문을 여셨던 주님이 오늘우리 의 마음 문을 여셔야 합니다. 어떻게 문을 여시는가요? 첫째. 신자로 그리스도 향기가 되게 하심으로 문을 여십니다. 14 절에 보면 날마다 승리하게 하시는 신자를 가리켜 그리스도를 아는 냄새를 내는 사람이라 말합니다. 그래서 그리스도인을

그리스도의 향기라고 했습니다. 두 가지 냄새, 즉 사망의 냄새와 생명의 냄새를 나타낸다는 것입니다. 전자는 심판의 냄새를 나타내며 후자는 생명 의 냄새를 나타낸다는 것입니다. 신자에게 어떤 냄새가 나야합니 까? 영생의 냄새, 진실의 냄새, 의의 냄새 그리고 착한 냄새가 나야 합니다. 성령이 우리에게 오셔서 가는 곳마다 생명의 냄새가 나게 하십니다. 모르드개의 경외신앙에는 이것이 분명했습니다. 둘째, 말씀을 따르게 함으로서 문을 여십니다. 문이 열리는 길은 그의 말씀을 따를 때 되어 집니다. 거짓 교훈은 문이 열리는 것처 럼 보이나 결코 열리지 않습니다. 17 절에 하나님 말씀을 혼잡케 아니하고 순전함으로 말씀을 받아 말했다고 했습니다. 성경을 따라 가시기 바랍니다. 진리의 음성을 순종할 때 문이 열립니다. 엠 마오 두 제자의 마음은 성경을 풀어줄 때에 열렸습니다. 셋째, 간구할 때 문이 열립니다. 특히 문은 기도할 때 열립니 다. 마7:7의 두드리는 클루오라는 말은 겸손하게 긴장감을 가지고 두드리는 것입니다. 어려운 지경에 에스더에게 문이 열린 것은 기 도할 때였습니다. 오늘날 문이 열려야 할 분야가 너무나 많습니다. 전도, 신유, 은혜의 문이 이스르엘에 열리기 위하여 성도의 간절한 기도가 절대 필요합니다. 이 일에 동참합시다.

God who opens doors (2 Corinthians 2:12-17) 208. 8. 17.

Among the treatments, there is aromatherapy, which involves inhaling irritating scents through the nose to regulate hormones and stabilize the mind. It is said that the life of a believer is also a life that gives off the smell of life and death, just like the scent of the plants used by the people of Paul's time. Verse 14 says, "We give thanks to God, who through us makes the aroma of

the knowledge of Christ manifest in every place." In other words, believers are the scent of Christ to everyone. (15) This important mission is given to believers because it opens the door to salvation through believers. The one who opens is God, but He opens through the life of the believer. In verse 12, Paul says that the reason he stays in Troas or goes to Macedonia is because God opened the door. Just as the scent cannot be accessed when the door is closed, but the scent is delivered when the door is opened, the power of the prepared gospel depended on whether the Lord opened the door or not. When we do the Lord's work, we experience that the door does not just open, but that God Himself opens the door to do the work. When the Lord opens the heart, not through our efforts, the heart opens and the gospel enters. If you close it, no one can open it; if you open it, no one can close it. When Paul, who heard the call from the Macedonian and ran to her, preached the gospel, it was God who opened the door to Lydia's heart. That is why the European gospel was testified. The Lord who opened the door of Cornelius' heart and Lydia's heart must open the door of our hearts today. How do you open the door? First, the door is opened by allowing believers to become the fragrance of Christ. In verse 14, it is said that a believer who gives victory every day is a person who gives off the scent of knowing Christ. That is why Christians are said to be the fragrance of Christ. It represents two smells: the smell of death and the smell of life. The former represents the smell of judgment, and the latter represents the smell of life. What should a believer smell like? It must smell of eternal life, the smell of truth, the smell of righteousness, and the smell of goodness. The Holy Spirit comes to us and gives us the scent of life wherever we go. This was evident in Mordecai's reverential faith. Second, the door is opened by following His Word. The way for doors to open is to follow

his words. False teachings appear to open doors, but they never do. Verse 17 says that he did not distort the word of God, but received and spoke it in sincerity. Please follow the Bible. Doors open when you obey the voice of truth. The hearts of the two disciples of M. Mao were opened as the Bible was opened to them. Third, when you pray, doors open. Especially the door opens when you pray. The word 'kluo' in Matthew 7:7 means to knock with humility and tension. It was when she prayed that a door opened for Esther in difficult times. There are so many areas today that need to be opened. The earnest prayers of believers are absolutely necessary for the doors of evangelism, healing, and grace to be opened in Jezreel. Let's join in on this.

그리스도의 편지 (고후3:1-5) 2008. 8. 17.

사도에 대한 의심은 교훈에 영향을 미쳐 그리스도와의 관계를 끊기 때문에 바울은 계속 사도직 변호에 힘썼습니다. 인사에서 하 나님과 주 예수로부터 사도직을 받은 근거를 주장하더니(1:1) 여기 서 그는 고린도 교회가 그리스도의 편지라고 증거했습니다. 편지란 쓰는 사람의 의사 표현이듯이 그리스도인이란 그리스도를 아주 구 체적으로 표현하는 도구입니다. 요한복음 1장 1절에 그리스도를 말씀이라고 한 것은 하나님을 가장 잘 보여주신 분이 바로 그리스도 라는 말과 통합니다. 하나님은, 그리스도, 성경, 그리고 신자를 통해 하나님의 영살이 의미나게 합니다 어닝 브리도거니 지날 잘 할까요? 첫째. 성령을 잘 따름으로 할 수 있습니다. 3절에 오직. 살아계 신 하나님의 영으로 우리 마음에 말씀을 심어 놓았다고 말합니다. 예례미야 31:33-34에 율법으로 맺은 옛 언약의 불완전으로 새 언 약을 세우신다는 예언은 그 법을 마음에 새기리라는 것입니다. 이 것은 신약에 이뤄질 복음을 성령으로 신자 마음에 지울 수 없도록 새겨 넣겠다는..것입니다. 거듭남의 생명을 가리킵니다. 히브리서 기 자는 이것을 새 언약의 불변성을 보여주며 그 든든한 가운데 거하 라고 권했습니다. 이 말은 성령이 오셔서 거듭나게 하시기 위해 우 리 속의 죄를 깨닫게 하시고 회개케 하시고 그의 공로를 믿게 하심 으로 하나님 수준에 이르도록 의의 씨를 심어 놓으시는 것입니다. 그래서 신자 일생은 성령을 떠나서는 결코 살지 못합니다. 성령은 우리를 의롭게 하시고 거룩케 하시고 마침내 영화롭게 하시는 것입 니다. 성령의 소리를 듣고 겸손히 따라. 가야합니다. 둘째. 내실을 힘으로서 할 수 있습니다. 4절에 보면 바울은 이 편지를 돌비가 아니라

심비에 심었다고 주장했습니다. 육의 심 비란 우리의 영혼 곧 마음을 가리킵니다. 마음이란 지정의 좌소이 며 애정(affection)의 자리입니다. 그래서 신자는 외형주의로 살수 가 없습니다. 바리새인들이 그렇게 경건 모습을 나타냈으나 주님이 어떻게 책망하셨습니까? 외식주의자라고 하시면서 지옥 형벌을 받는다고 했습니다. 구제할 때. 금식할 때. 기도할 때 모든 것이 외식 주의와 인간주의였습니다. 주님은 기도를 가르쳐 달라는 제자들에 게 바리새인의 의보다 더 낫지 못하면 결단코 천국에 갈 수 없다고 단정하셨습니다. 그러면 누가 철저히 외식을 벗어나 살 수 있나요? 사람의 능력으로 가능합니까? 불가능합니다. 그래서 하나님은 성령 으로 우리의 심비에 복음을 심어 아예 내실주의자 진실주의자로 살 아서 하게 하게 니다 인적이 부을니다, 수 있습니다. 6전에 보면 그리스도의 편지인 신자를 가리켜 새 언약의 일꾼이라고 했습 니다. 그러면서 새 언약 일꾼은 오직 하나님의 만족이 목표라는 사 실을 말하고 있습니다. 5절에 우리의 만족은 오직 하나님에게서 온 는 사람이 아닙니다. 시온회원님들이 외부에 나가니까 얼굴이 많이 달라졌잖아요. 좋은 음식과 운동과 약초가 얼마나 도움을 줍니까? 그러나 어느 정도 유익하지 참된 유익과 만족은 오직 하나님에게 나오는 사실을 알고 하나님의 만족을 구해야 합니다.

Christ's Letter (2 Corinthians 3:1-5) August 17, 2008.

Because doubts about the apostles affect the teaching and break the relationship with Christ, Paul continued to work in defense of the apostolate. In his greeting, he claimed the basis for receiving the apostleship from God and the Lord Jesus (1:1), and here he testified that the Corinthian church was

a letter from Christ. Just as a letter is an expression of the writer's intentions, a Christian is a tool that expresses Christ in a very specific way. The fact that Christ is called the Word in John 1:1 is consistent with the saying that Christ is the one who best showed God. God makes His spiritual life meaningful through Christ, the Bible, and believers. Are you doing well? First, we can do this by following the Holy Spirit. Only in verse 3. It is said that the Word of God has been planted in our hearts by the Spirit of the living God. The prophecy in Jeremiah 31:33-34 that God will establish a new covenant in response to the imperfections of the old covenant made through the law means that he will engrave that law in his heart. This means that the gospel that will be fulfilled in the New Testament will be indelibly engraved in the hearts of believers through the Holy Spirit. It refers to the life of rebirth. The writer of Hebrews used this to show the immutability of the new covenant and encouraged us to remain in its security. This means that the Holy Spirit comes to regenerate us, makes us realize our sins, makes us repent, and plants the seed of righteousness so that we can reach the level of God by making us believe in His merits. That is why a believer can never live apart from the Holy Spirit. The Holy Spirit justifies us, sanctifies us, and finally glorifies us. We must listen to the voice of the Holy Spirit and humbly follow it. Second, internal stability can be used as strength. In verse 4, Paul claimed that he planted this letter on a tablet of stone, not on a tablet of stone. The physical heart refers to our soul, or heart. The heart is the seat of designation and the seat of affection. Therefore, believers cannot live by externalism. The Pharisees showed such piety, but how did the Lord rebuke them? He said that he was a hypocrite and that he would be punished in hell. When giving alms, fasting, and praying, everything was hypocritical and humanistic. The Lord

told his disciples, who asked him to teach them how to pray, that they would never go to heaven unless they surpassed the righteousness of the Pharisees. So who can completely avoid eating out? Is this possible with human capabilities? It's impossible. So, God, through the Holy Spirit, plants the gospel in our hearts and pours it into our hearts so that we can live as true believers and believers. 6 In the previous chapter, believers, who are the letters of Christ, are called servants of the new covenant. At the same time, the new covenant workers are saying that their only goal is God's satisfaction. Verse 5 states that our satisfaction does not come from God alone. Zion members' faces have changed a lot since they go outside. How much do good food, exercise, and medicinal herbs help? However, it is beneficial to some extent, but we must know that true benefit and satisfaction come only from God and seek God's satisfaction.

성경적 선교란 한마디로 "주님의 지상명령에 충실한 선교" 입니다. 다 시 말하면 성경에 충실한 선교입니다. 우리 교회가 조용히 성경을 가르치며 에베소 교회의 부흥을 사모하며 겸손한 선교를 생각하는 것도 성경에 나오 는 선교와 전도에 그 초점을 맞추려는데 있습니다. 그래서 우리는 디모데전 서 2:1-4절, 목회서신에 나온 사도의 명령에 주목하여 선교의 근거, 선교의 목적, 그리고 선교의 방법에 대한 것을 생각하고자합니다. 첫째, 선교의 근거, 선교란 전도의 세계화라고 말할 수 있습니다. 선교란 하나님의 소원에 근거를 두고 있습니다. 소원이란 뜻, 의지를 가리킵니다. 무엇인가요? "모든 사람이 구원을 받고 진리를 아는데 이르기를 원하시느 니라" 이것은 지상명령의 구체적인 내용을 말하는 마28:19-20의 해석입 니다. 모든 사람-모든 족속, 구원을 받으며 개인 전도로 제자를 삼는 일. 진리를 아는 것- 복음을 가르쳐 지키게 하는 것의 다른 표현라고 볼 수 있 습니다. 구워받은 자가 진리의 삶을 살게 하는데 있습니다. 그래서 선교와 전도의 마지막은 건강한 교회생활이 되어야합니다. 남은 구원하나 자기가 버림당하는 것을 걱정하며 덕 세우기 강조한 바울의 고민이 우리에게 일어 나야한다는 말입니다. 주님은 구워받은 공동체를 가지는 것이 소원이기에 개인 구원문제만으로는 부족하기에 공동체에 목사를 세워 설교를 통한 온 전한 구원을 하기를 원하셨습니다. 설교를 통해서 진리에 이르기 때문입니다. 하나님의 소원을 내 소원으로 삼을 때 바른 선교를 하게 됩니다. 자기 소원으로 꽉 찬 자는 이 일을 하지 못하며 해도 불순하게 되고 하나님의 소원에 이르지 못합니다. 네 소원이 무엇이냐고 물을 때

모든 사람이 구원 받는 것이 라고 말할 수 있어야 합니다. 둘째, 선교의 목적, 성경적 선교는 고요한 생활을 하게하는 것이 목적입 니다. 본문의 문맥이 모든 사람을 위해 기도하라는 말과 함께 나왔기 때문 에 3절과 통합니다. 무질서한 생활이 아닙니다. 전쟁터에 전리품으로 한 몫 챙기는 불안한 것이 아니고. 경건 중에 고요하고 평안한 생활하는 것이 목적입니다. 아이들 공부의 목적이 무엇인가요? 경건한 생활입니다. 이것이 최우선이어야 합니다. 셋째. 선교의 방법. 성경적 선교는 기도로 이루어집니다. 물질과 전략이 다 필요하지만 무엇보다 기도를 통해 선교가 되는 것입니다. 선교는 영혼을 부활시키는 일이기 때문입니다. 모든 사람을 위하여 기도하라."는 바울 의 명령은 지금도 우리를 향한 명령입니다. 모든 사람 속에는 모든 영혼을 포함합니다. 임금, 정치, 경제, 사회, 문화 등에 관련된 사람의 영혼이 살아 나야합니다. 나사로야 나오라고 해야합니다. 여기에 초점을 맞추는 것이 당 연합니다. 주님은 살리시고 우리는 수종드는 것입니다. 그러니 겸손할 수밖 에 없고 가난할 수밖에 없습니다. 오늘날 선교 수단이 많습니다. 그 수단은 단지 방법일 뿐이지 그 자체가 앞설 수는 없습니다. 더 중요한 것은 자기 자신이 복음을 알고 즐기는 삶을 살아야합니다. 먼저 자기 복음화가 되지 않는 것이 문제입니다. 부자 청년이 자기를 버리는 한 가지를 못해 영생의 문제가 다 걸리게 되었습니다. 결국 자신의 영혼도 구원받지 못하게 되었습 니다. 선교는 자기를 구원하고 남을 구원하는 일이기 때문에 그 자신이 먼 저 구원의 즐거움으로 충만해야합니다. 후일에 일어 날 두 가지. 혼인문제 와 먹는 문제 즉 가장 필요한 가정과 먹는 문제가 거짓 종교와 결탁된 시 대에 성경을 즐기지 못하면 복음의

물결을 거슬리는 셈이 되어버립니다. 하 나님 나라는 언제나 내적인 일에 충실하는 것입니다. 더 중요한 것은 성경 의 복음을 복 중 복으로 알고 그것을 얼마나 즐기는가에 있습니다.

Biblical mission (1 Timothy 2:1-4) August 24, 2008

In a word, biblical mission is "mission that is faithful to the Lord's Great Commission." In other words, it is a mission that is faithful to the Bible. The reason our church quietly teaches the Bible, longs for the revival of the Ephesian church, and considers humble missionary work is to focus on missions and evangelism as found in the Bible. So, we would like to think about the basis of mission, the purpose of mission, and the method of mission by paying attention to 1 Timothy 2:1-4 and the apostle's command in the Pastoral Epistles. First, the basis of missions, missions can be said to be the globalization of evangelism. Missions are based on God's wishes. Wish means will, meaning will. What is it? "He desires all people to be saved and to come to the knowledge of the truth." This is an interpretation of Matthew 28:19-20, which speaks of the specific contents of the Great Commission. It can be seen as another expression of teaching all people - all nations, being saved, making disciples through personal evangelism, and knowing the truth to keep the gospel. It is for those who have been saved to live a life of truth. So the end of missions and evangelism must be a healthy church life. This means that the concerns of Paul, who emphasized edification while worrying about saving others but being abandoned himself, must arise in us. Since the Lord's desire is to have a saved community, individual salvation alone is not enough, so He wanted to establish a pastor in the community to provide complete salvation through preaching. This is because we reach the truth

through preaching. When we make God's wishes our own, we will carry out the right mission. He who is full of his own desires cannot do this, and even if he does, he becomes impure and falls short of God's desires. When asked what your wish is, you should be able to say that everyone is saved. Second, the purpose of mission, biblical mission is to lead a quiet life. It is related to verse 3 because the context of the text comes with the words to pray for everyone. It is not a disorderly life. It's not like I'm anxious about getting a share of the spoils on the battlefield. The goal is to live a quiet and peaceful life in godliness. What is the purpose of children's studies? It is a godly life. This should be the top priority. third. The method of missions, biblical missions, is accomplished through prayer. Both materials and strategies are needed, but above all, missions can be accomplished through prayer. Because missions is about resurrecting the soul. Paul's command to "pray for everyone" is still a command for us. Every person includes every soul. The souls of people involved in wages, politics, economy, society, culture, etc. must come to life. Lazarus, It is natural to focus on this: the Lord saves us, and we have no choice but to be humble and poor. What is more important is that one must know the gospel and live a life that one can enjoy. The problem of eternal life is at stake because the rich young man failed to do one thing: abandon himself. In the end, even one's own soul cannot be saved, so missionary work is about saving oneself and saving others, so one must first be filled with the joy of salvation, which will arise in the future: marriage and eating. In other words, if we do not enjoy the Bible in an age where the most important issues of family and eating are linked to false religion, we will be going against the wave of the gospel. What is more important for the kingdom of God is to always be faithful to the gospel of the Bible. It depends on how much you enjoy it and how much you enjoy it.

새 언약의 일꾼 (고후 3:6-18) 2008. 8. 31.

예수님을 생명처럼 사랑하는 신자가 성경을 생명처럼 사랑하는 것은 그 체질이 하나님의 말씀으로 시작되었기 때문입니다. 거듭날 때 항상있는 하나님의 말씀으로 태어나 말씀을 먹으면서 자라나 말 씀의 열매를 맺히도록 되어있습니다. 우리 안에 일하시는 성령은 성령의 열매를 맺히실 때 말씀이 가리키는 것 외에 다른 열매를 결 코 맺게 하지 않으십니다. 사랑 희락 화평 오래참음 자비 양선 충 성 온유 절제가 모두 말씀의 열매입니다. 시 19편에 순결, 정직, 명 료, 즐거움, 가치성은 모두 성령의 열매를 가리키는 것입니다. 바울이 신자를 그리스도의 향기 그리스도의 편지라고 비유로 말 한 것도 모두 말씀과 결코 무관한 것이 아닙니다. 이런 직분들은 모두 하나님의 말씀의 알맹이를 전문적으로 잘 드러낼 때 은혜생활 을 한다는 것입니다. 그는 본문에서 그 역할을 새 언약의 일꾼이라 말하고 있습니다. 5절에 "저가(하나님이) 또 우리로 새 언약 일꾼 되기에 만족케 하셨으니" 라고 할 때 새 언약 일꾼으로 사는 곳을 만족하셨다고 했습니다. 하나님의 만족은 신자 만족의 시작입니다. 새 언약 일꾼으로 살 때 복된 삶을 살 수 있다는 것입니다. 첫째. 두 언약의 이해, 언약이란 약속이란 뜻입니다. 하나님이 일 방적으로 약속하신 것을 동의하고 순종함으로 성취되는 특이한 약 속으로 협약과 다릅니다. 구원도 하나님의 일방적인 약속으로 순종 ※ 면 약의 전파를 아주 글래서, 학내에가 역사스라에 오니다가 같은 십계명, 구두로 연합관계를 아무리 이야기하여도 고멜의 유혹을 받 고 하나님을 떠나 타락합니다. 이런 타락이 계속 되어왔습니다. 결 론이 별 수 없는 인간이란 것입니다. 그래서 하나님은 새 언약을 드러내심으로 언약을

성취하셨습니다. 이제 우리가 할 일은 새 언약의 일꾼이 옛 언약의 일꾼과 비교할 때 얼마나 탁월함을 아는데 있습니다. 이것을 히브리서 기자가 잘 설명해 줍니다. 예수님과 모세를 비교하고 구약 제사제도와 십자가 죽음의 제사 등으로 말합니다. 우리가 새 언약 일군인 것이 얼마나 존귀한가를 알고 새 언약의 일꾼으로 살아가야하는 것입니다. 둘째, 새 언약 일꾼으로 사는 방법, 본문은 대조하여 말합니다. 1) 육은 죽인다는 것을 알아야합니다. 육이란 옛 언약의 특성입니 다. 율법 따르면 죽는다는 것입니다. 하나님의 선언입니다. 2) 영만 이 살리는 것을 알아야합니다. 영이란 성령을 가리킵니다. 주는 영 이십니다. 부활의 주님이 성령 안에서 지금 일하십니다. 성령을 좇 는 일이 우리의 관건입니다. 이럴 때 살게 되는 것입니다. 이것이 믿음 생활의 다른 표현입니다. 성령의 인도를 따를 때만 살아납니 다. 새 언약의 일꾼은 바로 이 길을 가는 사람입니다. 성령을 좇는 설렬의 것은 곧 복음을 좇는 것입니다. 들은 말씀에 성실한 것입니다. 구약 으로 돌아가지 마세요. 거짓교훈으로 돌아가지 마세요. 주님이 성령 안에서 일하심을 알고 성령을 좇아 행하시기 바랍니다. 그럴 때 성 령은 우리를 그리스도의 형상으로 변화시켜 주십니다.

Workers of the New Covenant (2 Corinthians 3:6-18) August 31, 2008.

The reason a believer who loves Jesus like his life loves the Bible like his life is because his constitution began with the Word of God. When we are born again, we are born with the ever-present Word of God and grow by eating the Word and bear the fruit of the Word. When the Holy Spirit working within us produces the fruit of the Holy Spirit, he never causes it to bear fruit other than

what the Word indicates. Love, joy, peace, long-suffering, mercy, goodness, loyalty, gentleness, and self-control are all fruits of the Word. In Psalm 19, purity, honesty, clarity, joy, and value all refer to the fruit of the Holy Spirit. Paul's analogy that believers are the scent of Christ and the letters of Christ is not in any way unrelated to the Word. All of these positions live a life of grace when they expertly reveal the essence of the Word of God. In the text, he speaks of his role as a worker of the new covenant. In verse 5, when it says, "He (God) has also satisfied us to become servants of the new covenant," it says that He is satisfied with the place where we live as servants of the new covenant. God's satisfaction is the beginning of the believer's satisfaction. Living as servants of the new covenant First, understanding of the two covenants: A covenant is a unique promise that is fulfilled by agreeing to and obeying God's promises, and salvation is also different from God's agreement. Obedience with a one-sided promise * Because they are so afraid of the spread of exemption, they continue to fall away from God due to the temptation of Gomer, no matter how many times they come to the school and talk about the same ten commandments and verbal union. The conclusion is that God has fulfilled the covenant by revealing the new covenant, and now our job is to understand how superior the workers of the new covenant are compared to the workers of the old covenant. The writer of Hebrews explains this well by comparing Jesus and Moses and talking about the Old Testament sacrificial system and the sacrifice of death on the cross. Second, we must know how precious it is to be a servant of the new covenant. How to live as a worker of the new covenant: 1) We must understand that the flesh dies, and 2) that only the spirit lives. We must understand that the Lord is the Holy Spirit. Following the Holy Spirit is the key to living a life of faith. A worker

of the new covenant will be alive only if he follows the guidance of the Holy Spirit. Following the Holy Spirit means being faithful to the Old Testament. Do not go back to false teachings, but when you know that the Lord works in the Holy Spirit and walk according to the Holy Spirit, the Holy Spirit transforms us into the image of Christ.

복음의 빛을 받은 자 (고후4:1-6) 2008. 9. 7.

새 언약의 일꾼 직분을 부끄럽지 않기 위하여 하나님 말씀을 혼 잡케 하지 않고 증거한 사도는 오직 그리스도 예수의 주되신 것괴 또 예수를 위하여 우리가 너희의 종된 것을 전파함이라"(5)고 하 면서 복음의 빛을 받은 자로 살라고 권했습니다. 그것은 어떤 상태 이며 어떻게 살아야할 것인지를 생각하고자합니다. 첫째, 복음의 빛을 받은 상태란 어떤 것입니까? 복음의 빛을 받 은 자란 신자인데 신자가 빛의 사람이 된 것은 무엇을 가리킵니까? 이것은 거듭난 것의 다른 표현입니다. 어두운 가운데 빛이 있으라 함으로 아름다운 세계를 창조하심 같이 죄로 어두운 우리의 심령에 빛이 있으라 하심으로 빛의 사람으로 변화되었다는 것입니다. (행 15:.고후5:17) 이것은 그리스도의 단번에 죽으심으로 세상을 어둡 하는 마귀를 없이하시고 자기 백성의 모든 죄를 다 처리하셨다 는 것입니다. 어두움이 완전히 물러가게 하신 것이 그리스도의 죽 음이었습니다. 그런데 이 구워을 우리 개인에게 전하기 위하여 성 령이 오셔서 그 일을 하신 것입니다. 거듭난다는 말은 성령이 오신 다는 말입니다. 성령이 임하여 빛으로 바꾸어 주십니다. 이것이 복 음을 전할 때 구체적으로 개인에게 일어나는 사건입니다. 우리가 과거에는 어두움이었는데 이제는 빛이라고 말합니다.(요5:24) 생명 이 생명을 낳습니다. 우리가 빛이 되어 수단을 사용할 때 우리의 인격을 통한 복음의 빛으로 그들의 인격에 전달되지 그렇지 않으면 껍데기는 만들 수 있어도 알맹이는 주어지는 것입니다. 복음의 빛 을 받아 복음의 아름다움을 가진 것을 감사하게 여기며 누가 추천 할 필요가 없다는 바울의 확신이 여러분의 것이 되기 바랍니다. 둘째, 그러면 복음의 빛을

비추기 위해서 어떻게 해야 합니까? 어두움을 빛으로 바꾼 것은 빛으로 살라고 한 것이 목적입니다. 어 떻게 빛으로 살까요? 세 가지를 보입니다. 1) 세상 신과 싸워야합 니다. 복음의 광채를 비추지 못하게 한다고 합니다. 그리스도의 영 광을 보지 못하게 합니다. 유대인들은 모세의 영광에 주목하려고 수건을 마음에 가리웠는데 오늘날에는 그리스도의 얼굴을 보지 못 하게 만듭니다. 혼미가 마귀의 수법입니다. 수단과 목적을 바꾼다. 쾌락주의나 물질주의로 나가게 합니다. 2) 날마다 하나님의 영광을 보아야 합니다. 하나님의 영광을 아는 빛을 받아야합니다. 그리스도 의 영광입니다. 그리스도를 잘 알고 그 분과 개별적 교제를 통해 그 영광의 맛을 누려야한다는 것입니다. 이것을 저는 경건이라고 말합니다. 경건에는 하나님에 대한 지식과 자아의 지식이 배워지도 록 되어있습니다. 3) 말씀을 잘 받아야합니다. 말씀을 혼잡하게 받 지 않을 때 선한 양심을 소유하게 됩니다. 그러자면 말씀을 바로 깨달아야 하고 바로 따라가야 합니다. 바울이 낙심하지 않은 것은 복음을 바로 깨달았기 때문입니다. 낙심이란 복음의 빛을 본 사람 에게서 물러갑니다. 완전히 무너져도 다시 할 수 있기 때문입니다. 다윗을 보면 너무 혼란하고 복잡했습니다. 그런데 하나님은 기어코 그를 강성하게 하셨습니다. 아내 6명 아들들의 싸움, 장군들의 싸움, 그런데 하나님은 결과를 보니 그를 왕이 되게 하셨습니다. 복음 의 영광을 날마다 봄으로 그의 형상으로 화하시기 바랍니다

Those who have received the light of the gospel (2 Corinthians 4:1-6) 2008. 9. 7.

In order not to be ashamed of their duties as ministers of the new covenant, the apostles testified without confusing the word of God, proclaiming that Christ Jesus is Lord and that we are your servants for Jesus' sake" (5) and thus shed the light of the gospel. I would like to think about what kind of state it is and how to live as one. First, what does it mean to be a believer who has received the light of the gospel? What makes a believer a person of light? Does this refer to being born again? Just as He created the beautiful world by saying, "Let there be light in the midst of darkness," we were transformed into people of light by saying, "Let there be light in our sin-dark hearts." :17) This means that through Christ's death once and for all, He eliminated the devil who was darkening the world and completely removed all the sins of His people. This salvation was ours. The Holy Spirit came to do this and to be born again means that the Holy Spirit comes and changes us into light. It used to be darkness, but now it is said to be light. (John 5:24) Life gives birth to life. When we become light and use the means, the light of the gospel through our person is not transmitted to their person, otherwise a shell can be created. Even so, the substance is given. I hope that by receiving the light of the gospel, you will be thankful for having the beauty of the gospel, and that Paul's conviction that you do not need anyone to recommend you will become yours. Second, then, what should you do to shine the light of the gospel? The purpose of changing darkness into light is to show three things: 1) We must fight against the gods of the world who do not allow us to see the light of the gospel. The Jews put a veil over their hearts to focus on the glory of Moses, but today it prevents them from seeing the face of Christ. Stupidity is the devil's method. Change means and ends. It leads to hedonism or materialism. 2) We must see the glory of God every day. We must receive the light of

knowing the glory of God. It is the glory of Christ. We must know Christ well and enjoy the taste of His glory through personal fellowship with Him. This I call piety. Piety involves learning the knowledge of God and the knowledge of one's self. 3) You must receive the word well. When you do not receive the Word in a confusing way, you will have a good conscience. To do this, you must immediately understand the Word and follow it immediately. The reason Paul did not lose heart was because he immediately understood the gospel. Discouragement means withdrawing from those who have seen the light of the gospel. Because even if you completely fall apart, you can do it again. Looking at David, he was so confused and complicated. However, God made him strong. His wife, six sons, and generals fought, but God saw the result and made him king. May you be transformed into His image by seeing the glory of the Gospel every day.

만족한 경건의 삶 (딤전6:6-10)

그리스도 안의 만족은 경건 생활입니다. 경건 안에서의 자족하는 삶 을 모를 때 불안하게 됩니다. 알고서도 누리지 못하는 이유는 경건의 교훈에 착념하지 못하기 때문입니다. 바울은 이것을 사탄이라고 말하지 않고 우리 속에 깊이 침투해 있는 탐욕이라고 했습니다. 우리가 경 건 안에서 자족하는 삶을 살려면 어떻게 해야 할까요? 첫째. 욕망의 대상이 바꾸어져야합니다. 10절에 보면 "돈은 일만 악의 뿌리가 되나니"라고 합니다. 돈은 귀하나 돈에 대한 탐욕은 마커 가 유혹하는 중요한 도구입니다. 돈, 섹스, 권력은 우리 일상생활에 필 요한 것이나 탕익할 때 빚어지는 결과는 엄청난 것을 성경은 여러 각 도로 경고하고 있습니다. 오늘 본문에는 3가지 결과를 지적합니다. 1) 일만 악의 뿌리가 됩니다. 성경은 물질 때문에 인생을 망친 것을 많 일 보여 배후에사일:아간 하시 가로이다가운관리 경우의 1지 g 목 제 10계명과 통합니다. 다른 신을 성긴 이스라엘은 탐욕의 노예가 되 어버립니다. 2) 믿음에서 떠나게 합니다. 믿음의 대상인 하나님과 그의 말씀이 그리스도인 생활의 원천입니다. 믿음으로, 구원받고, 믿음으로 설립 니만 대서 의 의원 일품형력이나나. 나고, 대용 이 기대서 대은 게 하는 것이 탐욕입니다. 믿음을 떠난 자는 자기 멋대로 하며 다른 것을 믿도록 되어있습니다. 3) 근심 속에서 살아가게 합니다. 자연히 탕의 사람은 그 결과가 근심과 염려입니다. 이것은 불안을 가져오고 두려움을 가져옵니다. 진정 믿을 자가 없으니까. 자신이 스스로 올무에 매입니다. 그래서 성경은 육체의 소욕을 좇지 말고 성령의 소욕을 좇 오직 성령의 소욕을 이룰 때 우리의 영혼은 참 만족의 삶을 살아가는 것이다. 둘째,

현실에 대한 하나님의 섭리를 받아들이는 것을 배워야합니 다. 8-9절에 보면 먹고 마시는 것이 있으면 족한 줄 알라고 합니다. 현재의 삶을 하나님이 주관하신다는 사실을 믿고 받아들이고 거기서 최선을 다하려 할 때 거기에 참 만족이 생깁니다. 아브라함의 불안은 남은 잘 되는데 왜 내게는 그런 일이 빨리 안 일어나는가 하는 것이었 습니다. 그런 그가 전능한 하나님이시라는 계시를 받고 변하였습니다. 이삭의 특징은 삶의 현실을 받아들이는 것입니다. 요셉 역시..그의 삶 의 고난의 현실을 그대로 받아들였습니다. 이것이 그를 복되게 했습니다. 그러나 현실에서 야곱은 섭리를 무시하였습니다. 얼마나 파란 만장 한 일이 일어났는가요? 오늘날 영웅주의와 실용주의가 교회 내에 들어 와서 성도의 가치관을 세속화시키고 있습니다. 무엇보다 여러분의 현실을 하나님이 주신 최선의 상황으로 믿고 나가는 것이 만족한 삶을 사는 것입니다. 우리는 . 언제나 좋은 것을 주시는 하나님이심을 믿고 그 분의 인도하심에 위탁하는 자가 되어야합니다. 셋째. 경건을 추구하는 열정을 가져야합니다. 세상에도 열정이 없 으면 되는 일이 없습니다. 공부, 사업, 사랑할 때도 그러하지만 이 열 정이 경건의 방향을 향하여 열심히 나갈 때 우리에게 큰 유익이 됩니 다. 경건을 이용하여 육신의 소욕을 따르면 육의 열매가 맺힙니다. 경 건으로 인한 자족하는 삶이 여러분에게 일어나기를 바랍니다.

A satisfying godly life (1 Timothy 6:6-10)

Satisfaction in Christ is a godly life. When you do not know how to live a self-sufficient life in godliness, you become anxious.

The reason you cannot enjoy it even though you know it is because you are unable to pay attention to the teachings of godliness. Paul did not say that this was Satan, but that it was greed that had penetrated deep into us. What must we do to live a self-sufficient life in godliness? first. The object of desire must change. Verse 10 says, "Money is the root of all kinds of evil." Money is an important tool for the marker to seduce you or your greed for money. Money, sex, and power are necessary in our daily lives, but the Bible warns us in many ways that the consequences of profligacy are enormous. Today's text points out three results. 1) It becomes the root of all evil. The Bible shows that many people have ruined their lives because of material things, and it is similar to the 10th commandment in the case of Gown Management under Achan, Israel, who worships other gods, becomes a slave to greed. 2) It causes people to depart from faith. God and His Word, the object of faith, are the source of Christian life. _Saved by faith, established by faith. Neiman Daeseo's medical doctor Ilpoom Hyeongryuk Inana. What I do, and what Daevong leans against, is greed. Those who leave the faith are expected to do as they please and believe in other things. 3) It forces us to live in worry. Naturally, for Tang people, the result is worry and worry. This brings anxiety and it brings fear. Since no one truly believes, he ensnares himself. So, the

Bible says that when we do not follow the desires of the flesh, but follow the desires of the Holy Spirit, and only fulfill the desires of the Holy Spirit, our souls live a life of true satisfaction. Second, we must learn to accept God's providence over reality. In verses 8-9, we are told to be content with food and drink. True satisfaction comes when you believe and accept the fact that God is in control of your current life and try to do your best there. Abraham's anxiety was that everything was going well for others, so why wasn't the same thing happening to me sooner? He changed after receiving the revelation that he was Almighty God. Isaac's defining characteristic is his acceptance of the realities of life. Joseph also...accepted the reality of suffering in his life. This made him blessed. However, in reality, Jacob ignored providence. How eventful has happened? Today, heroism and pragmatism have entered the church and are secularizing the values of the saints. Above all, living a satisfying life means believing that your reality is the best situation God has given you, we are.. We must believe that God always gives good things and entrust ourselves to His guidance. Third, we must have a passion to pursue godliness. Nothing in the world is possible without passion. It is the same in study, business, and love, but this passion is of great benefit to us when we work hard in the direction of godliness. By using godliness and

following the desires of the flesh, the fruit of the flesh is borne. I hope that a self-sufficient life brought about by godliness will come to you.

보배의식 (고후4:7-11) 2008. 9. 14.

본문에서 바울은 신자를 가리켜 보배를 가진 사람이라고 말합 니다. 고후 4:7절에 질그릇 안에 보배를 가졌으니라고 합니다. 이 세상에서 가장 부요한 자가 바로 신자라고 말합니다. 그런데 문제 는 바울처럼 이 부요감이 없다는 데 있습니다. 다 나와 같이 되 기를 원하노라고 말할 수 있으십니까? 내가 가진 보배의 가치를 모르면 굉장한 자원과 은혜를 가지고 있음에도 불구하고 영적 타 고린도 교인들에게 간증하는 것입니다. 첫째. 신자가 가진 보배란 무엇인가요? 1) 그리스도가 보배입 니다. 요 14:6절은 보배 중 보배가 예수님이심을 보여줍니다. (길, 진리, 생명) 우리 기독교 용어를 동일하게 사용하면서 유혹하는 이 때 우리는 어떻게 분별할까요? 참 보배 그리스도를 모르면 넘 어지고 맙니다. 그리스도 안에 지혜와 지식의 모든 보화가 감추어 있느니라(골3:2)는 바울의 선언대로 지식이란 얼마나 중요합니까? 하나님, 세상, 자기, 현재, 장래. 생명. 사망에 관해 잘아는 길은 하나님이 열어주실 때만 알 수 있는데 이것이 그리스도이십니다. 지혜란 무엇인가요? 지혜란 지식을 적용한 것입니다. 예수님은 지 식도 되고 지혜도 되십니다. 2) 둘째 보배는 죄로부터의 구원입니 다. 죄 문제를 해결한 사람이 보배를 가진 사람입니다. 다윗이 복 된 것(롬4:7-8)은 죄 사함을 받았기 때문입니다. 3) 또 복음 직분 이 보배입니다. 여기서 사도이지만 복음과 관계된 각 종류의 모든 직분이 보배에 포함됩니다. 그래서 신자는 직분에 관한 보배 의식 을 갖고 살아갑니다. 발견한 보배를 자기의 전체를 주고 사는 것 처럼 이 보배의식이 충만할 때 세상을 활보하며 살아 갈 수 있는 것입니다. 둘째. 이 보화를 어떻게 누리며 지킬까요? 바울은 자기 경험을

통해 말합니다.(7-8) 네 가지 고난 즉, 1) 환경의 악 조건으로 우 겨 쌈을 당하거나 2) 기가 막힌 웅덩이에 갇힌 것처럼 답답함을 당해 낙심하거나 3) 까닭 없이 몰려오는 핍박이나 4) 졸지에 넘어 져 거꾸러뜨림을 당하였지만 보배 의식을 가졌기 때문에 이 모두 를 이길 수 있었습니다. 그는 싸이지 않았고 담대했고 능력을 체 험했습니다. 자기는 깨지기 잘하고 넘어지기 잘하는 질그릇 의식 과 예수만이 보배이고 하나님 말씀만이 보배라는 의식이 그의 마 음을 사로잡을 때 고난의 자리에서 능력을 체험하고 사망의 자리 가 도리어 생명을 체험한 사실을 우리에게 보입니다. 예수와 그의 말씀이 보배라는 것을 깊이 알 때 우리 앞에 몰려오는 모든 공격 을 잘 극복할 수 있는 것입니다. 자살 마커, 음란 마커, 싸움 마커 가 범람하는 이 때, 질그릇 안에 보배를 가진 사실을 알고 믿음으 로 나가시기를 바랍니다. 세상에서 가장 큰 부요를 누리는 자로 살아가시기를 축원합니다.

요나 선교사의 기도(1) (욘2:1-10) 2008.

요나서를 읽다보면 우리는 선교하는 일에 교회가 필요로 하는 중 요한 메시지를 많이 발견합니다. 무엇인가요? 선교의 부름이란 하 나님의 말씀이 임함으로 시작된다는 사실과 선교 부름이란 모든 그리스도인이 반드시 응해야 할 절대 사명이란 사실입니다. 그리 스도인은 이 세상을 향해 가라고 부름 받은 선교사라는 진리가 분 명히 나타나 있습니다. 선교의 사명은 우리 모든 생활의 중심에 서 있어야합니다. 그런데 중심에 있어야 할 이 사명이 점점 흐려 져 가는 것은 무엇 때문인가요? 그것은 사명을 주신 하나님을 모르거나 그 사명의 가치를 모르기 때문입니다. 왜 그 가치를 모릅 니까? 기도하지 않기 때문입니다. 그 중요한 것을 바로 감당하기 위해 무엇보다 기도를 배워야합니다. 기도할 줄 모르는 자는 선교 는 것이고, 선한 양심이 증거하는 것입니다. 그래서 사도들은 기도 하는 일과 말씀 전하는 일에 전무하기 위하여 모든 것을 포기해야 만 했습니다. 사도들이 말씀과 기도에 전무하리라는 직무는 여전히 교회의 일 꾼들에게도. 그대로 적용되는 것입니다. 그래서 바울은 디모데 전 서에서 먼저 바른 교훈에 착념하고 기도할 줄 아는 사람이 되어야 만 하고(1:-2:) 그런 일꾼을 선출하라고 했습니다. 왜냐하면 다른 가정생활, 교회생활, 대인관계.. 문제해결 방법이 오직 하나님의 지 혜로만 할 수 있기 때문입니다. 요나의 기도 체험은 어떤 것이었 나요? 첫째, 스올의 뱃속에서 부르짖는 기도였습니다. 1:16 보면 이미 풍랑 속에서도 하나님의 은혜의 손길은 요나와 같이 하셨습니다. 큰 고기 속에 들어간 것이 하나님의 은혜였습니다. 이 은혜를 받 니다. 1:9-10에 제비가 그에게 걸리자, 대답하되 나를 들어 바다에 던지라

그리하면 바다가 너희를 위하 여 잔잔하리라 너희가 이 큰 폭풍을 만난 것이 나의 연고인줄 내 가 아노라"고 했습니다. 진정한 회개는 자기가 책임지려고 하는 마음이 먼저 일어나야 합니다. 핑계가 아닌 책임진 자의 마음입니다. 마치 십자가상의 우 편강도가 우리가 당하는 것이 마땅하도다(눅23:41 우리의 행한 일에 상당한 보응을 받는 것이니 이에 당연하거니와)고 하는 책임 진 마음이 회개인 것입니다. 그럴 때 하나님은 즉각 응답하셔서 은혜를..베푸십니다. 징계. 중에서도고기를 준비했다가 그를 삼키 도록 했습니다. 그러나 이보다 더 큰 은혜는 그가 일정한 고난 의 과정을 통과하여 연단을 시키는 자리에 떨어지게 되었다는 점 입니다. 정말 그가 당한 고난은 하나님의 은혜였습니까? 우리는 그의 기도 속에서 하나님이 회개자에게 주시는 말로 다할 수 없는 은혜의 세계를 봅니다. 1) 그는 당한 고난을 "스올의 뱃속" 이라고 했다. 지옥이란 표현이다 고기도 이 도하고 달한 위격이어지고 무엇보다 그치 그 속에 자기 영혼이 고난을 당하는 자리임을 알고 옥이란 말을 쓰고 있는 것이다.

Treasure consciousness (2 Corinthians 4:7-11) 2008. 9. 14.

In the text, Paul refers to believers as people who have treasure. 2 Corinthians 4:7 says he had treasure in jars of clay. It is said that the richest people in this world are believers. But the problem is that we do not have this sense of wealth like Paul did. Can you say, "I want everyone to be like me?" If I do not know the value of the treasure I have, I am testifying to the Corinthians who are spiritually outcast, even though I have great resources and grace. First, what is the treasure a believer has? 1) Christ is the treasure. John 14:6 shows

that the treasure of treasures is Jesus. (Way, truth, life) How do we discern when we are tempted to use the same Christian terminology? If you do not know Christ, the true treasure, you will fall. How important is knowledge, as Paul declared that all the treasures of wisdom and knowledge are hidden in Christ (Colossians 3:2)? The way to know God, the world, self, present, future, life, and death can only be known when God opens it, and this is Christ. What is wisdom? Wisdom is the application of knowledge. Jesus is both knowledge and wisdom. 2) The second treasure is salvation from sin. The person who has solved the problem of sin is the person who has the treasure. David was blessed (Romans 4:7-8) because he received forgiveness of his sins. 3) Also, the gospel ministry is a treasure. Here, although he is an apostle, all types of offices related to the gospel are included in the treasure. Therefore, believers live with a sense of treasure regarding their duties. When you are filled with this treasure consciousness, you can walk around the world and live, as if you were giving your whole self for the treasure you found. second. How can we enjoy and protect this treasure? Paul speaks through his own experience. (7-8) There are four types of suffering: 1) being overwhelmed by adverse environmental conditions, 2) feeling discouraged and discouraged as if trapped in a stuffy cistern, or 3) being pushed around for no reason. Although I suffered persecution and 4) unexpectedly fell and fell, I was able to overcome all of these because I had a sense of treasure. He was courageous and courageous, and he experienced his power. When a person's mind is captured by the consciousness that he is a fragile and prone to falling like a pottery vessel and that only Jesus and the Word of God are his treasure, he experiences power in the place of suffering and experiences life in the place of death. It is visible to . When we deeply know that Jesus and his words are a

treasure, we can overcome all the attacks that come our way. At a time when suicide markers, obscenity markers, and fight markers are flooding in, I hope you step out in faith knowing that you have treasure in earthen vessels. I hope that you live as one who enjoys the greatest wealth in the world.

요나 선교사의 기도(2) (욘2:1-10) 2008.

5-6절에 보면, 물이 영혼까지 습한다 했고, 바다. 풀이 얼굴 을 싸매며, 깊음이, 얼굴을 둘렸고, 바다 산 뿌리까지 내려갔고, 땅의 빗장이 불편하고, 갑갑한 육체적인 고통만을 납한가다고 통달 그 곳이 하어와, 하김도 버리셨다는 영혼의 답답함을 맛본 것입니다. 그의 고통이 얼마나 더하였는지, 예수님이 자신의 죽음을 여기 비고하니다. 한우리가, 주의는 아이사제%, 나가 처우 자약물 아무도 도울 수 없고, 자기도 어떻게 할 수 없는 자리였습니다. 이 것이 은혜라고 말할 수 있는 가요? 이것은 저주이지 은혜가 아니라 고 말할 것입니다.(마13:38-41) 그 지옥같은 자리가 요나에게 은혜 의 자리가 된 것은 무엇으로 증명됩니까? 하나님께 부르짖는 기도 이 뜻에 하건의 경일 남다 그 치이고, 아지, 양고, 기도한건고 덕신나 입니다. 사방이 막혀 있을 때 눈에 보이지 않는 살아계신 하나님을 주목하며 부르짖었던 것입니다. 이것이 은혜인 것입니다. 참 기도를 할 수 있는 것이 은혜였습니다. 골방의 기도였습니다. (마6:6) 히스 기야의 벽을 향한 기도처럼 다른 움직임을 보려는 마음을 갖게 합니다. 이것은 화난 날의 기도였습니다. 둘째, 강청하는 믿음의 기도였습니다. 고난 속에서 부르짖는 요 나의 기도는 확신에 넘치는 믿음의 기도였습니다. 이것은 자기를 이곳에 던지신 분을 바로 알고 그 분을 바라보는 믿음에서 나오는 기도였기 때문입니다. 본문에 보면 주란 말이 11번 나오고 하나님 이란 말이 6번 나옵니다. 고난당하는 순간 나만 계속 보다가 이제 주만 보인 것입니다. 야고보의 권면대로 고난당할 때 그는 믿음의 기도로 위대한 기적을 만든 것입니다. 2절에 벌써 그는 그 기도를 내게 대답하셨고... 주께서 나의 음

성을 들으셨나이다 "는 과거형을 보면 그는 손에 잡히는 것이 없었 어도 그를 믿었던 것입니다. 6절에도 '나의 하나님 여호와여 주꺼 서 내 생명을 구덩이에서 건지셨나이다고 했습니다. 7절에도 "내 영혼이 내 속에서 피곤할 때에 내가 여호와를 생각하였더니 내 기도가 주께 이르렀사오며 주의 성전에 미쳤나이다"고 했습니다. 특히 4절에서 우리는 그의 역설적인 기도, 소리를 듣습니다. "주의 목전에서 쫓겨났을지라도 다시 주의 성전을 바라보겠다 하 였나이다." 이것이 강청하는 믿음의 기도입니다. 하나님께 쫓겨나 절망하거나 낙심으로 끝나지 않고 믿음으로 기도한 것입니다. 왜 그는 이런 기도를 할 수 있었는가요? "구원은 오직 하나님께로 온 다" (19)는 진리를 알았기 때문입니다. 셋째. 감사 제사를 드리는 기도였습니다. 요나 기도를 읽다보면 그가 기도를 하는 건지, 찬양을 하는 건지, 모를 정도로 고기 뱃속 에서 인미하나날께 감사의 제사를 드렸음을 봅니다. 9절 "나는 감사하는 목소리로 주께 제사를 드리며 나의 서원을 주께 갚겠나이 다" 그는 지금 구약 화목제를 드리는 것입니다. 감사, 서원, 자원 의 제사를 드릴 때 그 마음에 벌써 신약적 복음의 은혜를 누리고 있었습니다. 이것은 한나 기도와 같고 마리아의 기도와 찬양과도 같습니다. (눅2:1절 이하) 이것이 은혜받은 성도의 기도입니 다.(16-17) 이 기도를 통한 선교 효과를 체험하시기를 축원합니다.

Missionary Jonah's Prayer (2) (Jonah 2:1-10) 2008.

In verses 5-6, it is said that water moistens even the soul, and the sea. The grass wrapped around the face, the depth surrounded the face, the sea went

down to the roots of the mountains, the bars of the earth were uncomfortable, and only brought about oppressive physical pain. I experienced the frustration of my soul. How much more his suffering had become, Jesus was describing his death here, Hanuriga, attention was given to Aisaje%, and he was in a position where no one could help him and he himself could not do anything. Can we say this is grace? They would say that this is a curse, not grace. (Matthew 13:38-41) What proves that that hellish place became a place of grace for Jonah? Prayer to cry out to God In this meaning, it is the day of the day of the day of the day of the year of the prayer. When everything was blocked, I focused on the invisible living God and cried out. This is grace. Being able to truly pray was a blessing. It was a prayer in the closet. (Matthew 6:6) Like the prayer toward the wall of Hezekiah, it makes us want to see other movements. This was a prayer for the day of trouble. Second, it was a persistent prayer of faith. My prayer, crying out in suffering, was a prayer of faith full of confidence. This is because it was a prayer that came from faith in knowing the One who threw him here and looking at Him. In the text, the word Lord appears 11 times and the word God appears 6 times. At the moment of suffering, I kept seeing only myself, but now I only see the Lord. When he suffered as James advised, he created a great miracle through his prayers of faith. Verse 2 says, "He has already answered my prayer... and you have heard my voice." In the past tense, we can see that he believed in him even though he had nothing to put his hands on. Verse 6 also says, 'O LORD my God, be thine. He said in verse 7, "When my soul fainted within me, I remembered the Lord; my prayer came to you and reached your temple." We hear his paradoxical prayer, "Even though I have been cast out of Your sight, I will look again to Your temple." This is a prayer of faith that does not end in despair or discouragement after being driven out by God. Why was he able to pray like this? Because he knew the truth that "salvation comes only from God" (19). Third, it was a prayer of thanksgiving. When we read Jonah's prayer, we see that he offered a sacrifice of thanks to Inmihananal from inside the fish's stomach to the extent that one does not know whether he was praying or praising. Verse 9, "I will offer you a sacrifice with a thankful voice and pay my vows to you." He is now offering an Old Testament peace offering. When I gave thanks, made a vow, and offered a sacrifice of resources, I was already enjoying the grace of the New Testament gospel in my heart. This is the same as Hannah's prayer and Mary's prayer and praise. (Luke 2:1ff.) This is the prayer of the saints who have received grace. (16-17) I pray that you experience the effectiveness of missions through this prayer.

주께 미친 신자 (고후 5:11-15) 2008. 10. 19.

본래 사람은 하나님의 형상대로 지어졌기에 아름답습니다. "하나님의 보시기에 심히 좋았더라(창1:31)"는 고백은 외모도 그러했지만 내면에 하나님을 중심한 균형 잡힌 존재로 만들어졌기 때문입니다. 영혼이 거듭나 면 영생을 소유하여 하나님과의 교제가 가능한 존재가 되는 것입니다.(고 후5:17) 이것은 너무 신비하기에 성경은 간단히 말할 뿐입니다. 이것을 안 바울은 자기는 예수에게 미쳤다고 말합니다. 미쳤다는 말은 영어로 crazy 라고 하는데 비정상이란 것입니다. 어느 한 쪽으로 기울어져서 그 쪽으로 나가려는 경향성이 있는 것을 미쳤다고 말합니다. 중심이 바꾸어진 것을 가리킵니다. 자기중심이 예수 중심으로. 바꾸어진 것입니다. 우리도 바울처 럼 복음에 미치는 방법에 대해 생각하고 그 복된 세계를 누리려고 합니다. 예수에게 미치는 것이란? 첫째, 그리스도의 사랑에 이끌리는 것입니다. 바울은 그리스도의 사랑 이 나를 강권하시는도다고 말합니다. 그리스도의 사랑이 그의 생각. 삶. 선 택, 활동의 동기가 된다는 말입니다. 십자가의 사랑을 생각할 때 사랑할 수밖에 없다는 말입니다. 우리가 먼저를 그를 사랑한 것이 아니고 그가 먼 저 우리를 사랑했기 때문에 그를 죽도록 사랑하는 것입니다. 우리가 아직 죄인이었을 때 그 아들을 죽게 하심으로 우리를 사랑하심을 확증하셨다 (롬5:8)고 말합니다. 창조하심처럼 성부는 자기 아들을 주기까지, 성자는 자원하여 대신 죽기까지, 성령은 그 구원을 적용하시려고 자상하게 우리 앱에서 아이스을로 우리 부산하 먼저 사자인 열의 후사랑 역사 그를 사랑하지 않을 수 없게 된 것입니다. 바울이 복음을 위해 가졌던 목숨을 바칠 각오는 그의 말년에 가서도 변

하지 않았습니다. 나의 달려 갈 길을 마치고 선한 싸움을 싸웠으니 이제 의의 면류관이 내게 준비되었다고 말하고 있기 때문입니다. 삼하22:-23: 의 다윗의 말을 보더라도 얼마나 놀라운가를 압니다. 그의 고백처럼 이스 라엘의 바위이신 여호와에게 치우친 생애였습니다. 이것은 하나님의 말씀 에 치우친 생애였음을 보입니다. 그 말씀을 묵상하고 그 말씀을 순종하는 라인에 있는 것을 복 자체로 믿은 것입니다. 둘째, 이웃의 덕을 위해 자기를 희생합니다. 복음을 알 때 일어나는 사 상 변화 몇 가지가 있습니다. 자기를 부인하고 그리스도를 닮아가려는 소 원입니다. 동시에 그에게 이 빛을 이웃에게 전하려는 소원이 나타나는 것 입니다. 열방을 품으시기 바랍니다. 지상명령으로 신자의 폭은 세계화 되 었습니다. 열방이 나의 교구입니다. 돈을 벌더라도. 기도하더라도. 공부하 더라도 건강하더라도 열방을 위해 살 욕심을 가지시기 바랍니다. 셋째. 그리스도만을 위해 사는 것입니다. 궁극적 목적을 주를 위해 사 는 것으로 삼았습니다. 주의 사랑에 이끌려 그를 사랑하는 그리스도인이 어떤 희생을 치르고 열방을 위해 모든 희생을 드리고 많은 일을 하는 것 이 우리의 궁극적 목적이 아닙니다. 오직 하나님의 영광을 위하고 그를 즐 기는 상태가 되지 아니하면 이것은 잘못 미친 것입니다. 바울처럼 먹으나 마시나. 사나 죽으나 주를 기쁘시게 하려는 열망으로 가득 차 있어야 하고 다윗처럼 오직 여호와만이 나의 바위며 나의 등불임을 확신해야 할 것입 니다.(삼하23:4) 그리스도 안에 약속된 과거의 청산 (구름 없는 아침)과 희망찬 현실의 위로 (태양의 따사로움으로 보호받으며 자라는 풀처럼)와 장래의 꿈

(열방에 전할 소식을 가진 자로 일출하는 태양처럼)을 갖고 능 력과 소망으로 가득, 찬 삶을 살아나가시기를 축원합니다.

Believers who are crazy about the Lord (2 Corinthians 5:11-15) 2008. 10. 19.

Originally, humans were beautiful because they were created in the image of God. The confession that "God saw that it was very good (Genesis 1:31)" is because, although it looked like that on the outside, it was created on the inside as a balanced being centered on God. When a soul is born again, it possesses eternal life and becomes capable of fellowship with God (2) Corinthians 5:17). This is so mysterious that the Bible only speaks briefly about it. Paul, knowing this, says that he is crazy about Jesus. The English word "crazy" means abnormal. He calls it crazy to have a tendency to lean towards one side and go out on that side. It indicates that the center has changed. His self-centeredness changed to center on Jesus. Like Paul, we also want to think about ways to reach the gospel and enjoy that blessed world. What does it mean to Jesus? First, we are drawn to the love of Christ. Paul says that the love of Christ compels me. This means that the love of Christ motivates his thoughts, life, choices, and activities. When he thinks of the love of the cross, he has no choice but to love. We love him to death not because we loved him first, but because he first loved us. It says that while we were still sinners, he demonstrated his love for us by sending his Son to die (Romans 5:8). Just as in creation, the Father gave his Son, the Son volunteered to die in his place, and the Holy Spirit kindly applied the salvation to Ice in our app. It will. Paul's determination to sacrifice his life for the gospel did not change even in his later years. Because I am saying that I have finished my course, have fought the good fight, and now the crown of

righteousness is ready for me. Even looking at David's words in 2 Samuel 22:-23, we can see how amazing it is. As he confessed, his life was focused on Jehovah, the rock of Israel. This shows that his life was biased toward the Word of God. I believed that meditating on the Word and being in the line of obedience to it was a blessing in itself. Second, we sacrifice ourselves for the good of our neighbors. There are several changes in thinking that occur when one learns the gospel. It is a desire to deny oneself and become like Christ. At the same time, a desire to spread this light to his neighbors appears in him. Please embrace the nations. The breadth of believers has become global thanks to the Great Commission. The nations are my parish. Even if you make money, pray, study, or be healthy, please have the desire to live for the nations. Third, live only for Christ. I made living for the Lord my ultimate goal. As Christians who are driven by the love of the Lord and love him, making any sacrifices, offering all sacrifices, and doing many things for the nations is not our ultimate goal. If you are not in a state of seeking only the glory of God and enjoying Him, you are wrongly crazy. Like Paul, you must be filled with the desire to please the Lord whether you eat or drink, whether you live or die, and like David, you must be convinced that only the Lord is your rock and your lamp. (2 Samuel 23:4) Clearing the past promised in Christ (cloud) May you live a life full of ability and hope, with the comfort of a hopeful reality (like the grass that grows protected by the warmth of the sun) and dreams of the future (like the sun rising as someone with news to convey to the nations). I wish you luck.

하늘에 있는 영원한 집 (고후5:1-10) 2008. 10. 12.

오늘 본문의 사도 바울은 지금 고난 속에 있는 고린도교인들에게 위로의 말을 하면서 "우리의 육신의 장막이 무너지면 손으로 짓지 아니한 영원한 집이 우리를 기다리고 있음"을 보여줍니다.(1) 시 간이나 장소나 상황의 차이일 뿐 선진들이 들어간 하늘 장막에 모두 들어가게 될 것입니다. 하늘 장막에 들어갈 자는 어떤 자세를 가져야합니까? 첫째, 그 집을 사모해야합니다. 2절에 보니까 하늘로부터 오는 우리 처소로 덧입기를 간절히 사모 하노니 라고 했습니다. 바울은 그 처소로 덧입기를 사모하는 심정으로 살아갔다는 것입니다. 여기 집이라고 하니까 우리는 물질적인 것으로 먼저 생각합니다. 그러나 바울은 그 세계의 집은 신령한 것임을 생각하고 있습니다. 요한이 본 하늘 세계도 건물이 아닌 신령한 것 곧 하나님의 성품입니다. 진실과 거룩과 의로 충만한 완전 실제하는 세계일 것입니다. 그것 을 보자마자 내 것으로 삼으려는 강한 욕심이 생겨 덧입기를 원한 것입니다. 현재 입은 옷도 있고 건강도 있고 무엇이 있지만 그것을 보는 순간 비교가 안 되는 것입니다. 이것이 우리 집입니다. 우리는 예수 믿음으로 이 복을 누리고 있습니다. 육신의 잘 됨도 미국에 사는 것처럼 복을 누리는 사람이 누구입니까? 무엇보다 예수 믿어 신령한 저 세계를 아니까 얼마나 복 됩니까? 그래서 우리는 현실에 안주하지 않고 저 세계로 덧입기를 사모하는 것입니다. 둘째, 거룩한 탄식을 가져야합니다. 2-4절에서 탄식이란 말이 두 번 나옵니다. 2절에는 여기있는 것을 탄식하며 4절에는 짐진 것같 이 탄식한다고 했습니다. 다시 말하면 현재의 고난을 탄식하며 산 다는 것입니다. 영원한 집이 있는 우리에게도 탄식이

있습니다. 탄 식에는 포기하는 탄식과 덧입으려 하는 안타까움으로 발버둥치는 탄식이 있는데 우리의 탄식은 후자입니다. 포기하는 탄식은 마귀가 주는 것입니다. 창조적인 탄식을 갖지 못할 때사람들의 비난을 견 디기가 어렵지만 어떻게 생을 포기합니까? 다윗의 망명시절에 하나 님은 다윗의 원통한 마음을 하감하시고 역사하셨습니다. 아히도벨의 모략을 꺾으심은 압살롬을 죽이시기로 작정하셨기 때문입니다. 하나님 나라는 탄식하는 성도의 기도를 통해 이루어지는 것입니다. 셋째. 심판대 앞에 선 의식으로 살아가야합니다. 마지막으로 사도 처럼 우리는 현실을 살아갈 때 심판대 앞에 서 있는 의식으로 살아 가야 합니다. 사모심과 탄식의 마음은 심판의식에서 생기기 때문에. 서호 여관이 있습니다. 9-10절에 보면 바울은 어찌하든지 주를 기 쁘시게 하려는 목표를 잃지 않았습니다. 선악간의 심판의식이 그를 지배한 것입니다. 이 의식이 코랑 데오(Coram Deo - 하나님 앞에 서란 뜻)입니다. 영안이 뜨여진 증거입니다. 우리는 영원한 집을 가진 자로 살지만 하나님을 기쁘시게 하려 는 목적을 더 분명히 하고 살아가야 할 것입니다. 이 복된 자리에 모두 참여하기를 축원합니다.

Eternal Home in Heaven (2 Corinthians 5:1-10) 2008. 10. 12.

In today's text, Apostle Paul gives words of comfort to the Corinthians who are currently suffering, showing that "when the tabernacle of our flesh falls, an eternal house not made with hands awaits us." (1) Time or It is only a difference in location and situation, but we will all enter the heavenly tent that the advanced people entered. What attitude should one who enters the

heavenly tabernacle have? First, you have to love the house. Verse 2 says, "We earnestly desire to be clothed with our dwelling place from heaven." Paul lived with a longing to be clothed in that place. When we say this is home, we think of material things first. However, Paul thinks that the world's house is spiritual. The heavenly world that John saw was not a building, but a spiritual thing, that is, the nature of God. It will be a completely real world filled with truth, holiness, and righteousness. As soon as I saw it, I had a strong desire to own it and wanted to wear it. You may have the clothes you are wearing, your health, or anything else, but the moment you look at them, there is no comparison. This is our house. We enjoy this blessing through faith in Jesus. Is there anyone who enjoys the physical well-being of those living in America? Above all, how blessed are you if you believe in Jesus and know the spiritual world beyond? That is why we do not settle for reality and long to enter the other world. Second, we must have holy sighs. In verses 2-4, the word sighing appears twice. In verse 2, it says that it groans over what is here, and in verse 4, it says that it groans as if it were a burden. In other words, we live while lamenting our current hardships. We who have an eternal home also have a sigh. There are two types of lament: the lament of giving up and the lament of struggling with regret to put on more. Ours is the latter. The sigh of giving up is given by the devil. When you don't have creative lament, it's hard to bear people's criticism, but how do you give up on life? During David's exile, God felt David's bitter heart and worked. The reason God broke Ahithophel's counsel was because He decided to kill Absalom. The kingdom of God is achieved through the prayers of the lamenting saints. third. We must live with the consciousness of standing before the judgment seat. Lastly, like the apostle, we must live with the consciousness of standing before the judgment

seat when living in reality. Because the feelings of longing and lament arise from judgment consciousness. There is a West Lake Inn. Verses 9-10 show that Paul did not lose his goal of pleasing the Lord no matter what. The judgment between good and evil dominated him. This ritual is Coram Deo (meaning to stand before God). This is evidence that the spiritual eye was opened. Although we live as people with an eternal home, we must live with a clearer purpose of pleasing God. I hope that everyone will participate in this blessed occasion.

하나님의 의의 병기(고후 6:1-10) 2008. 10. 26.

병기로서의 생활이란 어떤 것입니까? 며 골짜기 가운데 샘이 "보라"는 것입니다. 있습니다. 이 자리로 나갑시다. 계속 바울은 이 직분을 수행한 선임자로서 화목케 하는 자의 삶이 "하 나님의 의의 병기의 삶" 이라고 가르칩니다. 모든 일을 승리하기 위한 의의 첫째, 은혜 시대에 받을 복을 누리는 생활입니다. 그 복이란 무엇입니 까? 먼저, 영 단번의 구원입니다. 3절에 바울은 이 시대를 구워 시대라고 규정합니다. 이것은 바울 개인이 말이 아니고 하나님이 선포하신 것입니다. 은혜를 헛되이 받지 말아야 할 이유가 지금이 바로 은혜 시대이기 때문입 니다. 이사야 49:8절에 예언된 그 때(that time)가 바로 지금(now)입니다. 새 언약시대이며 제도적으로 은혜를 허락하는 때로써 다시는 기회가 없는 최종 기회인 신약시대를 가리킵니다. 복주는 날 하면 안식일인 것처럼, 바로 성령이 오신 이 시대는 은혜와 구원을 폭포수처럼 붓는 때입니다. 이사 야는 반복해서 예언하기를 평강의 때, 위로의 때, 치료의 때, 변화의 때, 의 가 물결치는 때, 평강의 왕, 의의 왕이 임하는 며 강한 자가 오시는 때라 고 했습니다. 그 분이 오시면 목자가 양을 안고 인도하듯이 기이한 구워이 이루어진다는 것입니다. 사41:9 에 보면 그 구원을 "내가 자산에 강을 열 나게 하며 광야로 못이 되게 하며 마른 땅으로 샘 근원이 되게 할 것이며" 라고 했습니다. 이 역사를 히브리서 10:14에 "저 가 한 제물로 거룩하게 된 자들을 영원히 온전케 하셨느니라"는 말로서 영단번의 구원이란 말을 사용하고 있습니다. 단 한 번의 속죄제로 영원한 효과를 나타내는 구원이 이루어졌다는 것입니다. 십자가 상에서 다 이루었 다는 한마디 말은 태초에 빛이 있으라는 선포처럼 권위(고후4:6)가 있습니다.

그러므로 구워받은 자의 생활에 강물처럼 흘러나는 은혜입니다. 요 10:10의 양적, 질적으로 풍성하게 넘치는 생명을 본 바울은 감탄하며 지금 바울은 고난과 은혜가 같이 움직이는 것을 본 것입니다. 4-5절에 고난 속에서 5가지 은혜 즉, 견딤, 순결, 지식, 성령 감화, 그리고 거짓 없는 사랑 을 본 것입니다. 한 마디로 고난 속에서 성령 부으시는 은혜를 체험한 것입 니다. 이것이 의의 병기로 사는 것입니다. 둘째, 하나님의 의의 병기란 역설적 진리의 삶을 체험하는 것입니다. 의 의 병기로 사는 신자는 좌우의 날선 검처럼 이 세상에서 하늘 세계를 누리 며 살아갑니다. 비록 세상 좋은 것을 잘 몰라도 그 배후에 현저히 나타나는 풍성의 세계를 알고 누리며 살아갑니다. 이것이 골방일 수 있고 직장일 수 있고 답답한 환경일 수 있습니다. 이것이 구원과 은혜의 세계입니다. 역설 적 진리의 체험(paradoxical experience)이라고 말할 수 있습니다. 여기에 9가지 체험들 즉, 1) 영광과 욕됨 2) 악한 이름과 아름다운 이름, 3) 속이 는 자와 참됨 4) 죽음과 부활 5) 무명과 유명 6) 징계 받으나 살아남 7) 근 심과 기쁨 8) 가난한 자로 남을 부요케 하는 자 9) 없는 자나 모든 것을 가진 자를 말해주는 극에서 극으로 치닿는 복의 근원으로 사는 것입니다. 이 역설적 체험이란 빌4:13절의 삶입니다. 은혜 시대에 사는 우리가 바울 의 인생관으로 바꾸어 진다면 놀라운 일이 일어날 것입니다. 이 악한 세대 에서 경건한 부자. 경건한 젊은이. 경건한 아내. 경건한 남편이 되는 꿈을 꾸며 순종하며 나갈 때 이 시대를 바꾸어 놓는 역설적 인생을 살아갈 수 있습니다. 이 자리로 나갑시다.

God's Weapon of Righteousness (2 Corinthians 6:1-10) 2008. 10. 26.

What is life like as a weapon? "Look" and there is a spring in the middle of the valley. Let's go to this place. Paul continues to teach that the life of a reconciler, as the predecessor to this position, is "the life of the weapon of God's righteousness." He does everything. First of all, it is a life of enjoying the blessings of the age of grace. First, what is salvation once and for all? In verse 3, Paul defines this era as the era of salvation. No, this is what God declared. The reason we should not receive grace in vain is because the time prophesied in Isaiah 49:8 is the new covenant. It refers to the New Testament era, a time when grace is institutionally permitted, and is the final opportunity that will never be available again. Just as the day of blessing is the Sabbath, this era in which the Holy Spirit has come is a time when grace and salvation are poured out like a waterfall. Isaiah repeatedly prophesied that it would be a time of peace, a time of comfort, a time of healing, a time of change, a time of waves of righteousness, a time of the coming of the Prince of Peace and of Righteousness, and a time of the coming of the Strong One. In Isaiah 41:9, it is said that a wonderful salvation is achieved, "I will make rivers of water in the wilderness, and waters of water in the wilderness, and springs of water in the dry land." Hebrews 10:14 says, "By one sacrifice he has perfected forever those who have been sanctified," using the phrase "once-for-all salvation" as a one-time sin offering. The one word, "It is finished," on the cross is as authoritative as the declaration that there was light in the beginning (2 Corinthians 4:6). Therefore, it is grace that flows like a river in the lives of those who have been saved. Paul was amazed when he saw the life overflowing quantitatively and qualitatively. Now, in verses 4-5, Paul sees the five graces in suffering: perseverance, purity, knowledge, and the Holy Spirit. I saw inspiration and unfeigned love. In short, I experienced the grace of the

outpouring of the Holy Spirit in suffering. This is living with the weapon of righteousness. Second, the weapon of God's righteousness is experiencing a life of paradoxical truth. Believers who live with the weapons of righteousness enjoy the heavenly world in this world like a sharp sword on both sides. Even though we do not know much about the good things in the world, we live knowing and enjoying the world of abundance that clearly appears behind it. This could be a closet, a workplace, or a stuffy environment. This is a world of salvation and grace. It can be said to be a paradoxical experience of truth. Here are nine experiences: 1) glory and dishonor, 2) an evil name and a beautiful name, 3) a deceiver and the truth, 4) death and resurrection, 5) obscurity and fame, 6) being disciplined but surviving, and 7) worry and joy. 8) Those who make others rich by being poor 9) Living as a source of blessings that reach from extreme to extreme, from those who have nothing to those who have everything. This paradoxical experience is the life of Philippians 4:13. If we who live in the age of grace change to Paul's view of life, something amazing will happen. A godly rich man in this evil generation. When you dream of becoming a godly young man, a godly wife, and a godly husband, and go forth in obedience, you can live a paradoxical life that will change this era. Let's go to this place.

거룩한 화평을 구하자 (고후6:11-14) 2008. 11. 9.

바울은 은혜시대에 사는 신자들에게 "거룩한 화평을 구하라" 고 가르 칩니다. "너희도 마음을 넓히라(13)" "믿지 않는 자와 멍에를 같이 하지 말라(15)"고 했기 때문입니다. 히브리서 12:14절에도 "모든 사람으로 더 불어 화평함과 거룩함을 좇으라 이것이 없이는 아무도 주를 보지 못하리 라"고 했습니다. 거룩함이 있는 화평인 것입니다. 첫째, 마음을 넓히라 하셨습니다. 이것을 화평의 삶을 가리킵니다.. 산상보 훈에도 화평케 하는 자가 복이 있다고 말씀하셨고 형제의 원망을 풀고 화 목한 후 제사를 드리라고 한 것은 화목이 예배의 본질이기 때문입니다. 하 나님과 화목되었기에 이웃과 화목할 수 있는 것입니다. 바울은 이 화목의 삶을 연합이라고 했습니다. 빌립보서 3:1절에 성령의 하나 되게 하신 것이 연합이란 것입니다. 복이란 마음 곧 영혼이 하나님과 화목하고 사람과 화목 한 상태를 가리킵니다. 이런 사람이 땅을 정복한 승리자이며 남을 부요케 하는 참 부자입니다. 그러면 어떻게 마음을 넓힐까요? 겸손으로 합니다. 이 겸손은 그리스도 예수의 마음을 품을 때만 됩니다.(빌2:5) 그러므로 예 수와의 연합을 힘써 지켜야 되는 것입니다. 둘째, 거룩을 구해야 합니다. 화평을 구하는 마음은 어떤 기준을 갖는데 그것이 거룩입니다. 거룩을 중심한 화평입니다. 거룩의 성경 언어인 카도쉬. (히브리어) 하기오스(헬라어)는 하나님의 것과 내 것, 세상과 하나님이 기름 과 물의 구분처럼 나눠진 것을 가리킵니다. 본문 14-15절에도 보면 성전과 우상이 일치하지 못하며 그리스도와 벨리알이 조화를 이룰 수 없는 것처럼 신자와 불신자의 멍에가 전혀 다릅니다. 그러면 거룩은 어떤 생활입니까? 1) 의와 경건을 따르는

생활입니다. 하 나님의 사람이 구할 의와 경건은 하나님과의 관계에서 두렵고 떨림으로 구 워을 이루는 경외신앙을 가리킵니다. 하나님 앞에 사는 생활이기에 하나님 없이 거룩함을 결코 생각할 수 없습니다. 관념적 하나님이 아니고 살아계신 하나님을 인정하기 때문에, 하나님의 편에 서는 것만이 사는 것이고 능력이 고 소망이고 진실이고 아름다움을 믿는 것입니다. 2) 산 제물로 드리는 생활입니다. (롬12:1) 여기 몸이란 전인을 가리킵니다. 하나님의 것은 이미 내 것이 아니고 하나님의 뜻대로 복종시켜 살라는 것입니다. 바친 바 된 것 은 이미 내 것이 아니고 주님의 것입니다. 주의 것을 내가 주장하는 것은 심각한 문제입니다. 아간, 옷사, 아나니아 삽비라 게하시그리고 웃시야가 하나님께 심판을 받은 것은 모두 그의 거룩을 침범한 월권행위 때문입니다. 이처럼 하나님은 바친 바 된 것에 주목하십니다. 거룩이란 바로 주인이 내 가 아니고 주님임을 믿고 모든 방면에 주님이 주인이심을 인정하고 그대로 사는 것입니다. 이 선이 영원한 효력을 발휘합니다. 르무엘 왕 어머니의 교 훈에 왕은 1) 독주, 여색, 침략을 금하라 한 것이나 아굴의 1) 거짓을 멀 리하며 2) 일용할 양식과 3) 중용을 구한 것의 요점은 거룩입니다. 거룩을 가질 때 세상에서 능력있게 살 수 있습니다. 거룩을 잃은 주인은 종이 될 수밖에 없습니다. 이번 선거로 우리는 세상이 이렇게 악하다는 사실과 복음의 능력은 정 말 위대하며 정신 차리라는 메시지를 주께로 듣습니다. 원래 복음으로 돌아 가라는 것입니다. 점 점 더 드러난 복음 알맹이인 거룩한 화평의 길을 따라 가라 하시는 것입니다. 끝까지 이 길을 따라가는 성도가 되시기 바랍니다.

Let us seek holy peace (2 Corinthians 6:11-14) 2008. 11. 9.

Paul teaches believers living in the Age of Grace to "seek holy peace." This is because he said, "Enlarge your hearts (13)" and "Do not be unequally yoked with unbelievers (15)." Hebrews 12:14 also says, "Pursue peace and holiness with all people, without which no one will see the Lord." It is peace with holiness. First, he told us to expand our minds. This refers to a life of peace. In the sermon on the Sermon, it is said that those who make peace are blessed, and the reason why it is said to offer a sacrifice after resolving the grievances of brothers and making peace is because reconciliation is the essence of worship. Because we have been reconciled to God, we can be reconciled to our neighbors. Paul called this life of harmony unity. In Philippians 3:1, the unity of the Holy Spirit is unity. Blessing refers to a state in which the heart, or soul, is at peace with God and with people. Such people are victors who have conquered the earth and are truly rich who make others rich. So how do you expand your mind? Do it with humility. This humility can only be achieved when you have the mind of Christ Jesus. (Philippians 2:5) Therefore, you must make every effort to maintain your union with Jesus. Second, we must seek holiness. The heart that seeks peace has a certain standard, and that is holiness. It is peace centered on holiness. The Biblical language of holiness, Kadosh (Hebrew) and Hagios (Greek), refers to the division between God's and mine, the world and God, like the division between oil and water. In verses 14-15 of the text, just as the temple and idols cannot be in harmony, and Christ and Belial cannot be in harmony, the yokes of believers and unbelievers are completely different. So what kind of life is holiness? 1) It is a life of righteousness and godliness. The righteousness and godliness that God's people seek refers to the fearful faith that achieves salvation through

fear and trembling in a relationship with God. Because it is a life lived before God, we can never think of holiness without God. Because we acknowledge the living God, not the conceptual God, only standing on God's side is living and believing in power, hope, truth, and beauty. 2) It is a life of living as a living sacrifice. (Romans 12:1) The body here refers to the whole person. What is God's is no longer mine and we must live in obedience to God's will. What has been offered is no longer mine, but the Lord's. What I am claiming is a serious matter. The reason Achan, Otsah, Ananias, Sapphira, Gehazi, and Uzziah were judged by God was all because of their actions that violated their holiness. In this way, God pays attention to what has been offered. Holiness means believing that the Lord is the Lord, not me, acknowledging that the Lord is the Lord in all aspects, and living accordingly. This good has eternal effect. In the teachings of King Lemuel's mother, the king was told to 1) abstain from strong drink, prostitution, and aggression; the main point of Agur's 1) abstaining from lies, 2) daily bread, and 3) seeking moderation was holiness. When you have holiness, you can live powerfully in the world. A master who has lost holiness has no choice but to become a servant. Through this election, we hear a message from the Lord that the world is so evil, that the power of the gospel is truly great, and that we must come to our senses. It means going back to the original gospel. He is telling us to follow the path of holy peace, which is the content of the gospel that is becoming more and more revealed. I hope you become a believer who follows this path until the end.

하나님과 화목하라 (고후5:16-21) 2008. 10. 26.

"구워" 등으로 울은 고난 속에 있는 교회를 위로하고 격려하기 위하여 인간적 방법을 쓰지 않고 오직 그리스도 복음의 진수를 밝혀주려고 힘썼습니 다. 그 내용은 무엇입니까? 하나님과 화목하고 세상을 하나님과 화 옥케 하라는 것입니다. 첫째, 복음은 하나님과 화목하는 것입니다. 18절에 "모든 것이 하나님께로 났나니 저가 그리스도로 말미암아 우리를 자기와 화목하게 하시고 또 우리에게 화목케 하는 직책을 주셨으니" 라고 했습니다. 먼저 하나님과 화목하는 것을 말했습니다. 이 말은 구원받기 전에 하나님과 원수된 것을 전제로 한 말입니다. 하나님과 원수 된 자. 하나님의 진노 아래 있는 자들이 우리였는데 그분께 돌아와 하나님과 화목되었다는 것입니다. 과거에 우리는 어떤 죄인이었나요? 전적으로 부패한 죄인입니다. 속에서 나오는 것이 자기를 더럽힌 죄인이 었습니다. 막7:21-22에 "음란 도적질 살인, 간을 탐 악독 속임, 음탕과 흘기는 눈, 훼방 교만 광패"가 우리 | 속에서 휴화산처럼 꿈 뜰 거리고 있다가 기회를 타서 박으로 나온다는 것입니다. 요사이 동성연애 결혼법의 통과 때문에 기독교인들이 큰 심각성을 띄는 이 때, 더 놀라운 것은 그 행의 죄가 우리 속에 들어있는 것을 봅니다. 행이란 무엇입니까? 신실치 못한 모든 생각에서 시작합니다. 하나님의 순리를 역리로 바꾸는 죄가 우리 속에 있다는 것입니다. 너희 가운데 죄 없는 자가 먼저 돌로 치라할 때 칠 자가 없었던 것 처럼 우리 역시 그리스도의 공로가 아니라면 이 죄에서 벗어날 수 없는 죄인이란 사실입니다. 예수님이 그 죄를 대신 받으시고 죽어주 셨고 살아나셨기 때문입니다.(고전15:2-3) 이것이 복은의 노란 자

위입니다. 그의 죽음과 부활은 하나님과의 화목을 이루는 유일한 길입니다. 그러나 이것을 아는 것만으로는 화목되지 못합니다. 그를 받아드려야 합니다. 이것을 영접이라고 했습니다.(요1:12-13) 마음 문을 여는 것이라고 했습니다. 회개와 믿음이라 했습니다. 둘째, 하나님과 화목시키는 자로 사는 것입니다. 복음을 믿어 하 나님과 화목된 자는 이 땅을 살아갈 때 화목케 하는 자로 사는 것 이라고 말합니다. 이 말을 바울은 화목케 하는 직책을 받은 사신으 로 살아가는 것이라고 했습니다. 19-20절에 신자를 Christ ambassadors 로 화목케 하는 말씀을 주셨다고 했습니다. 이것이 하나님과 화목한 모든 신자의 삶의 목적이 되게 하셨다는 것입니다: 아무리 다른 것 다해도 세상과 하나님의 화목을 위해 살지 않 으면 방황하는 인생을 사는 것입니다. 그러면 어떻게 이 악한 세상 을 하나님께로 화목시킵니까? 1) 먼저 나 자신이 하나님의 형상을 보여야 합니다. 2) 나 자신이 먼저 복음의 능력을 즐겨야합니다. 3) 복음 전하는 기술을 배워야합니다. 사랑하는 여러분은 이 시간 이 세상을 하나님께 화목시키는 자로 사시기 바랍니다. 화목케 하는 천국 대사들이 다 되시기를 축원합니다.

Be reconciled to God (2 Corinthians 5:16-21) 2008. 10. 26.

In order to comfort and encourage the church in suffering through "salvation," etc., we did not use human methods, but only tried to reveal the essence of the gospel of Christ. What is its content? Reconcile with God and reconcile the world with God. First, the gospel is reconciliation with God. Verse 18 says, "All things come from God, who reconciled us to himself through Christ and gave us the ministry of reconciliation." First, we talked about being reconciled

to God, which presupposes that we were enemies of God and were under God's wrath before we were saved, but we returned to Him and were reconciled to Him. . What kind of sinners were we in the past? We were completely corrupt sinners. In Mark 7:21-22, we were sinners with sexual immorality, theft, murder, lust and deceit. The "blasphemy, arrogance, and insanity" are floating within us like a dormant volcano, and then they seize the opportunity to come out. At a time when Christians are taking a great deal of seriousness due to the recent passage of the same-sex marriage law, what is even more surprising is the sin of that act. We see what is in us. It begins with all our unfaithful thoughts. The sin that turns God's law into evil is within us. Likewise, it is true that we too are sinners who cannot escape this sin without the merits of Christ, because Jesus took our sin, died, and rose again. (1 Corinthians 15:2-3) This is the yellow symbol of blessing. His death and resurrection are the only way to achieve reconciliation with God, but we must accept Him (John 1:12-13). Second, it is called repentance and faith. It is about living as one who is reconciled to God. It is said that those who believe in the gospel and are reconciled to God live as reconcilers when they live on this earth. Paul said that he was living as an envoy of reconciliation. He said in verses 19-20 that he gave words of reconciliation to believers as Christ ambassadors. This is the purpose of the life of every believer who is at peace with God: no matter how much you do, if you do not live for the reconciliation of the world and God, you will be living a wandering life. So how do we reconcile this evil world to God? 1) First, I must show myself the image of God. 2) I must first enjoy the power of the gospel. 3) We must learn the art of sharing the gospel. Dear friends, I hope that you live as people who

reconcile this world to God at this time. I pray that you all become heavenly ambassadors of reconciliation.

천상의 새 노래 (계14:1-5) 2008. 3. 9.

666짐승의 수에 맞서 인 맞은 자의 수. 14만 4천인을 가리켜 ... 땅에서 구속함을 받은 14만 4천인 밖에는 능히 이 노래를 배울 자가 없더라(3)" 고 했습니다. 이 숫자는 택한 자의 수라고 이 미 7장에서 말씀드린바 있습니다. 본문에는 더 구체적으로 그들 이마에 어린양의 이름과 아버지의 이름이 새겨졌다고 말합니다. (1). 어린양과 아버지의 소유의 택한 자란 것입니다. 엡 1:13절에는 성령의 인침으로 구워시킨다고 확증하고 있습니다. 완벽한 구원입 니다. 예정. 선택. 소명. 칭의. 양자됨. 기업이 됨. 성화. 영화된다고 합니다. 그러면서 바울은 부름의 소망. 기업의 풍성한, 부활의 강력을 이미 주셨기에 하나님을 앎으로 그것들을 알게 해 달라는 기도를 드렸습니다. 그러므로 교회란 제도. 건물이 아니라 바로 사 람이란 것을 우리는 깊이 자각해야합니다. 교회란 택한 사람들이 모임입니다. 마6:18-19절에 음부의 권세가 이길 수 없고 천국열 쇠를 가진 자들이며 새 노래를 부를 수 있는 자들입니다. 첫째, 새 노래란 무엇을 가리킵니까? 2-3절에 하늘에서 나는 소 리가 많은 물소리와 뇌성 같고 거문고 타는 소리 같은 새 노래라 고 말합니다. 그 노래가 어떤 내용인가를 말하지 않지만 우리는 종전에 이미 새 노래를 부르는 4생물과 24장로와 천사들의 합창 에서 확실히 알 수 있습니다. 계시록 4:10 5:9, 5:12, 7:10, 12절, 5곳에 나오는 새 노래의 내용은 모두 죄에서 자기 백성을 구원하 심에 대한 감격에서 부르는 내용입니다. 구원의 방법은 어린양의 피. 구원의 결과는 죄사함. 영생. 왕 노릇함. 연합이라고 말합니 다. 우리는 새 노래를 부를 수 있는 자격자가 되 것을 감사해야합 니다. 둘째. 새 노래가 계속해서 나오기 위해 무엇을

힘써야합니까? 선택받은 자라고 말하면 되지, 또 다시 말하는 것은 새노래가 이 땅에서도 잘 부를 수 있는 자격조항을 보이는 것입니다. 어떤 것입니까? 정절이 있어야 합니다. 진실을 말해야 합니다. 순종의 마음이 회복되어야합니다. 심각하고 긴장이 있는 종말시대에 새노 래를 불러야합니다. 새노래를 잘 부르기 위해 이 세가지 문제가 해결되어야합니다. 정절 없는 자, 진실이 없는 자, 순종이 없는 자는 호산나를 결코 부를 수 없습니다. 자기를 부인하고(옷을 벗어 야한다) 겸손한 마음을 가지고 주님을 위해 손해를 볼 때 인자 위 에 오르락 내리락 함으로 더 나은 세계를 체험하게 될 것입니다. 죽음의 노래로 가득 찬 세상에 우리는 생명의 노래를 불러 산 소망을 주어야합니다.

New Song in Heaven (Revelation 14:1-5) 2008. 3. 9.

666 refers to the number of those who were sealed against the number of the beast, 144,000... No one could learn this song except the 144,000 who were redeemed from the earth (3). This number was chosen. We have already mentioned in chapter 7 that the name of the Lamb and the name of the Father are engraved on their foreheads (1). In verse 1:13, it is confirmed that salvation is achieved through the sealing of the Holy Spirit. It is predestination, election, justification, adoption, inheritance, sanctification, and glorification. Since God has already given us the power of resurrection, we prayed that we may know them through our knowledge of God. Therefore, we must deeply realize that the church is not an institution or a building, but people. In Matthew 6:18-19, they are those whom the gates of Hades cannot overcome, who have the keys to the kingdom of heaven, and who can sing a new song. First, what does the new song refer to in verses 2-3? It is said that it

is a new song like the sound of many waters, thundering, and the sound of a harp, but we can clearly know from the book of Revelation that the four living creatures, the 24 elders, and the angels sing the new song. 4:10 The content of the new song in five places, 5:9, 5:12, 7:10, and 12, is all sung in the excitement of saving his people from sin by saying that the method of salvation is the Lamb. It is said that the result of blood and salvation is forgiveness of sins, eternal life, reign as king, and unity. Second, we must be thankful that we are qualified to sing new songs. It is okay to say that you are the chosen one, but again, what qualifications must you have to sing the new song well? You must have a heart of obedience. . In these serious and tense end times, we must sing a new song. To sing a new song well, these three problems must be solved. Those without chastity, those without truth, and those without obedience can never sing Hosanna. When you deny yourself (take off your clothes), have a humble heart, and suffer losses for the Lord, you will experience a better world by ascending and descending on the Son of Man. In a world filled with songs of death, we must sing songs of life and give living hope.

푸른 나무를 꺾으신 이유(눅23:26-31) 2008. 3. 16.

성경에는 예수님을 가리켜 "복, 별, 사자, 놋뱀, 등불, 성전, 목자 등, 으로 비유했는데 본문은 푸른 나무로 비유했습니다. 푸른나무 를 주님이라면 마른 나무는 불신자(눅23:31) 곧 나를 가리킨다고 말할 수 있습니다. 푸른나무가 꺾이신 이유 곧 십자가를 지시고 죽 으신 이유가 무엇인가요? 그 대답을 아는 것이 모든 지식의 최급 선무입니다. 이것을 알지 못하면서 행복, 생명, 평화, 사망, 건강, 지 혜를 논할 수 없는 이유는 주님의 죽음이 모든 지식과 지혜의 근본 이기 때문입니다. 여러분은 이것을 아십니까? 그 나무는 왜 꺾이셨 나요? 첫째, 자기 백성의 죄를 위해 꺾이셨습니다. 죄는 심각한 문제입 니다. 그렇게 복된 자리에 죄가 들어옴으로 교제가 잃어지고 분별 력을 상실하고 자기중심적 지식으로 가정과 생업과 생육번성의 사 명이 최악으로 오염되어 버렸습니다. 모든 것의 부조화현상이 일어 난 것입니다. 죄를 해결하기 위해 선행과 종교를 만드나 해결할 길 이 그 어디에도 없고 현재도 없고 앞으로도 없을 것입니다. 하나님 이 마련해 주신 유일한 길은 의인 한 사람이 대신 죽음으로만 가능 하게 된 것입니다. 나의 죄 문제 해결을 위해 푸른 나무가 반드시 꺾어져야만 했기에 "인자는 들려야만하리라(요3:16)" 고 말씀하 신 것입니다. 둘째. 창조의 권위를 회복시키시기 위해 꺾어지셨습니다. 성부는 내어주셨고 성자는 능동적으로 선택하셨고 성령은 완전한 능력으로 그 일을 완성하셨습니다. 완전한 치료는 사람에게 없고 성령의 역 사로만 가능한 것입니다. 창세기2:27-28에 생육, 번성. 다스림의 사명이 회복되어 십자가의 죽음을 아는 자는 세속 문화의 종에서 벗어나게 된 것입니다. 그 분의 고난, 수모, 체형, 죽음

그리고 무덤 은 죄가 얼마나 나쁜가를 보여주는데 이것이 그가 꺾이심으로 살아 난 것입니다. 하나는 우편 강도의 돌발적 변화로 구원받는 일과 수 천년 지켜온 성소 휘장이 위로부터 아래로 찢어져 하나님 앞에 나갈 수 있는 길이 열린 것입니다.(히10:20) 바디메오처럼 누구든지 단순히 나가기만 하면 모든 문제가 극적으로 치료되는 것을 보입니 다. 나다나엘에게 약속하신 것, "인자 위에 오르락 내리락(요 1:59)" 하면서 하늘 은혜를 내 것으로 사용할 수 있게 된 것입니 다. 푸른 나무가 꺾이는 사건은 모든 권세를 성부께 드리는 일입니 다.(단7:13-14) 왕권의 회복은 우리로 땅에서 왕 노릇하게 하심입니 다. 그런데 사람이 왕 노릇하지 못하는 이유는 이 십자가를 믿지 않기 때문입니다. 셋째. 하나님 나라의 능력으로 살게 하기 위해서 꺾이셨습니다. 그의 꺾이심은 우리 지위를 끌어올려 그 능력으로 살게 하려는데 있습니 다. 다시 말하면 우리가 이 땅에서 왕 노릇하게 하심입니다. 일가족을 죽이 는 끔찍한 일은 공허의 문제입니다. 이 공백을 누가 무엇으로 메꾸나요? 명예, 권력, 건강, 재물로는 부족합니다. 오직 십자가 죽음으로만이 해결되 기에 자아 부인과 십자가 지라고 명하신 것입니다. 푸른 나무를 꺽으신 이 유를 깨달은 우리는 마른자리에서 다시 소망을 가질 수 있게 되었습니다. 고난에 동참함으로 심자가 능력을 체험하시기를 축위합니다.

The reason why the green tree was cut down (Luke 23:26-31) March 16, 2008. In the Bible, Jesus is compared to "a blessing, a star, a lion, a bronze serpent, a lamp, a temple, a shepherd, etc.," but the text compares him to a green tree. If the green tree is the Lord, the dry tree refers to the non-believer (Luke

23:31), that is, me. You can say that knowing the answer to why the green tree was broken, why he died on the cross, is the greatest duty of all knowledge. Do you know this because the Lord's death is the foundation of all knowledge and wisdom? First, sin was broken for the sins of His people. As sin entered this blessed place, fellowship was lost, discernment was lost, and the family, livelihood, and prosperous mission were severely contaminated with selfcentered knowledge. Although we create good deeds and religion, there is no way to solve it, and there is no way to solve it, and the only way that God has provided is through the death of a righteous person. Because it had to be broken, God said, "The Son of Man must be lifted up (John 3:16)." Second, the Father was broken in order to restore the authority of creation, the Son actively chose, and the Holy Spirit was perfected. He completed the work with His power, and it is possible only through the work of the Holy Spirit. In Genesis 2:27-28, those who know the death of the cross and the restoration of the mission of growth and governance are slaves of secular culture. His suffering, humiliation, physical condition, death, and grave show how bad sin is, and this is because he was saved through a sudden change in the right side of the thief and the sanctuary that he had maintained for thousands of years. The veil is torn from top to bottom, opening the way to come before God. (Hebrews 10:20) Just like Bartimaeus, all problems are dramatically cured if anyone simply goes out. What was promised to Nathanael was that I was able to use the grace of heaven as my own by "going up and down on the Son of Man" (John 1:59). The breaking of a green tree is an act of giving all authority to the Father. (Dan. 7:13-14) The restoration of royal authority allows us to reign as kings on earth. However, the reason people cannot reign is because they do not believe in this cross. Third, He was broken so that we could live

by the power of the kingdom of God. His breaking is to raise our status so that we can live by his power. In other words, He allows us to reign as kings on this earth. The horrific act of killing a family is a matter of emptiness. Who and what will fill this gap? Fame, power, health, and wealth are not enough. Since the only solution is through death on the cross, God commanded us to deny ourselves and take up our cross. After realizing the reason why the green tree was broken down, we were able to have hope again in the dry place. I pray that you will experience the power of your heart by participating in the suffering.

2000년 전 이스라엘에 일어난 그리스도 부활 사건 위에서 있는 기독교 는 한 종교가 아니라 인류가 마땅히 가야할 유일한 길입니다. 우리가 사는 이 시대는 마른나무에게 내릴 위험을 알리는 에언대로 지구의 온난화로 빚 어지는 천재지변과 사람들의 도덕이 땅에 떨어져 온갖 끔찍한 일들이 저질 러지며 고칠 수 없는 질병들이 여기저기서 보고되어 큰 염려를 안겨주는 현실입니다. 이 문제를 어떻게 해결하나요? 영원한 복음밖에 없습니다. 부 화을 기원한 녹음이실 에떤 것 만요. 강하게 불드시기를 바랍니다. 전사가 첫째. 그것은 구원의 복음이었습니다. 구원을 얻는 것은 이 소리를 듣는 길 뿐입니다. 우리 한국이나 중국이나 인도의 긴 역사 속에서도 이 복음이 가려있다가 하나님의 은혜로 증거된 사실은 정말 복 중 복입니다. 바울이 다메섹에서 부름받을 때 다른 이들은 빛을 보았으나 음성을 듣지 못했습니 다. 그. 음성을 들은 바이 강력한 힘으로 구원을 받습니다. 불가항력적인 은혜입니다. 죄에 빠져 영혼이 죽은 자를 살릴 수 있는 처방은 이 세상에는 없습니다. 죄에서 구원받는 길은 성경의 복음을 듣고 응답해야만 합니다. 이 복음이란 예수님이 나를 위해 성경대로 죽으시고 상경대로 살아나셨기 에 그를 내 구주로 믿는 것입니다. 둘째. 동시에 이 복음은 심판의 복음입니다. 셋째 천사가 심판을 선포 합니다. 인 맞지 않은 자는 쉼을 얻지 못합니다. 이것이 최초로 나타난 것 이 십자가 사건이었습니다. 아들의 죽으심에 하나님은 철저히 의를 따지셨 습니다. 그냥 넘어가는 것이 없으셨습니다. 공회 앞에서의 무죄임이 밝혀졌 음에도 불구하고 주닝의 억울한 죽음은 떨 깎는 자 앞의 양같이 다 뒤집어 쓰셨습니다. 이것은 의를 드러내시는

하나님의 얼굴을 보게 합니다. 죄를 철저히 따지시고 심판하신다는 것입니다. 죄란 무엇인가요? 불순종 불신앙 입니다. 그 삯은 사망이며 지옥 심판입니다. 이것이 하나님의 공의입니다. 그래서 누구든지 그 공로를 내 것으로 받아들이기만 하면 여기서 살아납니 다. 그런데 다 해놓은 것 올리기도 어렵습니다. 38년 된 병자가 자기를 물 에 넣어줄 사람이 없어 구원이 불가능한 것처럼 인간에게는 전혀 힘이 없 습니다. 셋째. 그것은 부활의 복음입니다. 바벨론의 멸망을 선포했습니다. 구워과 심판이 갈라지는 현장이 이 세상입니다. 여기서는 바벨론이라 했습니다. 이 세상은 언제나 하나님의 뜻을 대적합니다. 그 결과는 멸망입니다. 음행의 진노를 마시게 하는 역할을 합니다. 여기서 능력을 나타내는 것은 부활의 복음뿐입니다. 주님의 부활이 이 세상에서 어떻게 나타나지나요? 바울의 경 험에 의하면 날마다 주를 위해 죽을 때 능력이 나타난다고 했습니다. 그래 서 그의 능력의 삶의 비결은 세 가지를 아는 일이었습니다. 1) 그리스도를 알려는 것이고 2) 그의 부활을 알려는 것이고 3) 그의 죽음을 짊어지는 것을 아는데 있었습니다. 바울은 이 능력이 그리스도의 죽음에 참여할 때 생활에 나타나는 길을 알았습니다. 그리스도의 남은 고난을 자기가 지는 의 지적인 노력이 있었던 것입니다. 구레네 시온은 억지로 십자가를 졌고 우편 강도도 주님 편에 섰고 아리마대 요셉과 니고데모도 십자가의 수치를 담당 함으로 섬겼습니다. 마리아들도 끝까지 십자가 지는 일에 동참했습니다. 그 들은 정말 부활의 능력을 체험했습니다. 주를 위해 죽고 자 할 때 삽니다. 이 복된 자리에 모두 나가시기를 축원합니다.

Everlasting Gospel (Revelation 14:6-11) March 23, 2008

Christianity, based on the resurrection of Christ that occurred in Israel 2,000 years ago, is not a religion but the only path that humanity should follow. In this era we live in, as the prophecy warns of the danger that falls on dry trees, natural disasters caused by global warming, people's morals have fallen to the ground, all kinds of terrible things are being committed, and incurable diseases are being reported here and there, causing great concern. It's reality. How do I fix this? There is only the eternal gospel. I hope that whatever you wish for the fire to bloom will burn strong. Warrior comes first. It was the gospel of salvation. The only way to obtain salvation is to hear this voice. The fact that this gospel was hidden throughout the long history of Korea, China, and India, but was revealed by the grace of God, is truly a blessing in disguise. When Paul was called from Damascus, others saw the light but did not hear the voice. When you hear that voice, you are saved by powerful power. It is an irresistible grace. There is no remedy in this world that can revive those whose souls have died in sin. The way to be saved from sin is to hear and respond to the gospel of the Bible. This gospel means that I believe in Jesus as my Savior because He died for me according to the Bible and rose again according to the Bible. second. At the same time, this gospel is the gospel of judgment. The third angel announces judgment. Those who are not sealed cannot find rest. The first time this appeared was at the cross. God thoroughly considered righteousness in the death of his son. He didn't pass up anything. Even though he was found innocent before the public council, Juning's unjust death was condemned like a sheep before a shearer. This allows us to see the face of God who reveals righteousness. He thoroughly examines sin and judges it. What is sin? It is disobedience and disbelief. The wages are death and judgment in hell. This is God's justice. So, anyone who accepts the merit

as their own will survive here. However, it is difficult to upload everything that has been done. Just as a 38-year-old sick man cannot be saved because there is no one to put him in the water, humans have no power at all. third. It is the gospel of resurrection. The destruction of Babylon was declared. This world is the place where salvation and judgment are divided. Here it is called Babylon. This world always opposes the will of God. The result is destruction. It serves to make people drink the wrath of fornication. It is only the gospel of resurrection that shows power here. How does the Lord's resurrection appear in this world? According to Paul's experience, power is revealed when you die for the Lord every day. So the secret to his powerful life was to know three things. 1) To know Christ, 2) To know His resurrection, and 3) To know to bear His death. Paul knew how this power would be revealed in our lives as we participate in the death of Christ. There was an intelligent effort to take on the remainder of Christ's suffering. Zion of Cyrene was forced to bear the cross, the thief on the right side stood on the Lord's side, and Joseph of Arimathea and Nicodemus also served by bearing the shame of the cross. Mary also participated in carrying the cross until the end. They truly experienced the power of resurrection. I live when I am willing to die for the Lord. I wish you all the best in attending this blessed occasion.

부활 생명의 능력 (계 14:12-20) 2008. 3. 30.

성도는 심판받을 줄을 알고 두려움으로 살아가야 하는 것입니다. 해도 구워받으나 부끄러운 가운데서 건집 받는 자가 될 것입니다. 하는 일이었습니다. 여러분 속에 부활 생명이 약동하는 체험을 하 시기 바랍니다. 본문에는 두 종류의 생명. 자연생명과 부활생명의 결과가 어떠한 가와 부활 생명을 가진 자가 어떻게 살아야 할 것을 보여줍니다. 첫째, 자연생명은 멸망으로 마칩니다. 17-20절에 포도나무가 잘 익었는데 천사가 날 센 낫으로 거두어서 진노의 포도주 틀에 던진 단자. 옛 노다 열에시호부가 살절 맛이 하여고 피 달라회 1600 스다디온(형벌의 영원성과 세계성을 뜻함)에 퍼졌다고 말합 니다. 불신자에 대한 심각한 심판을 보인 것입니다. 이곳에 들어갈 사람이 누구인가요? 짐승과 우상에게 경배하고 666표를 받은 사람 이라고 했습니다.(9-11) 한마디로 성령이 없는 사람 곧 자연생명으 로 사는 사람입니다. 우리는 자연생명을 귀하게 여기지만 그 생명 에 모든 것을 걸고 살지 않습니다. 더 나은 생명을 받았기 때문입 니다. 자연인에 대해 죄와 허물로 죽은 사람 (엡2:1-3)이라 말하며 공중의 권세 잡은 마귀를 따르는 자이며 육체의 욕심으로 사는 사 람으로 하나님의 진노를 받을 사람이라고 말했습니다. 일시적으로 성령의 일반은총의 도움으로 사는 사람입니다. 그 특징은 불순종이 며 교만입니다. 하나님을 아는 것을 대적하여 높아져 하나님과의 교제가 단절된 사람으로 사는 사람입니다. 그래서 어떤 죄는 이 땅 에서도 심판을 받으며 어떤 죄는 심판의 손이 그 뒤를 추적한다고 했습니다. 우리는 전도자의 말대로 내 모든 행한 일을 창조자 앞에 둘째, 부활 생명은 완전한 구원으로 마칩니다. 본문에

자연생명 외에 영생으로 사는 사람들이 나옵니다. 16절에 인자가 알곡을 모 으는 장면이 나옵니다. 인자란 그리스도를 상징한 것입니다. 부활하 신 심판주가 구원을 완성시키는 것입니다. 구원할 자란 다 익은 알 곡, 택한 자를 가리킵니다. 14-16절에 면류관 쓴 천사가 알곡을 거 둡니다. 바로 그 알곡이 부활생명을 받은 사람입니다. 두 가지가 약 속되었습니다. 주 안에서 쉬는 안식과 행한 일이 따르는 상급입니다. 그런데 제일 큰 우리의 관심은 영생을 가졌지만 육체의 소욕으로 사는 육적 그리스도인의 결과에 있습니다. 어떻게 됩니까? 부족 셋째, 그러면 어떻게 부활능력으로 살아갈까요? 간단합니다. 주 안에 거하면 됩니다.(요15:5) 이 말은 믿음으로 인내로 사는 것을 가리킵니다. 부활 생명으로 사는 것은 말씀을 깨닫는 것입니다. 주 님이 엠마오 제자들에게, 또 사도들에게 하신 일은 말씀을 깨닫게 깨닫는 것입니다. 주님이 엠마오. 제자들에게. 또 사도들에게 하신 일을 말씀을 깨닫게 하는 있이었습니다.여러분 속에 부활 생명이 양동하는 치험을 하시기 바랍니다.

The power of resurrection life (Revelation 14:12-20) March 30, 2008.

Saints know that they will be judged and must live in fear. You will be saved, but you will be saved from shame. It was something to do. I hope you experience the resurrection life stirring within you. The text shows the results of the two types of life, natural life and resurrection life, and how those who have resurrection life should live. First, natural life ends in destruction. In verses 17-20, the vine was ripe, and the angel took it with a sharp sickle and threw it into the winepress of wrath. It is said that it has spread to . This shows

severe judgment on non-believers. Who will fit here? He is said to be a person who worships beasts and idols and has received the 666 mark (9-11). In other words, he is a person without the Holy Spirit, that is, a person who lives by natural life. We value natural life, but we do not risk everything on that life. Because I was given a better life. The natural man is said to be a man who is dead in sins and trespasses (Ephesians 2:1-3), a follower of the devil, the ruler of the power of the air, a man who lives according to the desires of the flesh, and a man who will receive the wrath of God. A person who temporarily lives with the help of the common grace of the Holy Spirit. Its characteristics are disobedience and pride. This is a person who rises up against the knowledge of God and lives as a person who is cut off from fellowship with God. So, it is said that some sins are judged on this earth, and that the hand of judgment pursues some sins. As the evangelist said, we end everything we have done before the Creator, and the resurrection life is complete salvation. In the text, there are people who live eternal life in addition to natural life. Verse 16 shows the Son of Man gathering grain. The Son of Man symbolizes Christ. The resurrected Judge completes salvation. Those who are to be saved refer to the ripe grain, the chosen ones. In verses 14-16, the crowned angel reaps the grain. That grain is the person who received resurrection life. Two things were promised. It is the reward of rest in the Lord and the work done. However, our greatest interest lies in the results of carnal Christians who have eternal life but live according to the desires of the flesh. What happens? Lack Third, then how do we live with the resurrection ability? It's simple. All you have to do is abide in the Lord. (John 15:5) This refers to living with faith and patience. Living with resurrection life means understanding the Word. What the Lord did for the Emmaus disciples and apostles was to help them understand and

understand the Word. The Lord is Emmaus. It was a way to help the disciples and apostles understand the words of God. I hope you experience the resurrection life flowing within you.

모세의 노래 (계 15:1-8) 2008. 4. 6.

본문의 한편에는 구원받은 자가 모세의 노래를 부르며 다른 편으론 정죄 받은 자가 일곱 대접 재앙을 받는 장면이 나옵니다. 우 리의 관심은 구원받은 자가 부르는 노래 곧 모세의 노래, 어린양의 노래에 있습니다. 어린양의 노래란 그리스도가 구원의 중심이기 때문 이라고 할수 있는데 왜 모세의 노래입니까? 본래 이것은 이스 라엘이 출 애굽(15장)할 때 이스라엘이 노래한 것인데 여기에 왜 그 노래가 나왔습니까? 구약이 그리스도를 중심한 기록이란 사실을 증거하는 것입니다. 밧모섬에서 요한이 받은 계시는 구약이 그리스 도 안에 어떻게 완성이 되었는가를 보인 것입니다. 첫째, 모세 노래에서 어린양의 구워이 어떻게 완성되는지요? 심 판이 완료되면서 완성되었습니다. 7-8 절에 하늘 성소에서 심판으 천사가 나오고 그 심판이 마치기까지 성전에 들어갈 자가 없다고 했습니다. 심판 완료는 구원의 마지막 순서입니다. 이 둘은 동시에 일어납니다. 애굽 군병이 물에 빠져 죽을 때 이스라엘은 구워을 받는 것과 같습니다. 신자들은 나사로처럼 불신자의 심판을 목격하나 서로 왕래할 수 없는 세계에 들어갈 것입니다.(눅24:44) 이 땅에 살며 억울한 일 당한 것이 그 때 다 들어납니다. 주님은 그 때에 모든 것을 다 드러내실 것입니다. 은밀한 기도, 은밀한 말, 은밀한 선행, 은밀한 죄가 하나 숨김없이 드러나서 판단을 받게 될 것입 니다. 완전한 심판 사실 앞에 두려워하며 살아가는 성도가 되시기 바랍니다. 둘째, 구원의 어떤 점을 찬양했습니까? 1) 하나님이 친히 이루 신 사실을 찬양했습니다. 3절에 나옵니다. 창세기 3:15절의 원시복 음에 보인대로 하나님이 친히 그 구원을 이루시는 것입니다. 엘샤 다이(전능하신) 하나님이 친히

하셨습니다.(창17:1) 모세 사역에도 계속 사람은 할 수 없다는 한계성을 보여주셨습니다. 우리의 구원 도 하나님이 시작하시고 하나님이 친히 이루십니다.(빌1:7,롬8:29) 2) 그리스도만이 거룩과 의라는 사실을 찬양했습니다. 4절에 보면 구원은 반드시 거룩과 의를 만족시켜야 한다고 말합니다. 사람은 두리 뭉실하지만 하나님은 반드시 그 요구에 만족하셔야만 하십니 다. 마귀의 참소를 막고 자기 백성을 완벽하게 구원하는 길이기 때 문입니다. 그래서 그리스도는 완전한 죽음과 부활로 이 거룩과 의 를 이루셨습니다. 그래서 그 만이 중보자 대속자가 되실 수 있으십 니다. 모세의 의와 거룩은 언제나 불완전했지만 그리스도의 의는 모두가 완전하십니다. 3) 열방 중 구원이란 사실을 찬양했습니다. 이스라엘의 민족주의적 타락은 그리스도의 뜻이 아니고 하나님의 뜻이 아니었습니다. 선민의식은 그들을 저주로 떨어뜨리는 독이었 습니다. 교만하게 되고 하나님의 의보다 자기 의를 세우려는 에덴 동산의 죄를 반복하며 극도로 치닿게 하는 결과를 낳았습니다. 주 님의 부활은 우리에게 이런 놀라운 질서를 만들었습니다. 마지막 모세이신 그리스도의 노래로 충만하시기를 축원합니다.

Song of Moses (Revelation 15:1-8) 2008. 4. 6.

On one side of the text, a saved person sings the song of Moses, and on the other side, a condemned person receives the seven bowl plagues. Our interest is in the songs sung by the saved, the song of Moses and the song of the Lamb. The song of the Lamb can be said to be because Christ is the center of salvation, but why is it the song of Moses? Originally, this was the song Israel sang when they left Egypt (Chapter 15), so why did that song appear here?

This proves the fact that the Old Testament is a record centered on Christ. The revelation John received on the island of Patmos showed how the Old Testament was completed in Christ. First, how is the salvation of the Lamb completed in the song of Moses? It was completed when the judgment was completed. Verses 7-8 say that the judgment angel comes out of the heavenly sanctuary and no one enters the temple until the judgment is completed. Completion of judgment is the final order of salvation. These two happen simultaneously. It is like Israel being saved when an Egyptian soldier drowns. Like Lazarus, believers will witness the judgment of unbelievers, but they will enter a world where they cannot interact with each other (Luke 24:44). At that time, all the injustices suffered while living on this earth will be revealed. The Lord will reveal everything at that time. Secret prayers, secret words, secret good deeds, and secret sins will all be revealed and judged. I hope you become believers who live in fear before the fact of complete judgment. Second, what did you praise about salvation? 1) We praised the fact that God Himself had accomplished this. It appears in verse 3. As shown in the original gospel in Genesis 3:15, God Himself accomplishes that salvation. El Shadai (Almighty) God Himself did it (Genesis 17:1). Even in the ministry of Moses, He continued to show the limitations of what man could not do. Our salvation also begins with God and is accomplished by God Himself. (Philippians 1:7, Romans 8:29) 2) He praised the fact that only Christ is holy and righteous. Verse 4 says that salvation must satisfy holiness and righteousness. People may be stubborn, but God must satisfy their demands. This is because it is the way to block the devil's accusations and completely save his people. So Christ achieved this holiness and righteousness through perfect death and resurrection. So only He can be the mediator and redeemer. Moses'

righteousness and holiness were always imperfect, but Christ's righteousness is perfect. 3) He praised the fact that it is salvation among the nations. Israel's nationalistic corruption was not the will of Christ or the will of God. The consciousness of the chosen people was a poison that brought them down to a curse. We became arrogant and repeated the sin of the Garden of Eden of trying to establish our own righteousness rather than God's righteousness, which resulted in extreme harm. The Lord's resurrection created this amazing order for us. I pray that you will be filled with the song of Christ, the last Moses.

아마겟돈 전쟁 (계16:1-16) 2008. 4. 13.

16:16절에 여섯째 재앙에서 아마겟돈 전쟁이 준비되는 장면이 나옵니다. 이 전쟁 속에 살아가는 우리 성도들은 어떤 삶을 살아야 하는가요? 첫째. 먼저 아마겟돈 전쟁이란 무엇인지를 생각해 봅시다. 본문 에 보인 대접재앙이 어떻게 진행되었습니까? 독한 헌데 짐승표를 받은 자에게 독종이 생기고(1-16) 바다생물이 죽으며(3) 물이 피로 변하며(4-7) 해에 재앙이 쏟아져 만물이 태워지며(4-7) 강물이 말 라 아마겟돈 전쟁이 예비된다(8-9)고 했습니다. 세계대전 이상 가는 치열한 전쟁이며 핵전쟁보다 더 치명적 영적전쟁이 될 것을 암 시하고 있습니다. 핵 전쟁은 사람의 육체에 피해를 주지만 이 전쟁은 영혼의 구원을 결정하기 때문입니다. 이 전쟁은 언제 일어나는 가요? 본문에 의하며 주님 재림 직전에 그리스도를 대적하는 정권 이 세력을 이루어 최후의 싸움이 일어날 것을 보여줍니다. 어떤 이 가 말하는 중동전이나 이라크 전쟁과 같은 것으로 지칭한다고 꼬집 어 말할 수 없지만 분명히 종교성을 띈 복음을 대적하는 적그리스 도와의 싸움이 일어날 것으로 볼 수 있습니다. 그러나 우리는 이미 이 전쟁이 일어났다고 볼 수 있습니다. 아마겟돈 전쟁이 시작된 증 거가 있기 때문입니다. 그 전쟁을 만드는 자는 용과 마귀와 거짓선 자의 입에서 나온 더러운 영의 역사로 시작되어 육체와 영의 싸움. 참 교훈과 거짓 교훈과의 싸움이 치열하게 일어났기 때문입니다. 구체적으로 그 싸움은 그리스도의 오심으로 이미 시작되었습니다. 하나님나라가 이미 시작된 것처럼 그 싸움은 이미 세상에 시작되어 완성된 그 나라의 승리를 향해 나가고 있습니다. 아마겟돈 전쟁의 승리를 인식하고 늘 근신하여야합니다. 둘째. 그러면

이 전장에 들어선 성도는 어떤 자세를 가져야합니까? (1) 회개에 힘써야합니다.(9) 그 날은 회개하지 못하며 회개치 않는 특징이 있습니다. 생명은 참 회개를 통해 일어나는데 회개하지 못하는 자리에 떨어지게 된다는 것입니다. 그래서 참회개의 다른 면인 믿음을 살펴야 합니다. 영광을 주께 돌리는 믿음의 삶을 굳게 지키며 살아야한다는 말입니다. 구원의 확신이 분명해야합니 다.(요일5:11-12) 둘째. 깨어있어야 합니다.(3) 도적같이 강하시 는 주님의 재림을 앞에 둔 교회는 항상 깨어있기 위해 기도하며 말 씀묵상에 힘써야 합니다. 그러므로 기도응답의 확신이 충만해야합 니다.(요16:21) 셋째. 자기 옷을 지켜야 합니다.(3) 이 말은 자기를 지켜라는 말입니다. 신자의 영적승리의 관건은 업적이나 사역보다 그 자신이 세속에 물들지 않도록 자기를 지키는데 있습니다. 승리 의 확신으로 충만해야 한다는 말입니다.(고전 10:13) 출9:26절에 보면 우박 재앙이 내릴 때 고센 땅은 철저한 보호를 받았으나 완벽 한 보호는 오직 그리스도 안에서만 절대 보호를 받기에 우리는 이 난관 속에서도 믿음을 지킬 수 있습니다. 치열한 아마겟돈 전쟁이 일어난 이 시대에 우리는 복음화의 사명을 위해 하나님의 전신갑 주, 곧 구원. 의, 진리. 믿음, 말씀, 기도, 복음의 평안을 입고 확신 을 가진 전쟁의 승리자로 살아야 할 것입니다.

Armageddon War (Revelation 16:1-16) April 13, 2008.

In verse 16:16, there is a scene showing preparations for the battle of Armageddon in the sixth plague. What kind of life should our believers living in this war live? first. First, let us consider what the war of Armageddon is. How did the Great Disaster shown in the text progress? Those who received

the mark of the beast develop poisonous sores (1-16), sea creatures die (3), water turns into blood (4-7), disaster pours down on the sun, burns all things (4-7), and rivers dry up. It is said that the war of Armageddon is prepared (8-9). It is implied that it will be a war as fierce as a world war and a spiritual war more lethal than a nuclear war. Nuclear war damages the human body, but this war determines the salvation of the soul. When does this war happen? According to the text, it shows that just before the Lord's second coming, the government that opposes Christ will form a force and the final battle will take place. It cannot be said that this is the same thing as the Middle East war or the Iraq war, as some say, but it can clearly be seen that there will be a fight with Antichrist, who opposes the religious gospel. But we can see that this war has already occurred. This is because there is evidence that the war of Armageddon has begun. The one who created the war began with the work of the unclean spirit that came out of the mouths of the dragon, the devil, and the false, and a fierce battle broke out between the flesh and the spirit, and between true doctrine and false doctrine. Specifically, that fight has already begun with the coming of Christ. Just as the kingdom of God has already begun, the fight has already begun in the world and is moving toward the victory of the completed kingdom. We must recognize the victory in the war of Armageddon and remain vigilant at all times. second. So what attitude should the saints have when entering this battlefield? (1) We must strive to repent. (9) That day has the characteristic of not being able to repent and not repenting. Life arises through true repentance, but we fall into a position where we cannot repent. So, we need to look at the other side of repentance: faith. This means that we must firmly live a life of faith that gives glory to the Lord. The assurance of salvation must be clear. (1 John 5:11-12) Second. We

must stay awake. (3) The church, which faces the second coming of the Lord, who is as strong as a thief, must always pray and strive to meditate on the Word to stay awake. Therefore, you must be full of confidence that your prayers will be answered. (John 16:21) Third. You must protect your clothes. (3) This means to protect yourself. The key to a believer's spiritual victory lies not in his accomplishments or ministry, but in protecting himself from being tainted by the world. This means that we must be filled with the assurance of victory. (1 Corinthians 10:13) In Exodus 9:26, when the hail plague fell, the land of Goshen was thoroughly protected, but we can receive absolute protection only in Christ. You can keep your faith even in difficult times. In this era of fierce Armageddon war, we must wear the full armor of God, that is, salvation, for the mission of evangelization. Righteousness, truth. We must live as victors in the war with confidence, clothed in the peace of faith, the Word, prayer, and the Gospel.

신령한 용사들이 되려면(계17:1-18) 2008. 4. 27.

16장에서 일곱째 대접재앙으로 세상이 망하는 것을 본 우리들은 17장에서 그 망하는 과정을 바라봅니다. 음녀로 비유된 세상이 적 그리스도에 의해 망하는 일이 일어납니다.(16) 이 전쟁에서 주님 교회는 어떻게 살아가야할까요? 신령한 용사로 부름 받은 우리는 어떻게 신령한 싸움에 승리할 수 있나요? 14절에 세 가지로 대답 합니다. 첫째, 부르심을 굳게 해야 합니다. 영적전쟁에 참여한 교회는 하 나님의 부르싞을 굳게 함으로 이길 수 있습니다. 하나님의 계획이 실제로 드러나는 것은 순간의 부르심입니다. 사무엘과 사울을 부르 신 것처럼 개별적인 부르심으로 구원의 일이 시작되게 하셨습니다. 그래서 베드로는 창세 전에 선택하심으로 지금 부르셨음을 굳게 할 때 원시안적신앙을 갖는다고 말합니다. 베드로가 깨달은 것은 바로 이 부르심의 진리였습니다. 부르심을 굳게 하라는 말은 무슨 뜻입 니까? 부름 받을 자격 없는 자가 하나님 부르신 사랑의 감격 속에 살아가라는 말입니다. 하나님의 부르심에는 후회가 없으며 자원하 여 응답하게 하시며 사명을 포함시키십니다. 다메섹에서 부름받은 사울은 두 가지를 분명히 했습니다. 하나는 예수를 아는 것이며 다른 하나는 자기의 사명을 아는 일이었습니다. 신령한 싸움에 갈등 과 실망이 일어날 때마다 신령한 용사로서의 부르심을 기억하고 부 르짖으시기 바랍니다. 둘째, 구원받은 자임을 주장해야합니다. "빼 내심을 받은 자" 란 선택받은 자란 뜻인데 후자는 전자를 나타내기 위한 전제입니다. 택하셨기에 부르심이 효력 있는 것입니다. 예정 예지 작정되었기에 구원받는 것입니다. 그런데 이 구원은 더 풍성 한 의미를 갖습니다.

구출은 시작일 뿐입니다. 주님이 우리를 건지 셨고 건지시고 건지실 것입니다. 구원이란 그와 같이 되는 것입니다. 하나님의 제사장. 거룩한 나라가 되는 것입니다. 세상 있는 동 안 그리스도는 무수한 싸움의 대답이시고 충족이십니다. 만나의 기 적을 보면 부족함이 없었습니다. 그리스도는 모든 것의 형통이십니다. 셋째. 진실한 자로 살아야합니다. 신령한 싸움은 기본적인 것을 잘하면 됩니다. 부르심과 택하심을 굳게 할 뿐 아니라 주를 신실하게 따라가면 됩니다. 자기부인 자기 십자가를 지고 주를 따라가야 합니다. 주님을 따른 자 곧 순종자가 승리자가 될 수 있습니다. 신 실하게 따라가는 자란 다른 말로 제자로 살아가는 것입니다.(마 4:19) 제자는 두 가지 일에 익숙한 사람입니다. 자기 관리와 제자 삼는 사명에 열을 올려야합니다. 한마디로 주님 명령에 진실되어 순종할 때 승리할 수 있습니다. 신령한 전쟁의 용사는 오직 주님이 십니다. 우리도 그 안에서 신령한 용사로 부름 받았습니다. 신령한 양식인 말씀을 먹고 신령한 음료인 기도의 응답으로 오는 은혜를 힘입을 때 현재 주어진 나의 신령한 싸움에 반드시 이길 수 있습니다.

To become spiritual warriors (Revelation 17:1-18) April 27, 2008.

We, who saw the world being destroyed by the seventh great disaster in Chapter 16, look at the process of destruction in Chapter 17. The world, likened to a prostitute, is being destroyed by the Antichrist. (16) How should the Lord's church live in this war? How can we who are called to be spiritual warriors win the spiritual battle? There are three answers to verse 14. First, we must make our calling firm. The church that participates in the spiritual war can win by confirming God's calling. It is in the call of the moment that God's

plan is truly revealed. Just as he called Samuel and Saul, the work of salvation began with an individual calling. So Peter says that when he confirms the present calling by election before the foundation of the world, he has a primitive faith. What Peter realized was the truth of this calling. What does it mean to make your calling sure? This means that those who do not deserve to be called should live in the emotion of love that God has called them to. God's call has no regrets, allows us to respond voluntarily, and includes a mission. Saul, who was called from Damascus, made two things clear. One was to know Jesus and the other was to know one's mission. Whenever conflict or disappointment arises in your spiritual battle, please remember your calling as a spiritual warrior and cry out. Second, he must claim to be saved. "One who has been chosen" means one who has been chosen, and the latter is a prerequisite for expressing the former. The calling is effective because one has been chosen. One is saved because one has been predestined and foreordained. However, this salvation has a richer meaning. Salvation is only the beginning. The Lord has rescued us and will deliver us. Salvation means becoming a priest of God and a holy nation. Christ is the answer and sufficiency. If you look at the miracle of manna, you must live as a truthful person, as well as solidify your calling and election. All you have to do is follow faithfully, take up your cross, and follow the Lord. Those who follow the Lord faithfully can live as disciples. (Matthew 4:19) A disciple is a person who is accustomed to two things. He must focus on self-management and the mission of making disciples. In short, the only warrior in the spiritual war can win when he faithfully obeys the Lord's commands. In it, you are called to become a spiritual warrior. When you eat the word, which is spiritual food, and receive

the grace that comes as an answer to prayer, which is spiritual drink, you can definitely win the spiritual battle given to you.

말세의 자녀교육 (계18:1-24) 2008. 5. 4.

바벨론 멸망 장면을 상세히 잘 보여주는 본문에서 직장, 가정, 사회, 개인의 장래에 관한 삶의 방법과 지혜를 배웁니다. 특히 자녀교 육이란 말이 한마디 없지만 우리 자녀들의 장래 발판이 이 세상의 종말시대이기 때문입니다. 베드로 서신에서 말하는 두 종류의 말세 즉 초림으로 시작되는 말세(벧전1:5)와 재림 직전의 말세입니다.(벧전3:12) 어린이주일을 맞이하여 "너희와 너희 자녀를 위해 울라 (눅23:28)" 하신 권고대로 우리는 어떻게 자녀를 교육해야합니까? 첫째. 죄를 두려워하는 자녀로 가르쳐야합니다. 21-24 절에 보면 맷돌을 바다에 던지는 것처럼 바벨론이 망한다고 했습니다. 그 멸망은 절대적이라서 결코 하지 않게 되리라"는 말이 5번이나 나옵니다. 결코 보이지 않고. 풍류 소리가 들리지 않고, 세공업자들 도 보이지 않고, 메돌 소리도 들리지 않고. 등불 빛도 보이지 않고. 신랑신부 성이 들리지 않는다는 것입니다. 전무후무한 심판입니 다. 마치 심장이 스톱하여 평행선을 그리듯이 복구가 전혀 불가능 하게되리라는 것입니다. 왜 이렇게 되었습니까? 한마디로 죄 때문 입니다. 그 죄란 어떤 것입니까? 하나님께 영광을 돌릴 무대를 커 신의 처소로 만든 죄이며, 더러운 영이 모이는 곳이 되었기 때문이 며. 가증한 새 곧 다른 나라와의 관계에서 우상장사를 하는 곳으로 만든 죄 때문입니다.(11-13) 그리고 음행의 죄 때문입니다. 이 죄 는 오늘날 얼마나 팽배한가요? 아니 우리의 삶이 그렇게 되어있지 나 않습니까?. 이 죄를 이길 수 있는 방법은 거룩을 추구는 길 뿐 입니다. 둘째. 환난 날에 주의 제단의 제물이 되게 해야합니다. 세 상은 사망 애통 흉년 불에 살라지는 환난의 연속일

것입니다. 천 재지변으로도 일어나지만 사람관계에도 일어납니다. 약육강식, 사회 제도, 교육 제도 등의 혼란에 파묻힌 우리는 주님을 바라보아야합 니다. 교회에 분명히 소속되어야합니다. 주님에게 바친 제물이 될 때 보장을 받습니다. 자녀교육의 가장 중요한 비결은 성경을 가르 치는 것입니다. 성경이 그를 사로잡게 해야 합니다. 그런 자리로 이 끌려면 많은 본들이 필요합니다. 제자의 본, 순종의 본이 있어야 함 니다. 도엑의 간사한 말을 듣고 깊은 고민에 빠진 다윗은 하나님 집의 푸른 강나무같이 하나님의 인자를 의지하였습니다.(시52:8) 환난당할 때 기도로 하나님을 의지하는 자녀가 복됩니다. 셋째, 종 말 재앙을 받지 않게 해야합니다. 종말 재앙을 받아 일순간에 망하지 않게 해야 합니다. 그러자면 우리는 하나님 제일주의로 살아가 야합니다. 고난을 친구 삼는 것을 가르쳐야합니다. 고난 속에서 견 디는 것을 배워야합니다. 시편 73편 신자는 악인의 번성과 득세함 을 보고 큰 고통 속에 있을 때 성소에 들어간 후, 결국을 알고 하 나님만을 더욱 더 신뢰했습니다. 그래서 우리는 당하는 고난 통해 연단을 잘 받는 길을 선택합니다. 고난을 모르는 사람은 뚜렷한 주 관을 갖기가 어렵습니다. 광풍에 휘날리는 유치기 신앙이기 때문입 니다. 남이 하니까 나도 하는 갈대처럼 약한 사람이 되는 것입니다. 무수한 재앙을 받지 않도록 고난 속에서 연단 받을 사람으로 가르 쳐 종말의 흐름 속에서 승리자로 키우시기를 바랍니다.

Education of children in the last days (Revelation 18:1-24) May 4, 2008.

From the text that shows the scene of Babylon's destruction in great detail, we learn life methods and wisdom regarding work, family, society, and the

individual's future. In particular, there is no word about children's education, but this is because the future foundation of our children is the end of the world. There are two types of end times mentioned in the Epistle of Peter: the end times that begin with the First Coming (1 Peter 1:5) and the last days just before the Second Coming (1 Peter 3:12). On Children's Sunday, "Weep for yourselves and for your children (Luke 23). :28)" How should we educate our children as you advise? First, we must teach our children to fear sin. In verses 21-24, it says that Babylon will fall like a millstone being thrown into the sea. The phrase "the destruction is absolute and will never happen" appears five times. It is never seen, the sound of wind and wind is not heard, the craftsmen are not seen, the sound of the stone is not heard, the light of the lamp is not seen, and the bride and groom are not seen. This is an unprecedented judgment. It is as if the heart has stopped and there is no way to recover. In short, what is the glory of God? It is the sin of turning the stage into a large place for God, it is because it has become a gathering place for unclean spirits, and it is the sin of turning it into an abomination, that is, a place where idols are traded in relationships with other nations. (11-13) And fornication. It's because of sin. How prevalent is this sin? Isn't that how our lives are? Second, the only way to overcome this sin is to become a sacrifice on the Lord's altar in the day of trouble. We must do this because the world is a series of tribulations, including death, mourning, famine, and burning. It also happens in human relationships, and we look to the Lord. You must clearly belong to the church. The most important secret in educating your child is to lead him to that position. Many examples are needed. David, who was deeply troubled after hearing Doeg's treacherous words, relied on God's kindness like a green river tree in God's house (Psalm 52:8). Children who rely on God through

prayer are blessed when they are in trouble. Third, we must avoid suffering and destruction in an instant. We must learn to make friends. Psalm 73 When the believer saw the prosperity and prosperity of the wicked and entered the sanctuary, he knew the end and trusted only God more. . So we choose the path of being well-refined through hardships. It is difficult for a person who does not know suffering to have a clear opinion. This is because it is a childish faith that is blowing in the wind. Because others do it, I become a weak person like a reed. I hope that you will teach them to be people who will be refined in hardships so that they will not suffer countless disasters, and raise them to become winners in the flow of the end times.

천국 가정의 실상(계 19:1-8) 2008. 5. 11.

바벨론 멸망은 하나님이 준비한 천국 가정을 이루는 수순입니다. 아마겟돈 전쟁과 함께 세상 멸망으로 완성될 본문은 하늘 음성 이 들리면서 찬양과 경배가 일어나고 어린양의 신부인 교회가 아름 답게 준비하는 혼인 모습으로 나타나기 때문입니다.(8) 첫째, 가정은 어떻게 시작되었습니까? 에덴에서 하나님 형상대 로 지음 받은 남자와 여자의 연합으로 가정이 시작되었습니다. 아 담을 잠들게 하여 그의 갈비대로 여자를 만들어 둘이 한 몸이 되게 하셨습니다. 동식물의 쌍을 만드신 이유는 번성을 위한 결합으로 허락하셨으나 사랑의 가정만큼은 둘이 한 몸을 이루게 하셔서 삼위 의 일치된 연합을 온 땅에 보이려는 하나님의 의도가 있었던 것처 럼 보입니다.(요17:11) 죄가 들어와 제일 먼저 무너진 것이 가정 연합이었습니다. 아담과 하와에게 수치심이 찾아 왔습니다. 그리고 형이 동생을 죽이고 라멕이 여러 아내를 두고. 함이 아버지의 수치 를 드러냄으로 저주받은 가정 파괴의 일들이 계속 일어났습니다. 그래서 누가복음 19:6에서 주님은 가정을 파괴하는 자들에게 창조 질서를 언급하시면서 하나님이 짝지어 주신 것을 사람이 나누지 못 한다고 응수하신 것을 보면 결혼은 단지 독처나 생육 수단 이상의 의미를 갖습니다. 가정은 장차 나타날 처국의 그림자이기 때문입니 다. 본문에 천국 가정의 실상이 어떻게 나타났습니까? 아버지께 영 광이 돌아가고, 만물이 아버지 말씀에 순종하고 경배하며, 혼인 연 합의 즐거움이 충만한 것을 보였습니다. 이것이 천국 가정의 실상 인 것입니다. 한 아버지를 모시고 그를 기쁘시게 하고 그를 영원히 즐기는 자리가 천국 가정이란 것입니다. 그래서 불완전하지만 지상 가정은 다른

기관보다 더 귀하게 여겨야 하는 것입니다. 둘째, 천국가정을 이루기위해 어디에 초점을 맞추어야합니까? 성도는 세마포로 단장하는 일에힘써야 합니다. 희고 깨끗한 세 마포란 성도의 옳은 행실이라고했습니다.(8)이것은 모든 교회가 항상 힘쓸 일입니다. 순종하는 마음과사랑의 마음과 섬김의 마음 을 항상 보존하라는 것입니다. 종말 시대에베드로는 십자가 지는 것을 갑옷으로 삼으라고 가르칩니다. 섬김의마음을 가리킵니다. 경손의마음을 가리킵니다. 여전히마음(영)의문제입니다. 종말에도 우리가 섬김의마음이 될 때 천국가정의 맛을누리게 된다는 것입니다. 다가오는 천국 가정을 바라보고 최선을 다해마음으로부터 공경, 순종, 섬김을 가져 큰 은혜를 받아 천국 가정의실상을 가정에 성취하는 자리로 나가시기를 축원합니다.

The reality of heavenly families (Revelation 19:1-8) May 11, 2008.

The destruction of Babylon is a step toward establishing the heavenly family prepared by God. This is because the text, which will be completed with the destruction of the world along with the Battle of Armageddon, is accompanied by praise and worship as the voice of heaven is heard, and the Church, the bride of the Lamb, appears as a beautifully prepared wedding.(8) First, how did the family begin? The family began in Eden with the union of a man and a woman created in the image of God. He put Adam to sleep and made a woman from his rib, so that the two became one flesh. The reason for creating pairs of plants and animals was to allow them to combine for prosperity, but it seems that God's intention was to show the whole earth the unity of the Trinity by making the two become one body in a loving family (John 17:11).

When sin came in, the first thing that collapsed was the family unity. Shame came to Adam and Eve. And as his older brother killed his younger brother, Lamech had multiple wives, and Ham exposed his father's shame, the cursed events of family destruction continued to occur. So, in Luke 19:6, when we see that the Lord responded to those who destroy families by mentioning the order of creation and saying that humans cannot separate what God has joined, marriage has a meaning beyond just being a single wife or a means of raising children. This is because the family is the shadow of the heaven that will appear in the future. How is the reality of the heavenly family revealed in the text? Glory was given to the Father, all things obeyed and worshiped the Father's words, and the joy of marital union was filled. This is the reality of heavenly families. A heavenly family is a place where one can serve one father, make him happy, and enjoy him forever. That is why, although imperfect, the earthly family must be valued more than other institutions. Second, where should we focus to create a heavenly family? Saints must strive to adorn themselves with fine linen. It is said that white and clean linen is the righteous conduct of the saints. (8) This is something that all churches should always strive for. It means to always preserve a heart of obedience, a heart of love, and a heart of service. In the end times, Peter teaches us to use cross-bearing as our armor. It refers to the heart of service. It refers to Kyeong-sun's heart. It is still a matter of the heart (spirit). Even in the end, when we have a heart of service, we will enjoy the taste of heavenly family. I pray that you will look forward to the coming heavenly family and do your best to receive great grace through reverence, obedience, and service from your heart and go on to achieve the reality of the heavenly family in your family.

환난이 낳은 감사 (고후7:12-8:7) 2008. 11.23

환난 중에서도 풍성한 감사가 솟아날 수 있고 도리어 이 환난이 우리를 유익하게 한 체험을 한 바울은 그 감사의 성격을 우리에게 보여줍니다. 어떤 것이었나요? 첫째, 담대한 감사였습니다. 7:16절은 신령한 근심을 한 바울의 마음을 간단히 묘사한 것인데 그것은 범사에 담대한 기쁨이었습니다. 범사에 감사한 두 가지 사실 즉, 담대함과 기쁨을 보입니다. 이 담대함은 하나님과의 관계에서의 담대함 즉 선한 양심의 담대함으 로 말라기 시대의 이스라엘의 마음을 사로잡은 철면피 같은 담대함 과는 다릅니다. 성경은 양심이 신뢰하는 성령의 소리이기에. 성경에 비추어 양심의 거리낌이 없을 때 담대해 지고 또 그 속에 기쁨이 있습니다. 세상의 기쁨은 일시적으로 지나가는 것이며 우리를 해롭게 하지만 바울처럼 주님을 위하여 신령한 근심을 할 때 마음은 담 대한 기쁨이 일어나고 진정한 감사가 생기는 것입니다. 그래서 감 사의 삶은 신앙의 정상궤도라고 말할 수 있습니다.(살전5:16-17) 둘째, 환난 중에 생긴 감사였습니다. 환난과 감사는 서로 다른 성 격인 것 같은데 밀접한 관계가 있습니다.(8:1-2) 환난이 기쁨 곧 감사를 만든다는 뜻입니다. (롬5:5) 환난은 인내를 인내는 연단을 연단은 소망을 가져오는 것입니다. 이것이 그리스도의 가신 길이고 교회가 가야 하는 길이고 신자가 가야할 길입니다. 환난을 피하려고 할 때 감사를 잃어버립니다. 욥처럼 고난당한 사람이 어디 있습 니까?? 환난의 사람인 그는 고난을 통과한 후, 초창기에 도 귀한 감사가 나오지만 후반기 더 큰 정금 같은 고백을 합니다. 고난 받 기 전과 후의 겸손이 전혀 달랐습니다. 고난 후에는 티끌에 내려앉 아 더 겸손해 졌습니다. 친구들의 궤변으로 괴롭힘을

받던 그가 만 물 창조의 설명을 듣더니 더 큰 변화가 일어난 것입니다. 하나님에 대한 지식이 달라졌습니다. 귀로만 듣던 하나님을 눈으로 보게된 것입니다. 얼마나 놀라운 변화입니까? 외형적으로 갑절의 복을 받은 것도 귀하지만 무엇보다 자신의 복이 하나님뿐이란 것을 배운 것입니다. 하나님 없는 복은 복이 아니라 저주이며 하나님 없는 아름다움은 비참그 자체인 것을 아는 눈이 뜨여진 것입니다. 다른 것들은 더 나은 것을 아는 수단에 불과한 것을 알게된 것입니다. 수단을 목적과 바꾸지 않고그리스도에 대한 지식을 소유하고 기뻐 했던 것입니다. 셋째, 풍성한감사였습니다. 얼마큼 풍성한가요? 믿음, 말, 지식, 간절함, 그리고 가난속에서 풍성한 연보가 드려진 것입니다. 이 풍성은 자신을 주께 드릴 때생긴 것입니다. 헌금과 십일조 생활은 하나님에 대한 최소한의 감사표현이지만 이것이 우리 자신을 원 하시는 하나님의 뜻을 대신할 수는없습니다.(말3:14) 사도의 풍성 한 감사가 일어나기를 축원합니다.

Be reconciled to God (2 Corinthians 5:16-21) 2008. 10. 26.

In order to comfort and encourage the church in suffering through "salvation," etc., we did not use human methods, but only tried to reveal the essence of the gospel of Christ. What is its content? Reconcile with God and reconcile the world with God. First, the gospel is reconciliation with God. Verse 18 says, "All things come from God, who reconciled us to himself through Christ and gave us the ministry of reconciliation." First, we talked about being reconciled to God, which presupposes that we were enemies of God and were under God's wrath before we were saved, but we returned to Him and were reconciled to Him. What kind of sinners were we in the past? We were completely corrupt sinners. In Mark 7:21-22, we were sinners with sexual

immorality, theft, murder, lust and deceit. The "blasphemy, arrogance, and insanity" are floating within us like a dormant volcano, and then they seize the opportunity to come out. At a time when Christians are taking a great deal of seriousness due to the recent passage of the same-sex marriage law, what is even more surprising is the sin of that act. We see what is in us. It begins with all our unfaithful thoughts. The sin that turns God's law into evil is within us. Likewise, it is true that we too are sinners who cannot escape this sin without the merits of Christ, because Jesus took our sin, died, and rose again. (1 Corinthians 15:2-3) This is the yellow letter of the gospel. His death and resurrection are the only way to achieve reconciliation with God, but we must accept Him (John 1:12-13). Second, it is called repentance and faith. It means living as one who is reconciled to God. It is said that those who believe in the gospel and are reconciled to God live as reconcilers when they live on this earth. Paul said that he was living as an envoy of reconciliation. He said in verses 19-20 that he gave words of reconciliation to believers as Christ ambassadors. This is the purpose of the life of every believer who is at peace with God: no matter how much you do, if you do not live for the reconciliation of the world and God, you will be living a wandering life. So how do we reconcile this evil world to God? 1) First, I must show myself the image of God. 2) I must first enjoy the power of the gospel. 3) We must learn the art of sharing the gospel. Dear friends, I hope that you live as people who reconcile this world to God at this time. I pray that you all become heavenly ambassadors of reconciliation. Have spiritual sorrow (2 Corinthians 7:1-11) 2008, 11, 16

The problems of today's era are solved by a change in the believers' outlook on life. 3 Jesus told the disciples who were afraid of the coming of the world not to be sad in their hearts (John 14:10). Paul also speaks of two types of sorrow. One leads to death. One is sorrow, and the other is sorrow that leads to life. What I mean by spiritual sorrow is the latter, which leads to life. (Verse 10) If you have committed a sin, it is normal to be sorrowful and do something shameful. It is normal for spiritual believers to feel anxious and afraid when they do not live according to the Lord's will. Therefore, we should be more spiritually anxious than thankful. First, the need for spiritual deliberation. A spiritual heart is a godly sorrow. 2. Feelings of despair, suffering, crying, sighing, and crying are the problems of Israel in the time of the prophet Haggai. They had no worries, but when they heard God's rebuke that they had built a well-built house with walls and walls, but the time was not right, they became anxious and immediately turned around and started building the temple. The problem of this era is that the church does not have spiritual sorrow and is not moved by the Holy Spirit. They think to themselves, "What should we do?" With this discovery, hope begins. Second, what results does spiritual sorrow bring? 1What are the seven truths of earnestness? It causes you to have excuses (eagerness) 3) It brings resentment (indignation) and fear (alarm) 5. It brings longing (longing), zeal (concern) and then regretful punishment (readiness). = We need these fruits. In this age, there is hope only when these fruits appear. There is a problem with the saints. There is no spiritual sorrow. Why did we lose such a good thing? because of. The sin of Malachi's time was hypocrisy. There is no truth. This truth does not change just because the world changes. Only when this becomes clearer can one become a leading figure in a rapidly changing era.

금념을 마무리하면서 우리가 꼭 알아야 할 것은 주님이 우리를 부요케 하시려고 친히 가난하게 되셨다는 사실입니다. 그러므로 주 가 주신 부요를 자기 것으로 누려야 할 것입니다. 왜 주님이 가난 해 지셨습니까? 첫째. 우리를 부요케 하기 위함이었습니다. 9절에 "부요" 라 육 신이나 • 악한 제도에서의 구원이 아니고 문제의 근원인 죄로부터의 구원을 가리킵니다. 죄란 우리를 비참하게 하고 영혼을 파괴합니다. 에덴동산의 아담과 하와에게 죄가 들어오자 그 결과로 하나님 과의 부조화, 사람과의 부조화, 만물과의 부조화로 심각한 고통이 찾아 왔습니다. "욕심이 잉태한즉 죄를 낳고 죄가 장성한즉 사망을 낳느니라" 고 한대로 죄는 결국 인간의 육체 소의 산물입니다. 그래서 주께서 대신 죽으심으로 우리를 거기서 구원하시고 새사람 으로 만들어 살게 하신 것입니다. 이것이 주님이 우리에게 주신 근 본적 치료며 부요인 것입니다. 얼마나 놀라운 부요입니까? 이미 모든 문제를 해결하셨다는 선포를 우리에게 적용할 때 그 치료와 부요는 내 것인 것입니다. 나의 할 일은 그 선포를 믿고 그 대로 순종하는 일입니다. 그가 채찍에 맞음으로 나음을 입었다는 믿음으로 나은 것을 감사합니다는 믿음을 견지할 때 그 부요는 내 것으로 나타나는 것입니다. 둘째, 우리로 남을 부요케 하게 하기 위함이었습니다. 그리스도 의 죽음은 우리만을 부요케 하는 것으로 멈추지 않았습니다. 남을 부요케 하는 사람 곧 피스 메이커가 되게 하는 것입니다. 남을 부 요케 할 때 인생이 살맛이 나고 부요를 누릴 수 있습니다. 아담을 청지기로 부르신 하나님은 아브라함에게 모든 민족이 너로 인해 복 을 받게 되리라는 사명을 주셨습니다. 그러므로 이 세상은

그를 통 해 복을 받게 되는 것입니다. 모세 때도 이 약속은 변치 않고 모든 민족이 복을 받는 사명으로 나타났습니다. 예수님은 모든 방면의 청지기로 살라고 가르치셨습니다. 한 부자가 소출을 풍성히 얻어 창고를 지어 쌓는 것을 보고 어리석다고 평가하셨습니다. 어리석은 자여 가난한 자에게 나눠주라는 것입니다. 남을 부요하게 하기 위 하여 우리는 건강을 구해야하고 장수와 평강을 구해야합니다. 무엇 보다 신자는 그 속에 새로운 사람으로 창조되었기에 세상이 모르는 위대한 부요를 가진 것입니다. 셋째. 하나님 나라 도구가 되게 하기 위함이었습니다. 자기가 부 요하고, 남을 부요케 하기 위해 가난하게 되신 것은 결국 하나님 나라를 세우는 것이 목적입니다. 다시 말하면 이 땅에 하나님나라 를 세우는 것입니다. 이 땅에 사는 동안 하나님 나라 공동체를 이 루라는 것입니다. 이것이 주님이 우리를 이 땅에서 영적 부자가 되 게 하신 이유입니다. 계시록에 나타난 예수님의 모습은 고난의 연 단을 통한 부요자로 일하셨습니다. 그의 목표는 교회를 세우는 것 입니다. 일곱 촛대를 왕래하시고 일곱 별을 붙드심으로 하나님나라 를 세우는 것입니다. 우리 교회는 그리스도 안에 받은 부요를 가지 고 나를 통해 하나님 나라를 세우는 일에 요긴하게 쓰임 받아야 할 것입니다. 주님은 반드시 이루실 것입니다. 우리를 부요케 하려고 가난하게 되셨기 때문입니다.

Riches from the Lord (2 Corinthians 7:8-15) 2008. 11. 30

As we end this year, what we must know is that the Lord Himself became poor to make us rich. Therefore, you must enjoy the wealth the Lord has given you as your own. Why did the Lord become poor? first. He meant to make us

rich. In verse 9, "riches" does not refer to salvation from the flesh or the evil system, but rather salvation from sin, which is the root of the problem. Sin makes us miserable and destroys our souls. When sin entered Adam and Eve in the Garden of Eden, the result was severe suffering due to disharmony with God, with people, and with all things. As it is said, "After desire has conceived, it gives birth to sin; and sin, when it is full-grown, gives birth to death." Ultimately, sin is a product of the human body. That is why the Lord died on our behalf to save us from there and make us new people so that we can live. This is the fundamental healing and wealth that the Lord has given us. What amazing wealth! When we apply the proclamation that He has already solved all our problems, the healing and riches are mine. My job is to believe in that declaration and obey it. When I maintain the belief that I was healed by the wounds and am thankful that I am healed, that wealth appears to be mine, second. It was so that we could enrich others. Christ's death did not stop at making only us rich. It is about making others rich, that is, becoming peacemakers. When you make others rich, life becomes more enjoyable and you can enjoy wealth. God, who called Adam as a steward, gave Abraham the mission that all nations would be blessed through him. Therefore, this world will be blessed through him. Even in Moses' time, this promise remained unchanged and was expressed as a mission for all nations to be blessed. Jesus taught us to live as stewards in all aspects. When he saw a rich man build a storehouse after obtaining an abundance of produce, he judged it foolish. Fool, share with the poor. In order to enrich others, we must seek health, long life, and peace. Above all, believers have great wealth unknown to the world because they are created as new people within themselves. third. It was to become a tool for the kingdom of God. The purpose of becoming poor in

order to become rich and make others rich is ultimately to establish the kingdom of God. In other words, it is to establish the kingdom of God on this earth. The idea is to build a community of God's kingdom while living on this earth. This is why the Lord has made us spiritually rich on this earth. Jesus appears in the Book of Revelation as a man who became rich through the refinement of suffering. His goal is to build a church. He establishes the kingdom of God by traveling around the seven lampstands and holding up the seven stars. Our church must use the wealth received in Christ to help build the kingdom of God through us. The Lord will definitely accomplish it. For he became poor that we might become rich.

신자의 강력한 무기(고후 10:1-6) 2008. 12. 14

오늘은 성서주일로 지킵니다. 본문은 사도권에 대한 의심을 본 러일으킨 거짓 교사들로 혼란이 야기될 때 사도가 복음을 변호하는 내용일 나도 4절에 보명지거짓. 공사나 제에 외모. 관심을 질 바울이 가진 강력한 무기를 보지 못하고 그의 외모와 말투를 보고 평가했습니다. 그의 무기는 바로 성경입니다. 우리가 가진 성경이 우리의 영적문제뿐 아니라 현실의 문제를 해결하는 강력한 무기임 을 다시 한번 확인하고 바울과 같이 이 강력한 무기를 유효적절하 게 사용하는 방법을 잘 배워 유라굴로 같은 현실의 풍랑 속에서 이 무기를 잘 활용함으로 새롭게 도약하는 계기를 삼는 성도들이 되기 바랍니다. 성경은 어떤 특성을 가지고 있으며 어떻게 적용해야하는 지 살펴봅시다. 첫째, 성경은 어떤 특성을 가지고 있습니까? 바울은 두가지 특성을 보여줍니다. 1) 성경은 육체에 속한 것이 아니라는 것입니다. 여기 터 온 말씀인 것입니다. 흡기(inspiration)를 통해 진흙이 사람이 된 것처럼 성령의 기운이 저자의 영혼에 임하여 성령의 언어로 성경을 기록한 것입니다. 그러므로 영어 용제에 한 것이 안 내고경원에 속한 것입니다. 성경이 생명이란 것입 니다. 이 성경에 근거를 둘 때 사람에게 구원 이 일어나는 것입니다. 성경은 영에 속한 것이기에 성령 받은 사람 에게 열립니다. 성령을 받았어도 신령한 자에게 더 잘 열리는 이유 는 성경이 육체에 속한 것이 아니기 때문입니다. 2) 성경은 견고한 진을 파하는 강력입니다. 바울은 성경이, 하나님을 대적한 견고한 우상들을 파하는 능력임을 알았습니다. 여기 진이란 진지를 가리킵 니다. 우리를 구워받지 못하도록 붙들어 매고 안주시키는 진지에서 벗어나게 하는 다이나마이트와 같은 무기가

성경입니다. 예를 들면 마귀가 우리를 넘어뜨리는 공격루트가 있습니다. 생각 이론 -제 도(법칙)이 되게 합니다. 돈은 귀한 것인데 이것을 하나님 보다 앞 세우고 물질만능사상을 갖게 합니다. 특히.. 물질주의. 쾌락주의가 하나님을 대적하고 진지를 구축하여 하나님의 진리에 이르지 못하 게 합니다. 이 견고한 진을 부수는 것이 성경입니다. 둘째. 어떻게 하면 성경을 잘 사용할 수 있을까요? 성경이 살아 있는 영이요 생명일지라도 사용할 줄 모르면 유익을 얻지 못합니 다. 세월이 지나가면 되겠거니 생각하면 오산입니다. 바울은 정말 성경이 하나님의 성령의 검인 것을 알았습니다. 방어용도 되고 공 격용도 되며 그 자체에서 우리의 모든 것에 사용되는 에너지가 흘 러나오는 것을 잘 알아야 합니다. 본문에 3가지 적용법을 보여줍니다. 1) 모든 이론을 성경으로 사로잡아야한다는 확신입니다. 2)하 나님 아는 것을 막는 장애물들을 부수어야합니다. 3) 성경의 중심 이신 그리스도 예수께 자신을 복종시켜야합니다. 여러분 속에 성경 을 사랑하여 단 체험과 쓴 체험을 많이 하시기 | 바랍니다. 그 속에 잠재한 무궁한 지혜를 활용하시기를 축원합니다.

A believer's powerful weapon (2 Corinthians 10:1-6) December 14, 2008

Today is observed as Bible Sunday. The main text is about the apostle defending the gospel when confusion is caused by false teachers who have raised doubts about the apostolic authority. Verse 4 also shows Paul's strong claim to falsehood, public appearance, and interest in public affairs and rituals. I couldn't see the weapon, I judged him based on his appearance and the way

he spoke. His weapon is the Bible. Let's confirm once again that the Bible we have is a powerful weapon that solves not only our spiritual problems but also the problems of reality, and like Paul, we must learn how to use this powerful weapon effectively and appropriately so that we can overcome the storms of reality like Yuragulro. I hope that by making good use of this weapon, we will become believers who can use this opportunity to take a new leap forward. Let's look at what characteristics the Bible has and how to apply it. First, what characteristics does the Bible have? Paul shows two characteristics. 1) The Bible does not belong to the flesh. This is a word that came from here. Just as clay becomes a person through inspiration, the spirit of the Holy Spirit came into the author's soul and the Bible was written in the language of the Holy Spirit. Therefore, what is done in English Yongje belongs to Naegogyeongwon. The Bible is life. Salvation will occur to people when they are based on this Bible. Since the Bible belongs to the spirit, it can be opened to those who have received the Holy Spirit. The reason why it is easier to open to spiritual people even if they have received the Holy Spirit is because the Bible does not belong to the flesh. 2) The Bible is powerful enough to destroy strongholds. Paul knew that the Bible had the power to destroy the strong idols that opposed God. Jin here refers to a serious position. The Bible is a weapon like dynamite that breaks us out of the positions that hold us back and keep us from being saved. For example, there is an attack route through which the devil defeats us, and the theory of thought becomes a law. Money is precious, but we put this before God and have a materialistic mindset. In particular, materialism and hedonism oppose God and build a stronghold, preventing us from reaching God's truth. The Bible is what breaks down this stronghold. Second, how can we use the Bible well? Although the Bible is a

living spirit and life, if you do not know how to use it, you will not benefit from it. It would be a mistake to think that it will all happen as time goes by. Paul truly knew that the Bible is the sword of God's Holy Spirit. It can be used for defense or offense, and we must understand that the energy that is used in everything we do flows from it. The text shows three applications. 1) I am convinced that all theories must be guided by the Bible. 2) We must break down the obstacles that prevent us from knowing God. 3) You must submit yourself to Christ Jesus, the center of the Bible. May you love the Bible and have many sweet and bitter experiences | wish. I hope that you will utilize the infinite wisdom that lies within you.

송축할 이유 (시 104:16-35) 2007. 11.28

모든 것을 다해 여호와를 송축하는 이유는 어디에 있습 니까? 104편의 하반부에 하나님의 창조와 섭리하심 속에 깔려있는 영원한 사랑과 성실하심에 있음을 또다시 말해줍 니다. 우리도 주변의 만물이나 일어나는 사건을 바라보며 우 리를 향한 하나님의 사랑과 성실하심을 즐기며 찬양해야 합 니다.(33) 시인의 영안은 백향목, 새들, 학, 산양, 너구리 뿐 아니라. 천체의 해 달 운행과 땅과 바다의 들짐승으로부터 사람의 노동하는 것까지 자세히 간섭하시는 손길을 바라보고 찬송 하며 감사합니다. 이들이 모두 구속받은 자녀를 위해 존재함 을 생각 할 때 하나님의 사랑을 보고 찬송한 것입니다. 왜 우리는 주를 찬양해야합니까? 첫째. 세상에 가득찬 주의 부요 때문입니다.(24) 때를 따 라 식물을 공급하시고 모든 활동을 통제하시며 삼라만상의 조화 속에 그의 지혜가 넘침을 본 것입니다. 악어, 물고기, 사자들에게 식물을 주시는 하나님은 진정 부요자시며 만물 을 부요케 하시는 분이십니다. 특히 자기 백성에게 일용할 양식을 늘 공급하시는 하나님임을 생각할 때 감사해야합니 다. 둘째. 주님의 치유가 세상에 가득 차 있기 때문입니다. (30) 노아 홍수 때처럼 주의 영을 보내사 고치심과 새로움 으로 가득 채워주신 분이 우리 하나님이십니다. 그의 영은 모든 것을 새롭게 치료하십니다. 창조도 성령이 하셨고 (창1:3) 심판도 성령이 하셨고 홍수심판, 불심판도 성령이 하시며 구원도 성령이 하십니다. 옷니엘에게 성령이 임할 때 어두운 이스라엘을 구했습니다. 드보라의 노래 속에 우리는 죄로 약해 있는 이스라엘을 치료하시는 여호와를 봅니다. 그분 이 나를 치료하시니 찬송하지 않을 수 없습니다. 셋째, 주의 영광이

영원히 계속되기 때문입니다. (31) 실로암 못가의 소경처럼 그에게 나가기만 하면 영혼의 눈이 띄어져 인생의 참 목적을 알게 됩니다. 성도는 이 영광을 맛본 자입니다. 하나님이 자신의 일을 친히 이루시기에 그 분을 전적으로 신뢰하며 그를 높이며 그를 찬양하는 자가 복됩니다. 주 안에 있는 영원한 그의 영광을 바라보고 그를 찬양하며 그리스도 안에 숨겨진 지혜와 지식의 보화를 주목하고 그를 영원히 찬송하는 자가 신자입니다. 일반은총의 무대 속에 숨겨있는 하나님의 지혜로우신 사랑, 과 자비와 긍휼을 생각하며 구원하신 풍성한 은혜를 바라 보고 그에게 달라 붙어 찬양하는 생애를 삽시다.

A Reason to Bless (Psalm 104:16-35) 2007. 11.28

What is the reason for praising Jehovah with everything? The second half of section 104 once again tells us that God's creation and providence are based on eternal love and faithfulness. We too must enjoy and praise God's love and faithfulness toward us as we look at all things around us and the events that occur. (33) The poet's spiritual eyes are not only cedar trees, birds, cranes, goats, and raccoons, but also the movements of the heavenly bodies, the sun, the moon, and the earth. I look at, praise, and give thanks for the hand that intervenes in detail from the wild animals of the sea and the sea to the labor of people. When I thought that they all exist for the sake of the redeemed children, I saw God's love and praised it. Why should we praise the Lord? First, it is because of the wealth of the Lord who fills the world. (24) We see that His wisdom overflows in the harmony of all things by providing food at the right time and controlling all activities. God, who gives food to crocodiles,

fish, and lions, is truly rich and makes all things rich. We should be especially thankful when we think of God always providing daily bread for his people. Second, because the Lord's healing fills the world. (30) Just like during Noah's flood, it is our God who sent the Spirit of the Lord to heal and fill us with newness. His Spirit heals all things new. The Holy Spirit did the creation (Genesis 1:3), the Holy Spirit did the judgment, the flood judgment and fire judgment were done by the Holy Spirit, and salvation was also done by the Holy Spirit. When the Holy Spirit came on Othniel, he saved Israel from the darkness. In Deborah's song, we see the Lord healing Israel, who is weak from sin. I can't help but praise Him for healing me. Third, because the glory of the Lord continues forever. (31) Like the blind man by the Pool of Siloam, just come to him and the eyes of your soul will be opened and you will know the true purpose of his life. Saints are those who have tasted this glory. Since God Himself accomplishes His work, those who trust Him completely, exalt Him, and praise Him are blessed. A believer is someone who looks at His eternal glory in the Lord, praises Him, notes the treasures of wisdom and knowledge hidden in Christ, and praises Him forever. Let us think of God's wise love, mercy, and mercy hidden in the stage of common grace, and let us look at the abundant grace of salvation and live a life of clinging to Him and praising Him.

여자 후손의 탄생 (창3:15,요1:14) 2008. 12.21

이십니다. 신해야합니다. 당되는 분이 예수 그리스도이란 주장입니다. 예수님이 여인의 후손 으로 탄생하신 것입니다. 둘째, 그가 이룬 구원의 풍성함은 어떤 것입니까? 이사야 9:6 한 구절이 요약합니다. 한 아이가 났고, 그 이름은 기묘자요, 모사 전 능하신 하나님이요, 영존하신_아버지, 의의 왕, 평강의 왕이라고 했 습니다. 구원의 성격을 보여줍니다. 1) 자연법칙을 초월한 기이한 구원입니다. (2) 의와 평강의 구원입니다. (3) 전능자의 단독 역사의 구원입니다. (3) 죽음으로 사탄을 멸하신 구원입니다. 여인의 후손, 그리스도가 준비한 구원식탁에 우리를 초청하십니다. "다 내게로 오라, 내가 너희를 쉬게 하리라"는 것입니다. 그 초청에 응하는 성 탄절이 되기를 축원합니다.

Birth of Woman's descendant (Genesis 3:15, John 1:14) 2008. 12.21

It's him. You must believe. The claim is that the person being attacked is Jesus Christ. Jesus was born as a descendant of a woman. Second, what are the riches of salvation he achieved? One verse, Isaiah 9:6, sums it up. A child was born, and his name was called Wonderful, Counselor Almighty God, Everlasting Father, King of Righteousness, Prince of Peace. It shows the nature of salvation. 1) It is a strange salvation that transcends the laws of nature. (2) Salvation of righteousness and peace. (3) Salvation through the sole work of the Almighty. (3) Salvation is the destruction of Satan through death. We are invited to the table of salvation prepared by Christ, the descendant of the woman. "Come to me all, and I will give you rest." I hope that this Christmas will be a time to respond to that invitation.

영적인 자랑 (고린도후서 10:7-18) 2008년 12월 28일

존 칼빈(John Calvin)은 그의 『기독교강요』에서 신자들을 가장 격발시 키는 죄는 그리스도 안에서 영적인 자랑과 대조되는 자기 자랑이라고 지적했습니다. 말은 같지만 내용은 전혀 반대입니다. 전자가 죄이고 자기 중심적인 삶의 관점을 표현하는 반면, 후자는 그리스도 중심의 삶의 관점을 보여줍니다. 즉, 극기라고 하기 때문에 자궁의 마음이나 자존심이 없는 무정한 사람으로 생각하는 것은 비성경적입니다. 바울처럼 그도 나를 죄인 중에 괴수라 하며 모든 사람에게 나를 본받으라 하였느니라. 본문에서 바울은 복음이 주님 안에서 자랑스러운 마음으로 전파되어야 하므로 건강한 신자는 영적인 자부심이 가득 차야 한다고 가르칩니다. 영적인 자랑이란 무엇입니까? 첫째. 영적인 자랑은 하나님께 인정받았다는 사실에서 시작됩니다. 그것은 신성하다. 하나님과 나와의 관계를 말하는 것이기에 인간관계입니다. 세상적인 관계에 하나님이 없으면 세상적인 관계가 되고 그 끝은 죽음입니다. 그러나 하나님 앞에서 행한 모든 일은 영적인 것입니다. 그러므로 영적인 교만은 말씀 묵상과 목적 있는 기도. 전도를 통해서뿐만 아니라 일상의 가정과 직장 생활에서도 하나님께 인정을 받는 데서 발생합니다. 영적인 자랑은 자신감, 찬양, 감사의 표현입니다. 죽기까지 충성하여 의롭다는 인정을 받은 후에 생명의 면류관을 받아야 합니다. 둘째. 영적인 자랑은 덕을 세우는 데 초점을 맞춥니다. 이러한 자랑은 하나님께서 승인하신 확신에서 시작하여 덕을 세우는 방향으로 흘러가야 합니다. 바울의 자랑은 시련 속에 있는 고린도 교회를 세우는 것이었습니다. 이것을 미덕이라고 합니다. 베드로전서 2장 9절은 우리를

왕 같은 제사장으로 삼으신 목적이 무엇이라고 말합니까? 자기를 놀라운 빛에 이르게 한 이의 덕을 선포하기 위함이라고 하셨습니다. 한마디로 덕이 있는 스님이 된다는 뜻이다. 오늘날 종교계에는 덕 있는 지도자가 필요합니다. 서번트 리더십이 강조되는 이유는 우리 시대가 성경 원본으로 돌아가기 때문이다. 모든 드라마가 끝나는 시대이기 때문에 우리는 성경으로 돌아가야 합니다. 요하계시록 19장은 최후의 심판을 어떻게 묘사하고 있습니까? 모든 것은 그리스도의 입에서 나오는 검, 곧 말씀으로 판단됩니다. 우리는 그를 따라가기만 하면 그가 승리에 참여하게 된다. 이것이 승리로 가는 길입니다. 매력을 느끼기 위해서는 참된 미덕이 우리 안에서 계속해서 일어나야 합니다. 셋째. 영적인 자랑은 하늘의 상을 가져다줍니다. 영적인 자랑은 하나님의 보좌에서 나와 교회를 세우는 일을 하다가 하나님께로 돌아가는 것입니다. 영적인 자랑은 이 땅에 떠도는 것이 아닙니다. 단지 가족의 이름을 알리는 것만이 아닙니다. 큰 이름을 약속받은 아브라함은 이것을 알고 어디로 갈지 알지 못하다가 나가서 믿음이 없는 가운데 하나님을 믿었습니다. 우리의 목표는 하늘의 상을 받고. 하나님을 찬양하며. 면류과을 하나님께 드리는 자리에 가는 것입니다. 시간은 기다려주지 않습니다. 우리가 먼저 하나님의 부르심을 받을 때. 주님께서 다시 오실 때. "주님, 내 영혼을 주님께 맡깁니다."라고 고백할 수 있는 준비된 곡식이 되어야 합니다. 그때 주님은 우리를 참으로 자랑스러워하시는 분으로 나타나실 것입니다. 독사굴에서 노는 어린아이처럼 우리 교회가 그 정신을 자랑스럽게 여기고 겸손한 목소리를 내는 참된 공동체를 만들기 위해 노력합시다.

John Calvin, in his Institutes of the Christian Religion, pointed out that the most provocative sin for believers is self-boasting, which stands in contrast to the spiritual boasting in Christ. The words are the same, but the content is completely opposite. While the former is a sin and expresses a self-centered view of life, the latter shows a Christ-centered view of life. In other words, since it is called self-denial, it is unbiblical to think of it as a heartless person with no uterine heart or self-esteem. Like Paul, he said I was the greatest of sinners and told everyone to imitate me. In the text, Paul teaches that the gospel must be preached with pride in the Lord, so a healthy believer must be filled with spiritual pride. What is spiritual boasting? First, spiritual boasting begins with the fact that one has been recognized by God. It is divine. It is a human relationship because it refers to the relationship between God and me. If there is no God in the worldly relationship, it becomes worldly and its end is death. However, anything done before God is spiritual. Therefore, spiritual pride arises from receiving recognition from God not only through meditation on the Word, purposeful prayer, and evangelism, but also in our daily family and work life. Spiritual boasting is an expression of confidence, praise, and gratitude. After being recognized as being right by being loyal to the point of death, you must receive the crown of life. Second, spiritual boasting focuses on edification. This boasting must start from God's approved confidence and flow toward edification. Paul's pride was in building up the Corinthian church that was under trial. This is called virtue. What does 1 Peter 2:9 say is the purpose of making us a royal priest? He said that it was to proclaim the virtues of him who brought him into wonderful light. In short, this means to become a virtuous monk. Today's religious world needs virtuous leaders. The

reason servant leadership is emphasized is because our era returns to the original Bible. We must return to the Bible because this is an age when all dramas are coming to an end. How does Revelation 19 describe the final judgment? Everything is judged by the sword that comes from the mouth of Christ, the word. We just have to follow him and he participates in the victory. This is the path to victory. In order to be attracted, true virtue must continue to arise within us. Third, spiritual boasting leads to heavenly rewards. Spiritual boasting is coming out of the throne of God, working to build a church, and then returning to God. Spiritual boasting is not something that hovers around the earth. It's not just about making a name for the family. Abraham, who had been promised a great name, knew this and did not know where to go, but he went out, and he believed in God in the midst of his disbelief. Our goal should be to receive heavenly rewards, praise God, and go to a place where we can present our crowns to God. Time does not wait. When we first receive God's call or when the Lord returns, we must become ready grain that can be confessed, "Lord, I entrust you with my soul." At that time, the Lord will appear as someone who is truly proud of us. Let us strive to create a true community where our church is proud of its spirit and has a humble voice, like a child playing in a poisonous snake's den.

영적 성숙의 법칙(고린도후서 9:1-14) 2008년 12월 17일

한 순간, 어느 날 믿음을 완성하면 성숙의 법칙을 신경 쓸 필요가 없지만. 계속해서 반복되기 때문에 영적 성숙의 법칙을 제대로 이해하고 큰 은혜의 자리로 나아가야 합니다. . 9절에서 바울은 풍성한 기부에 관해 이야기하면서 추수의 법칙을 언급했습니다. 많이 심는 사람은 많이 거둘 것이고, 적게 심는 사람은 적게 거둘 것이다. 이 말씀을 바탕으로 우리가 영적으로 온전해지기 위해서는 세 가지 영적 법칙을 이해해야 합니다. 어떤거야? 첫째, 파종의 법칙, 요점은 즉시 심어야한다는 것입니다. 올바른 씨앗을 심어야 합니다. 올바른 씨앗은 말씀입니다. 왜냐하면 우리가 거듭날 때 말씀으로 자라고. 자랄 때 말씀으로 자라기 때문입니다. 우리는 38세 화자를 치료하면서 이 법칙을 발견합니다. 자리를 들고 걸어가라고 하면 즉시 일어나 걸어가듯이, 주님의 말씀이 성경입니다. 성경 말씀을 마음에 심으면 살아납니다. 갈라디아서 6장 6절에서 바울은 심는 법칙이 영적인 문제에도 적용된다고 가르쳤습니다. 1) 선한 것을 심어야 하고, 2) 성령으로 심어야 하며, 3) 진리를 심어야 합니다. 둘째. 성장의 법칙이다. 자신이 심은 것을 꿈으로 키우는 것입니다. 물론 자라나게 하시는 분은 하나님이십니다. 하나님의 밭에 심겨진 것이 자라날 때에도 하나님은 개입하십니다. 우리는 일을 성장시키는 데 책임이 있다고 오해하고 생각합니다. 그는 그 일을 스스로 하는 것이 아니라 하나님에 의해 행합니다. 심는 분과 물 주는 분도 하나님이시지만 자라나게 하시는 분도 하나님이십니다. 그러나 하나님께서는 우리의 노력을 통해 그 일을 하시기를 원하십니다. 이것은 우리를 위한 것입니다. 하나님은 집이 바르게 건축되기를 원하십니다.

교회 성장에 관해 많은 이야기가 있지만, 교회 성장은 하나님이 원하시는 성장이어야 합니다. 사람, 돈, 프로그램에 초점을 맞추는 것은 주님의 평가 표준이 아닙니다. 셋째, 추수의 법칙입니다. 이것이 수확의 법칙이다. 반드시 거두되 백배로 거두라. 눈에 보이는 수확보다 하나님 앞에서 수확을 이루는 것이 더 의미가 있습니다. 천국 상의 가치를 모르는 사람에게는 무가치하게 여겨질 수도 있습니다. 계시록 교회에 나타나신 주님처럼 신실하고, 아멘, 진리이신 그분을 따르면 반드시 아름다운 수확을 거두게 될 것입니다. 영적인 법칙은 모든 법칙을 초월합니다. 하늘 구조의 일부인 이 세상은 보좌에 앉으신 분을 중심으로 회전합니다. 이제 우리는 천국의 구조에 적응해야 합니다. 우리는 위의 법칙, 즉 영적인 법칙에 우리의 현실을 일치시켜 새로운 삶의 도약을 이뤄내야 합니다. 이러한 법칙을 통해 당신은 성숙한 도인이 될 수 있습니다.

Laws of Spiritual Maturity (2 Corinthians 9:1-14) December 17, 2008

If we complete our faith in one moment or one day, there is no need to pay attention to the law of maturity, but since it is repeated continuously, we must properly understand the law of spiritual maturity and move forward to a position of great grace. In verse 9, Paul cited the law of harvest while talking about abundant donations. He who sows bountifully will reap bountifully, and he who sows sparingly will also reap sparingly. Based on these words, we must understand three spiritual laws in order to become spiritually perfect. Which one is it? First, the law of sowing. The point is that you need to plant it right away. You must plant the right seeds. The right seed is the word. This is because when we were born again, we grew with the Word and when we grow

up, we grow with the Word. We discover this law when treating a 38-year-old patient. Just as you immediately got up and walked when told to pick up your bed and walk, the words of the Lord are the Bible. When you plant the words of the Bible in your heart, you will come alive. In Galatians 6:6, Paul taught that the law of sowing applies to spiritual matters as well: 1) we must sow goodness, 2) we must sow by the Holy Spirit, and 3) we must sow truth. Second, it is the law of growth. It is about making what you have planted grow into a dream. Of course, it is God who makes it grow. God intervenes even when what is planted in God's field grows. We misunderstand and think that we are responsible for making things grow. He does it not by himself, but by God. The one who plants and the one who waters is God, but the one who makes it grow is God. However, God wants to do it through our efforts. This is for us. God wants the house to be built properly. There is a lot of talk about church growth, but church growth must be the growth that God wants. Focusing on people, money, or programs is not the Lord's standard for evaluation. Third, it is the law of harvest. This is the law of reaping. Be sure to reap, but reap a hundredfold. Achieving a harvest before God is more meaningful than a visible harvest. To those who do not know the value of the heavenly prize, it may be considered worthless. If you follow Him who is faithful, Amen, and truth like the Lord who appeared in the Church of Revelation, you will surely receive a beautiful harvest. Spiritual laws transcend all laws. This world, part of the heavenly structure, revolves around the One on the throne. Now we have to adjust to the structure in heaven. We must bring about a new leap in life by aligning our reality with the above law, that is, the spiritual law. Through these laws, you can become a mature Christian.

[The End of Living Stream Book 13 (2008)] Soli Deo Gloria